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co~nlUNIST THREAT TO THE UNITED S'rATE8 
THROUGH THE CARInnEAN 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 29, 1961 

UNITED STATES SE:\'.\'1'E, 
SUBCO;\IMITTEE 1'0 INVESTIGATE 'fIlE ~\D;\nNISTH¡\'n():\' 

OF TIlE IKTEn:\',\L SECUHITY ACT AND OTlu:n IXTEHN,\L 
SECURlTY LAWS OF THE CO::\fMITTEE ON 'l'la; .JuDlCL\nY, 

Washington, D.G. 
The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 10 :40 a.m., in room 2300, 

New Senate Office Building, Senator .James O. Enstland (chairman) 
presiding. 

Present: Sem:tors Eastland and Roman L. Hl'llSka. 
AIso present: J. G. Sourwine, chief counseJ; Benjamin Mandel, 

research director; Frank Schroeder, chief investigator. 
1'he ClIAIR)L\N If you will hold up yom> hand and be s\yorn. 
Do you solemnl,v swear the testimony yon are about to give wiU be 

the tl'uth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you Gocl? 
MI'. CHAUlIfONT. 1 do. 

TESTIMONY OF ANDRES PEREZ-CHAUMONT 

MI'. SounwIKE. 'Vould you give the reporter your name, please, and 
your acldress ? 

MI'. Cn-'l.U)IONT. My name is Andrrs P erez-Chaumont. My ad­
clress-my home adc1ress-is 374-4 Abel'llcen 'Vay, Houston, Tex. 

MI'. SOURWINE. 'Vhat is your business 01' profession ? 
MI'. CHAUMONT. 1 am export manager for the .\.mel'ican Glass Tint­

Íllg Corp., and tlmt is a Du Pont cOl'poration which distribute~ 
throughout the \\'ol'ld. 

That 1s a glass tinting product, ancl 1 am in charge of the distribu 
torship to 111 foreign eountries. 

MI'. SOURWINE. y ou a,re a Cuban national, are you, MI'. Chaumont? 
MI'. CHAUMONT. Yes, sir. 
MI'. SOUnWIKE. Now, when c1id you leave Cuba? 
Mr. CHAUl\1ONT. 'Vell, 1 left Cuba in 1857, at the beginning of 1957, 

when 1 was aPi)ointed military attach é to tlle Cuban Embassy in 
Mexico, and to the Embassy in Central Amcrica. 1 only went back 
once, that "'as in N ovember 1958, for 2 days, 3 days. 

Mr. SOURWU\E. y ou ",ere then an Anny man ~ 
MI'. CllA"(.:::\IONT. Yes, sir. 
MI'. SOURWINE. 'Vhat \\"as yOUl' rank? 
Mr. CUAU.:\IONT. A licutcnant coJollel. 
Mr. SOURWINE. In what bl'anch of the servicc? 
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832 COMMUNIST THREAT TO U.S. THROUGH THE CARIBBEAN 

Mr. CHAU:M:ONT. Well, 1 had started as infantry, but then 1 had a 
specializing command in general staff, and 1 had gone all the way to 
be subdirector of the school of commanding general staffing in Cuba. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Did you serve in intelligence work at a1l1 
Mr. CHAUMONT. Yes; 1 \Vas in charge of aU the intelligence 

throughout Mexico and Central America. 
Mr. SOURWINE. During what period were you in charge of this 

intelligence ~ 
Mr. CHAUMONT. 1957 and 1958. 
Mr. SOURWlNE. Do you, or did you, know one William Arthur 

Wieland ~ 
Mr. CHAUMONT. If 1 knew him personally, no. 1 have known him 

by references. 
Mr. SOURWINE. What do you mean, you have known him by ref­

erences ? 
Mr. CHAUMONT. 1 believe he "as a Cuban that had another name, 

Montenegro. 
Mr. SOURWINE. ,Vas that Arturo GuilleI1no Montenegro? 
Mr. CUAUMONT. 1 \Vould not remember, sir. 1 have heard also that 

because 1 turned in very many beautiÍul reports on all Communist 
activities throughout the time 1 was there to the U.S. Embassy in 
Mexico, and usually 1 did not see action concerning all the inÍormation 
1 had given. And somehow 01' other 1 was told that there was a 
gentleman named ,Vieland that had been a Cuban named M-ontenegro, 
that \Vas the one that sort of had been an obstacle for those reports 
to have been properly evaIuated. 

MI'. SOURWINE. This "'as in 1957 and 1958 ~ 
MI'. CHAUMONT. 1958. 
MI'. SOURWINE. vVho was the American Ambassadod 
Mr. CHAUMONT. In Mexico? Robert Hill. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Was MI'. \Vieland in the Embassy ~ 
MI'. CHAUMONT. 1 do not recall whether he beIonged to the Embassy. 

There \Vas a young-­
MI'. SOURWINE. This is just hearsay, then, about Mr. Wieland? 
Mr. CHAOlONT. Yeso 
MI'. SOURWINE. Were you told this by personnel in the Embassy? 

. Mr. CHAUMONT. By personnel of the American Embassy there; yes, 
S1r. 

MI'. SOURWIN.E. Do you recall who told you this? 
MI'. CHAUMONT. About Mr. ,Vieland's information? 
Mr. SOURWINE. Yes. 
MI'. CHAUlIfONT. Well, Ambassador Hill, yes, becallse 1 would com­

plain to him; 1 ;vould sa)' that what would happen with those reports, 
that they \Vere very definite, they '\Vere very precise, very concise, 
with facts all over, dates, na mes, and places, and nothing was done 
about it, ever. 

Senator HRUSKA. Mr. ,Vitness, what action \Vas called for by your 
reports? 

Mr. CHAUMONT. ,Vell,I would, for instance, to make it very clear 
for the Government oí the United States, the Communist connections 
of FideI Castro and all his group oí exiles and his part}' members 
and everything that \Vere in Mexico at the time. They had close 
connections with the Commllnists, they "'ere in close contact with 

COMMUNIST THREAT TO U.S. THROUGH THE CARIBBEAN 833 

the Czech commercial attaché, with the Russians--they would receive 
these reports. 1 mean, those reports were very concisa, 1 would give 
very definite action, and yet when 1 would inquire about the reaction 
they would say, well, nothing has been done about it, and 1 would 
see that they were still not considered as Communists somehow or 
other. 

1 even turned in records, 1 remember. For instance, once thera were 
about 80 of them that went to make a demonstration in front of the 
British Embassy when they decided to sell arms to the Cuban Gov­
ernment, when the United States decided not too Then about 80 
01' 90-89 exactly-­

MI'. SOURWINE. Of whom ~ 
MI'. CUAUMONT. OÍ the Cuban exiles in Mexico, made a demonstra­

tion in Íront oí the British Embassy. 1 told them all about it, to 
prove that they were Communists. And they would start singing all 
the time the Communist international song. 

Then the police carne and put them in cars. They kept singing 
aH the time, and when they got to the police station, all 89 of them 
kept singing. Even in the prison they had there they kept singing 
the Communist song and all that. They even made records of the 
song and everything, and the names oí everyone was taken. 1 turned 
all that ovar to the Embassy so they could see that that was a definite 
Communist-oriented movement. 

And, well, like that, hundreds of times 1 turned things like that in. 
Names exactly, the 89 names, what they sang-you could hear them 
singing the Communist international song and everything; their 
connections with the Czech commercial attaché, with the Russian 
Embassy-all that sort oí thing. 

Senator HRUSKA. Were some oí those in that demonstration beÍore 
the Embassy known to you as having been active in Communist work 1 

Mr. CUAUMONT. Yeso Some of them even belonged to the Com­
munist Party. For instance, 1 have the Communist identification oí 
Mrs. GuevaL'a, who was later to become one of the most prominent 
people in Cuba. 

Mr. SOURWINE. The wiÍe of "Che" Guevara 1 
MI'. CHAUMONT. The wife. 
Mr. SOURWINE. What was her maiden name ~ 
MI'. CHAUMONT. 1 do not recall. But 1 have the copy, and 1 even 

sent a photostatic copy to the U.S. Embassy once. 1 sent eveI]'thing 
to Colonel Doerflinger, who was the assistant military attache thera 
and who was the contact man with me, because 1 would make aU my 
intelligence reports to Cuba and ahntys 1 would give a copy to thero. 

Senator lIRuSKA. To whom did Colonel Doerflinger report? To 
whom did he report within the Embassy 1 

MI'. CHAUlIfONT. Within the Embassy 1 do not know about the pro­
cedure. 1 lrnow Ambassador Hill was very well inÍormed because 
he would tell me whenever 1 met him there, he would say, "Your 
report on this and this was very good," and certainly this was ap­
proved1 and he would comment with me. But 1 do not know the pro­
cedure mside the Embassy, who took it. 

Senator HnusKA. 'Vere these reports that you gave the American 
Embassy furnished to the Embassy with the approval of your own 
Government 1 

MI'. CHAUMONT. Yeso 
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834 COMMUNIST THREAT TO u.s. THROUGH THE CARIBBEAN 

Senator HnUSKA. President Batista had orclered cooperation \Vith 
the American Embassy? 

Mr. CHAU:M:ONT. Yeso 
General Tabernilla \Vas in charge of the command of an the armed 

forces-navy, air force, army, and everything. 

* * * * * * * 
MI'. SounwINE. In your intelligence report, MI'. Chaumont, did you 

deal with any information on the question of whether Fidel Castro 
himself was a Communist? 

MI'. CHAUMONT. Yeso 
:Mr. SOURWINE. Ten us what that information was, as best you 

remember it. 
MI'. CHt.UlIIONT. 1 had other reports of his actions since he first 

started in Bogotá, ",here he participated there in that sort of revolu­
tionary action that \Vas there once. 

vVell, the whole story of the comments, ho\V he acted to people he met 
with there, hO\" he developed things there and took refuge, and got on a 
plane and went over. And, of course, the basic thing for which 1 
lmow definitely, ",hen Fidel Castro decided to attack in Cuba íor the 
first time in 1953, he went to Oriente Province, to Monc.:'tda where 1 
was in command. 1 ,,"as the commanding officer there. That was his 
first action. 

On the 26th of .Tuly, as a matter of fact, the day that gave name to 
his movement, he went there with 295 men and he attacked us at about 
i) o'clock in the morning. 

Of course, after the action there and the persecution and everything 
later on, they were completely defeated. They had about 190 dead 
and 70-somethinO" captured, and the rest got away. 

'Vell, among the things \Ve co11ected were sorne records which had a 
musical background of a11 these military marches and everything. 
They \vere gomg to be played in aU the radio stations there as soon as 
the movement succeeded. In those records he spoke in his usual 
manner and his proO"ram was definitely outlined there. That was in 
1953, the 26th of J uIy. It was an about the agrarian reform, taking 
away all the land and distributing it and aU that, distributing the 
stock of aU industries to the people. 

On those records he only said 50 l?ercent of the stock, oí course, but, 
later on, it turned out to be an of lt. And taking away all the idle 
money that was in the banks. 

Of course, there he saiel substituting it by bonds anel things, but get 
it in circulation at once. Anel nationalizing, of course, a11 foreign 
enterprises there, all services, electrie company, anel aU that sort 
oíthing. 

WelI, aU his program that he has taken, has earried on later on, 
\Vas outlined on those records. 

. We to0k. them and \Ve sent them, 1 sent them, ovar to General Taber­
mlla for hlm to see. And 1 remember ,,"hen 1 wrote sendinO" it 1 said 
"Here you can s~e this is plainly a Communist movement; it ~ould b~ 
very g~ for this to be m~e known, maybe not to the general public, 
but certamly to the Amencan Embassy and to aIl owners oí indus­
tries and land and sugar mills and everythino·," so they \Vould know 
what they could expect from this movement. b 
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1 understood that Tabernilla, oí course} took them immediately to 
Batista. And 1 understood also that they had been made known to the 
American Embassy at that time in Cuba. 

Senator HRUSKA. Now, Mr. Chaumont, how many records were 
there? 

Mr. CHAUMONT: There were íour. 
Senator HRUSKA. A series of íour? 
MI'. CHAUMONT. Four record s, yes, because they were going to be 

pl~yed in four different stations. 
Senator HRUSKA. But each of those records was the same? 
Mr. CHAUMONT. Yes, they were the same. They were going to be 

J.ll~yed in the different radio stations. 
Senator HRUSKA. They were what we call platters? 
Mr. CHAUMONT. Yeso 
They were records ; yes, platters. 
Senator HRUSKA. And whose voice was on those records between 

the songs? 
Mr. CHAUMONT. Fidel Castro's, personally. 
Senator HnUSKA. Did you listen to those records? 
MI'. CHAUMONT. Yes. 
Senator HRUSKA. And you recognized his voice ? 
Mr. CHAUMONT. Oh, yeso 
Senator HRUSKA. And he identified himself on the records, that it 

was Fidel Castro? 
MI'. CHAUMONT. Yeso 
MI'. SOURWINE. Do you know where those records are? 
Mr. CHAU1tIONT. No 1 would not know. 1 know 1 sent them to 

General Tabernilla. And the instructions that were sent were to be 
sure and let them know-I remember 1 made the comment not to the 
general public, because there would be a lot of people that would sym­
pathize with these things: "Oh, taking away fromeverybody and 
giving it to everybody; that is going to be wonderful," you lrnow. 
But to all the people who were going to be affected all industries, 
commerce, factories, international enterprises, U.S. Embassy, of 
course. That was the first one 1 mentioned. 

MI'. SOURWINE. Do you have any iníormation, sir respeeting any 
eonnections between Cuban or l\fexiean or Iron Curtain country 
Communists and American Communists? 

Mr. CHAUMONT. Not firsthanded, no. 
Mr. SOURWINE. There were a number oí American Communists in 

Mexico around this time? 
MI'. CHAUMONT. Yeso 
Mr. SOURWINE. Do you have any knowledge oí any contacts be­

tween them and the Communists in your country ? 
Mr. CHAUMONT. No. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Do you have any knowledge about any of the aotivi­

ties of Mauriee Halperin ? 
Mr. CHAUMONT. No, sir. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Does the name "Martha Dodd" 01' "Martha Dadd 

Stern" mean anything to you ? 
Mr.CHAUMONT. No. 
Mr. SOURWINE. A1fred K. Stern ~ 
Mr. CHAUl\IONT. No. 
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Mr. SOURWINE. William Berges? 
Mr. CHAUMONT. No. 
Those, of course, are the names of the American Cornmunists that 

were there and all that, but 1 do not know of any connection with tha 
Cuban peopIe that were there. 

Mr. SOURWINE. That is aH 1 am asking. But 1 have two more 
names 1 want to ask you about. 

y ou obviously cannot answer unti1 you hear them. 
Mr. CHAUMONT. Yeso 
MI'. SOURWINE. Wa1ter 111s1ey ~ 
MI'. CHAUMONT. No sir. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Frederick VanderbiIt Field? 
Mr. CHAUMONT. No, sir. 
Senator HRusKA. Before we get too faraway from those records 

which you found, 1 just want to make our record here complete. 
MI'. CHAUMONT. Yes, sir. 
Senator HRUSKA. vVhen was it that those records were seized by 

you? 
Mr. CHAUMONT. Well in the movement of the 26th of July when 

we were attacked, when t ley attacked us there. 
Senator HRUSKA. What year? 
MI'. CHAUMONT. 1953. 
Senator HRUSKA. Thank you. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Did you have any losses yourself in that struggle 1 
Mr. CHAUMONT. Yes, sir. 
MI'. SOURWlNE. How many were lost on your si de ? 
MI'. CHAUMONT. Twenty-one men 1 lost there. My aide was one 

that was killed there a yard away irom me, and my lieutenant was 
killed also. Twenty-one all together. 

MI'. SOURWINE. How many did you have in your garrison, under 
your command? 

MI'. CHAUMONT. When we were attacked we 0111y had there at the 
moment about 49 01' 50, at that very moment. 1t was sort of a hori­
day, a carnival there, and everybody was out and they were having a 
good time. And we had given permission to most of them. 1t was 
very wen figured out by them. 

MI'. SOURWINE. You had 49 01' 50 and Castro had 295-­
MI'. CHAUMONT. Exactly, yeso 
MI'. SOURWINE (continulllg). Of which he lost 190 to 195 that were 

killed? 
Mr. CHAUMONT. Yeso 
MI'. SOURWINE. And sorne 70 captured ª 
Mr. CHAUMONT. Seventy captured, more 01' 1ess; yeso About 40 

gotaway. 
MI'. SOURWINE. About 30 01' 40 got away? 
MI'. CHAUMONT. Yeso 
MI'. SOURWINE. Was Castro himself captured? 
MI'. CHAUMONT. Yes, sir. 
MI'. SOURWlNE. He was subsequently released, was he not? 
MI'. CHAUMONT. Yes, sir; ayear later he "'as released. He got an 

amnesty. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Got an amnesty by'Batista ? 
MI'. CHAUMONT. Yeso 
MI'. SOURWINE. Do you know how that was arranged ? 

i 

Mr. CHAUMONT. Politicians and the press and the priests and, 1 
mean, the bishop and cardinals. Everyone would ta1k to him and 
they convinced him that it would be a good O'esture and it. would make 
him appear favorably in the eyes of the pu~lic, oi the people, and it 
would be a good thing to release him, and release everybody. 

MI'. SOURWINE. Ancl Castro was then exiled, was he not? 
Mr. CHAU~IONT. He \\'ent after, yeso "\Vhen he was released, he 

went into exile. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Now, you spoke of Fidel Castro's connection with 

the uprising in Bogotá? 
MI'. CIIAUMONT. Yes_ 
MI'. SOURWINE. Do you know if he had anything to do with the 

assassination of Gaitan? 
MI'. CHAUMONT. According to the reports-1 wasn't there at tha 

time, but according to the reports, even the confidential reports said, 
and what the military attaché oi Colombia at that time, in Mexico, 
gave me, he \Vas definitely connected with it. 1 was president of the 
Association of )[ilitary Attachés in Mexico and was on very good 
terms with all of thf'l11, and they would interchange iniormation. 

MI'. SOURWINE. Did your o\\'n intelligence commllnity re<:ard Fidel 
Castro as a Communist at the time he was in the Sierra ~iaestl'a in 
1957 and 1958? 

Mr. CIIAUMO~T. Yes,sir; definitely. 
MI'. SOURWINE. y ou knew he was accompanied by "Che" Guevara? 
:Mr. CHAUlIfONT. Yes, sir; he \Vas. 
MI'. SOURWINE. You knew that Guevara \Vas a Communist? 
:MI'. CHAUlIfONT. Oh,yes. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Do you have iniormation about Raul Castro? 
Mr. CHAUMONT. About his connections with communism? 
Mr. SOURWINE. Yes, if any. 
Mr. CHAUlIIONT. Well, not directly with him. But 1 had heard­

that was secondhand-1 mean 1 had received information that he was 
a Communist and he participated in the Communist ideas, and that 
he "as even much more extreme than his o\\'n brothel'. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Did you have information about Vilma Espin? 
Mr. CH.-\U:lIIONT. That she \yas a Communist, too, and that she 

participated directly with the ideas of the Communist group, and 
that was the information. 1 did not know directly, 1 mean, but 1 
would receive it in the reports and in information from people that 
were even with them in the Sierra Maestra, as a matter of iact. 

Mr. SOtmwINE. Do you ha'\"e information regarding Haydee Santa­
ffi<'\,ria? 

Mr. CHAUlI!O~T. Yeso She participated in the attack at Moncada. 
There ",ere 2 ,,"omen among the 2DO-something and she \Vas one. And 
at the time 1 did not kno\V she \Vas a Communist, of course. 1 knew 
she was an awful type of ,,"oman beca use she ,,"ould talk and act even 
worse than the meno But 1 did not Imow her Communist connections 
at the time. Later on, of course, 1 was sent reports that she belonged 
to that O'roup . 

. Mr.§ouRwINE. Mr. Chairman, 1 have no otIler questions oí this 
wltness. 

The CHAIRMAN. Recess. 
nVhereupon, at 11 :15 a.m., the committee reces sed , subject to call 

of the Chair.) 
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COMlUUNIST THREAT TO THE UNITED STATES 

THROUGH THE CARIBBEAN 


WEDNESDAY, APRIL 26, 1961 

LNITED STATES SENATE, 
SnKO)DIlTTEE To INvEsTIGxm TlIE AD~nNISTR.\TION 

UF TlIE I~1'EI¡:-L\L SECrHlTY ACT ANO OTHEH IXTEHNAL 
!:SEcnUTY L.\\\·s 01-' DIE CO)HIITTEE ON TIlE JuDICIARY, 

Washington, D.C. 
Tila subcornmittee met, pursuant to call, at 11: 25 a.m., in room 

2300, Ne\\" Senate Office Building, Senator Thomas J. Dodd pre­
siding. 
. Present: Senators Dodd, Norris Cotton, ancl Kenneth 13. Kea t 
111 er. 

'lIso present: .T. G. Soul'\yine, chief counsel; I3enjamin Mandel, 
research directors; Frank Schroeder, chief investigator. 

Senator DODD. The committee is called to order. 
Do you want to be SW01'l1? 
Colonel DOERFLINGER. Yes. 
Senator DODD. Will you raise your right hand? 
Do you solemnly swear that the testimony you will give to the 

committee will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the 
trnth, so help you God? 

Colonel DOERFLINGER. 1 do. 

TESTIMONY OF COL. OSCAR MAYNARD DOERFLINGER, CHIEF, 

OPERATIONS BRANCH, OACSI 


Senator DODD. Give us your name, please. 
Colonel DOERFLIXGER. Osear Maynard Doerflinger-that is M-a-y­

n-a-r-d- D-o-e-r-f-I-i-n-g-e-r. l\fy present home address is 2006 Co­
lumbia Pike, Arlington. 

~fr. SOURWll'\E. "'hat is your present assignment, Colone] ? 
Colonel DOI::HFLINGEH. My present assignment is Chief of the Oper­

ations Branch, OACSI, \vhic:h is ~\rmy intelligence. 
MI'. SorHwINE. Ho\\" long haye you been in intelligence? 
Colonel DOERFLI~GEH. ,Vell, 1 have been in mllitary intelligence 

off and on. 1 have been Oll this job since last _\.ugust. 1. Prior to that 
1 spent 4 years in Mexico as assistant army attaché, which is, of course, 
an intelJigence jobo 

MI'. SOUR\VINE. Yeso You had intelligence functions in Mexico? 
Colonal DOERFLINGER. Yes,overt. Some years preyious, 1 served in 

a similar capacity in Chile. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Colonel, the committee had testimony recently 

from a Mr. Cllaumont, C-h-a-u-m-o-n-t, who \Vas a former officer oí 
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the Batista forces in Cuba. Colonel Chaumont told us that he had 
made various reports to you and given you various material. Do you 
remember MI'. Chaumont? 

Colonel DOERFLINGER. Oh, yes; very well. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Do you remember the nature of the material he 

gave you ~ 
Colonel DOERFLINGER. 'Vell, it ,"vas quite yariecl, in fact. Andre 

Perez-Chaumont \Vas initially a major, promoted to lielltenant colonel 
while he \Vas serving the Cuban Government in their Embassy in 
Mexico. 1 workecl with him becrruse '''e '''ere nrrturally associated, 
both being members of the Attaché Corps accreclited to Mexico at that 
time. 1 had frequent contact \Yith him. 'Ve were both officers of the 
Attachés Association, which is a thing which commonly exists in 
variolls capital s of the "'orld, where the host government desires that 
an organizaLion be set up through which the service attachés-Army, 
Navy, and Air-of the various collntries accredited maintain thelr 
relationships, introduce each other, and make themselves known to 
the govemment. They make trips too-ether. 

It is a convenient device through ,,11ich the host government can, to 
sorne extent control the activities of the foreign sen:ice aUachés. 

vVell, he was an officer of the association, and so was r. \Ve worked 
together, arranging various meetings, ancl he was al\Vays very coopera­
tive, extremely cooperative with the American Embassy. 

During this period, Fidel Castro \Vas in Mexico starting his opera­
tion which led into the landings in Cuba. N aturally, Perez-Chaumont 
was very concernecl, because he knew perfectly \Yell that this operation 
was directed against the government he represented, which was that of 
Fulgencio Batista. He received various reports about the operations 
ancl pIanning of the Castro cro\Vd and passed sorne of this informa­
tion to uso 

Some of it he passed verbally. Sometimes he gave us newspaper 
clippings, sorne times he gave us written reports prepared in his own 
office. 

MI'. SOURWINE. Dicl these reports include evidence that FideI Castro 
had Communist connectiolls 01' associations? 

Colonel DOERFLINGER. Yes; this was commonIy asserted. 1 recaIl 
in one instance that there was a demonstration, 1 believe opposite the 
British Embassy, at the time that British aircraft \Vas delivered to 
Cuba. 

1 remember Chaumont stating at one time that the crowds were 
singing the Internationale in their demonstration. 1 do not know 
whether this was proved out 01' noto 

1 wil! teIl you the way this was hanclled. 1 worked very closely 
with Ambassador Hill, and he runs a very strongly commanded Em­
bassy. Everything 1 received, including the information 1 received 
from Chaumont, 1 passed on to Ambassador Hill 01', when not to Hill 
personally, 1 passed it over to the clesignated representatives of his 
political section. These were MI'. Raymond Ledcly, the political 
counsel, and MI'. 'Vinston Scott. 

MI'. SOURWINE. 'Vinston Scott was what, security officer? 
Colonel DOERFLI:-.rGER. ~o, sir; he was the so-called head of the po­

litical research section. 
Mr. SOURWINE. y ou examined and noticed this material as it went 

through your hands? 
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CoIonel DOERFLINGER. Oh, yes. 
Mr. SOURWINE. As an intelligence a9'ent, what was your evaluation 

of it? Was it con vincing to you as to Castro's Communist connection ? 
Colonel DOERFLINGER. 1 do not believe there is much question about 

Castro's Communist affiliation. It was generally accepted that he was 
supported by Lazaro Cardenas, the ex-President of Mexico, aman of 
strong leftist convictions, who protected Castro at every turno 1 can­
not testify to this personally. 1 do not know personally that Fidel 
Castro was supported by Lazaro Cardenas but this was cornmonly 
accepted in MexlCo as a fact at that time. 

MI'. SOURWINE. This is very interesting, and 1 am sure you meant 
it to be responsive, but the particular question was your evaluation of 
the material given to you by Chaumont, the material that came to you 
from Cuban sources, as to your particular judgment whether this was 
convincing as to whether Castro was Communist connected. 

Colonel DOERFLINGER. 1 was not in a position to evaluate the in­
formation given to me, because 1 had no way of checking it out. 1 
was inclined to believe it, but 1 could not say that this is accurate. 

For example, 1 know that the Ambassador directed the other ele­
ments of the Embassy to check this information out, beca use these 
other elements had personnel and facilities through which it could be 
checked out. 1 was merely the channel through which it was passed 
to the Embassy. 

Mr. SOURWINE. What 1 was attempting to get at is whether you are 
in a position to tell us that information was or was not forwarded 
through your Embassy and through channels to Washington which 
would establish Castro's Communist connections 01' associations. 

Colonel DOERFLINGER. This 1 could not say; 1 do not know. 
MI'. SOURWINE. What were the 4 years you were at that Embassy? 
Colon el DOERE'LINGER. 1 was there from, 1 believe, J une of 1956 to 

J uly of 1960. 
Mr. SOURWINE. When was it that Castro first invaded CuLa? 
Colonel DOERFLINGER. Batista fell on the 1st of January 1959, 1 

believe. 
Mr. SOURWINE. That is correcto 
Colonel DOERFLINGER. So he went in there around the middle or 

early,I believe, of the previous year. 
Mr. SOURWINE. He went in in 1958, not 1957? 
Colonel DOERFLINGER. That is right. 
Mr. SOURWINE. So you were at the Embassy in Mexico for at least 

2 years w hile Castro was operating in Mexico ? 
Colonel DOERFLINGER. That is correcto 
Mr. SOURWINE. During this time you received-was it a large nurn­

ber of reports from Chaumont? 
Colonel DOERFLINGER. A fair amount. 
Mr. SOURWINE. You saw them, but you were unable to evaluate 

them as to whether they were convincing with respect to Castro? 
Colonel DOERFLINGER. 1 was unable to state positively whether they 

were true, because 1 had no opportunity to check them out. 
Mr. SOURWINE. 1 understand this, that knowing the source, you 

could--
CoIonel DOERFLINGER. 1 have confidence in Perez-Chaumont. 
Mr. SOURWINE. That is what 1 am trying to get at, your own judg­

ment as an intelligence officer. 
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Colonel DOERFLINGER. I have great confidence in Perez-Chaumont. 
He is a fine man, a reliable mano In my opinion, his statements are 
worthy of credence. 

Mr. SOURWINE. \Vhen this material was forwarded, was it for­
warded with anything in the nature of an evaluation? 

Colonel DOERFLINGER. This I did not know, because I did not for­
ward it. I turned it over to the Ambassador, to Mr. Scott, or to Mr. 
Leddy, and the form in which they fonvarded it was not known to me. 

Mr. SOURWINE. One of the things Mr. Chaumont said he gave you 
was detailed information with respect to the wife of "Che" Guevara, 
positively identifying her as a Communist. Do you remember this? 

Colonel DOERFLINGER. I do not recall this. 

* * * * • • • 
Mr. SOURWINE. Did you, yourself, as a result growing out of your 

intelligence function in the Embassy, procure and deliver any infor­
mation dealing with the Castro activities? 

Colonel DOERFLINGER. No, beca use at that time, my íunction was 
that of an overt intellio'ence officer, in the military field. There were 
other people in the Em'bassy who "ere charged with the other field of 
endeavor. In my capacity as an Army attaché I would not normally 
have gotten into this type oí thing. 

Senator DODD. Off the record just a minute.' 
(Discussion off the record.) 
Mr. SOURWINE. Colonel, do you or did you know William Wie­

land? 
Colonel DOERFLINGER. I have never met him. 
Mr. SOURWINE. You had no connections with him? 
rColonal Doerflinger nods.l 
Mr. SOURWINE. Do you have any questions, Mr. Mandel? 
Mr. MANDEL. I havenone. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Do you have any questions, Mr. Schroeder? 
Mr. SCHROEDER. No. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Mr. Chairman, I have no íurther questions. We 

called tha colonel mainly íor the corroboration oí prior testimony. 
We have covered that point. 

Senator KEATING (presiding). Thank you, Colone!. 
The committee is adjourned. 
(Whereupon, at 11 :37 a.m., the committee recessed, subject to the call 

oí the Chair.) 

COMMUNIST THREAT TO THE UNITED STATES 

THROUGH THE CARIBBEAN 


THURSDAY, JUNE 1, 1961 

UNITED STATES SENATE, 
SUBCOMMITTEE To INVESTIGATE THE AD:')fINISTRATION 

OF THE INTERNAL SECURITY ACT AND OTHER INTERNAL 
SECURITY LAWS OF THE COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY, 

Washington, D.C. 
The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 11 :10 a.m., in room 2300, 

New Senate Office Building, Senator Thomas J. Dodd presiding. 
Present: Senators Dodd and Kenneth B. Keating. 
AIso present: J. G. Sourwine, chief counsel; Benjamín Mandel, 

research director; and Frank Schroeder, chief investigator. 
Senator DODD. Mr. Leddy, raise your right hand. 
Do you solemnly swear that the testimony you will give beíore this 

subcommittee will be the truth and nothing but the truth, so help you 
God? 

Mr. LEDDY. I swear. 

TESTIMONY OF RAYMOND LEDDY, COUNSELOR FOR POLITICAL 

AFFAIRS, AMERICAN EMBASSY, MEXICO 


Mr. SOURWINE. You are Raymond Leddy? 
Mr. LEDDY. Yes,sir. 
Mr. SOURWINE. y ou are in the Foreign Service of the U.S. State 

Department? 
Mr. LEDDY. That is right. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Your present position, sir? 
Mr. LEDDy. I am counselor for political affairs, assigned to the 

American Embassy at Mexico City. 
Mr. SOURWINE. How long have you been in that position? 
Mr. LEDDY. One month short of 4 years. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Did you serve in that capacity under former Am­

bassador Hill ? 
Mr. LEDDY. I served with Ambassador Hill during the entire time 

oí his tenure as Ambassador from July oí 1957 through December 
oí 1960. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Mr. Leddy, did intelligence go through the Em­
bas~y .in Mexico to y~)Ur knowledge dealing with the Communist 
affihatlOns and associatlOns oí Fidel Castro? 

Mr. LEDDY. Prior to my arrival in Mexico, reports had been avail­
able at the Embassy concerning Castro's stay in Mexico. 
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Mr. SOURWINE. How do you know what was available at the Em­
bassy prior to your arrival ~ 

Mr. LEDDY. Because it was discussed in Embassy meetings. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Tell us what¡ou lrnow about it while you were there. 
Mr. LEDDY. From the time o my arrival in July of 1957 we received 

information from sorne local sources in Mexico and from the Embassy 
of course, in Havana, and the Department of State. 

The information from Mexico showed Castro's Communist affilia­
tions prior to his departure. 

MI'. SOURWINE. From where ~ 
Mr. LEDDY. The departure from Mexico to invade Cuba, and also 

showed the support of the Communists in Mexico for Castro when he 
already was in Cuba. 

The information from our Embassy in Havana and from the State 
Department was of a wide nature and showed information, some of 
which was communistic affiliations and others which were noto 

MI'. SOURWlNE. Do you remember a particular occasion when Mr. 
Milton Eisenhower visited Mexico and when he was briefed with re­
gard to Castro during an airplane ride ~ 

MI'. LEDDY. 1 do, SIr. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Will you tell us, first, were you on the airplane ~ 
Mr. LEDDY. Yes sir. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Who else was on the plane? 
Mr. LEDDY. The plane is the airplane of the air attaché who was 

then Col. Benoid E. Glawe. Colonel Glawe was aboard the 
plane-from Mexico to Mazatlan where Dr. Eisenhower was to spend 
a weekend during the course of his visit of approximately 1 week as 
the guest of President Lopez Mateos. Dr. Eisenhower and the Secre­
tary, Mr. Keith Spaulding, were on the plane, and Ambassador Hill, 
myself from the Embassy. Our wives also accompanied us, Mrs. Hill 
and my wife, and MI'. William Wieland of the State Department. 

MI'. SOURWINE. That was a11 except for the pilot ~ 
MI'. LEDDY. That is right, sir. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Now, who gave MI'. Milton Eisenhower the briefing 

on Castro? 
Mr. LEDDY. 1 was asked by the Ambassador to discuss the conc1u­

sions of the fifth meeting of Foreign Ministers at Santiago, Chile, that 
same weekend. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Did you do this? 
Mr. LEDDY. In the course of this discussion we got into the entire 

Cuban situation since the meeting at Santiago had been called pri­
marily to deal with the Cuban problem. 

MI'. SOURWINE. Did you express your synthesis of the intelligence 
which had come to you with respect to Castro? 

Mr. LEDDY. Yes, sir; 1 reviewed a number of items which con­
cerned the conclusions of the Foreign Ministers' meeting and their 
relation to the Cuban Government and then discussed the composition 
of the Cuban Government and its actions up to that time, which was 
the last week of August of 1959 when Castro was in power for about 
8 months. 

MI'. SOURWINE. Did you express a conc1usion respecting Castro's 
communistic connections 01' his affiliations? 

Mr. LEDDY. Yes, sir; 1 pointed out that the information which 
we hOO available would indicate in my mÍnd conclusively that Castro 
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was, himself, pro-Communist and that his government was falling 
under the control of Communists and that, as such, it constituted a 
danger to other countries and a matter of serious concern to our 
own Government. 

MI'. SOURWINE. Were you interrupted at aH during this briefing? 
Mr. LEDDY. Mr. \Vieland expressed disagreement wlth me through­

out the j)el'iod oí an hour and a half. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Specifically, did he express disagreement with what 

you have just told us you said about Castro's communistic connec­
tions and affiliations? 

MI'. LEDDY. Yes, sir; he expressed disagreement with each of the 
points which 1 raised Íor discussion. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Did he declare that Castro was not pro-Commu­
nist? 

Mr. LEDDY. He said that Castro was not a Communist and that 
there was no conclusive evidence that any oí the people in his govern­
ment were Communists. 

MI'. SOURWINE. Did anyope else enter into these discnssions? 
MI'. LEDDY. Ambassador Hill entered the discussion occasional1y 

and, near the conclusion, Colonel Glawe entered tile discussion. 
Mr. SOURWINE. In what way did each oí those gentlemen enter? 
MI'. LEDDY. On the part oí Ambassador Hill, to explore further 

the l'easons Íor the statements which 1 had made and to query MI'. 
\Vieland Íor his l'easons, and on the part oí Colonel Glawe, to ex­
press very strong disagreement with the position which was taken by 
MI'. Wieland. 

~h. SOURWINE. Do you remember the worcls in which Colonel 
Glawe expl'essecl this clisaO"reement? 

MI'. LEDDY. 1 do very clearly beca use at the encl oí the discllssion, 
Colonel Glawe turned to me and saiel, "1 clisagree with Mr. \Vieland 
of the State Department. In my mind, he is either pro-Communist 
01' a fool." 

Mr. SOURWINE. Did he say this to you alone Íor your ears only ~ 
Mr. LEDDY. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SounwINE. He didn'tsay it loudly~ 
Mr. LF.DDY. He spoke to me directly. Whether he spoke to any 

others 1 do not kno\\". 
Mr. SOURWIXE. You don't know whether any others heard him? 
MI'. LEDDY. 1 do not know. 
MI'. SO'CRWINE. \Vere all oí the persons who were 011 the airplane in 

a position to hear this interchange; that is, your briefing on Ambas­
sador Hill's part ? 

MI'. LEDDY. All the passengers were in position. Tlle plane ls a 
DG-3 type. The seats are bunchecl together in the Íorwarcl section of 
the plane on the leÍt-hand side and tIle right-hanel side has a type of 
soÍa 01' lounge and we were seated on the lounge; that i5 to say Dr. 
Eisenhower¡ myse1f, MI'. \Vieland, and Íacing us ,,"ns Ambassndor Hill 
and the laches "·ere on tlle next seats facing uso i\Ir. Spaulcling ""as 
just beyond the ladies in a small area, and 1 believe the conversation 
was clearly audible to all. 

Mr. SODRWINE. Even MI'. Spaulcling could ha,"e heard the con­
versation? 

MI'. LEDDY. Yes, sir. 
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Mr. SOURWINE. Did he participate? 
Mr. LEDDY. Not to my recollection. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Did the ladies participate? 
Mr.LEDDY. No, sir. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Am I correct in understanding that Ambassador 

Hill and Colon el Glawe both Suppol'ted your position? 
MI'. LEDDY. That is correcto 
MI'. SOURWINE. That MI'. vVieIand "'as aIone in deíending Mr. 

Castro to Milton Eisenhower? 
MI'. LEDDY. That is correcto 
MI'. SOURWINE. How did this briefing terminate? Did you con­

elude with what you had to say 01' was it broken off in sorne other \Vay? 
MI'. LEDDY. I coneluded the points "hich I had in mind as bearing 

on the Communist nature oí the Castro government and at that point 
Ambassador Hill turned to Dr. MiIton Eisenho\\"er and asked whether 
he had any further questions. Dr. Eisenho\Ver saiel that he had none 
and he stood up anel \yent to the foI'ward part of the planeo That 
terminated the briefing. 

MI'. SOURWINE. \Vas any documentary evidence offereel in connec­
tion with this briefing 01' any papers pI'offerecl to MI'. Eisenhower? 

MI'. LEDDY. No, sir; only the newspaper yersions of the final account 
of the fifth meeting of the Foreign Ministers, which \Vas the starting 
point of the discussion. 

MI'. SOURWINE. When did you first meeí MI'. ,Vieland? 
MI'. LEDDY. My first acquaintance with MI'. Wieland \Vas in 1954 

in the Department of State. I ,yas then in charge of Central American 
and Panamanian affairs, and MI'. \Vielanel \Vas brought into the De­
partment on temporary assignment during the difficulties with the 
Guatemalan Government of Arbenz in the spring of 19;')4-. ,Ve worked 
toaether for a period of about 3 months. 

MI'. SOURWINE. And thereafteI', "hat \Vas your dealing with him 01' 
your acquaintanceship with him? 

MI'. LEDDY. My subsequent meeting was "hen MI'. vVieland made a 
visit to Mexico in the summer of 1958 III his ca pacity as officer in charge 
of "hat was thC'n called middIe American affairs. 

MI'. SOURWINE. Was that the occasion "hen MI'. Eisenhower carne 
down there? 

MI'. LEDDY. No, sir; that was ayear later in August of 1959. 
MI'. SOURWINE. After that visit, did you see MI'. vVieland again 

befo re 1959? 
Mr.LEDDY. No, sir. 
Mlf. SOURWINE. Do you remembe1' the exact day of this airplane 

trip to Mazatlan? 
Mr. LEDDY. If I recall rightly it was the 22d of August. It was, 

ho",ever, the Saturday of the ",eek on ,,-hich the meeting of fo1'eign 
ministers was concluded and the date can be very easily fixed. 

MI'. SOURWINE. This was in 1959? 
MI'. LEDDY. Yes, sir. 
MI'. SOURWINE. When MI'. \Vieland was in Mexico in 1958, did you 

discuss with him, 01' did you he al' him discuss, Castro 01' Cuban 
affairs? 

MI'. LEDDY. No, sir; "e had a ve1'y brief meeting at that time. I 
accompanied MI'. vVieland in a call he made on the Fo1'eign Minister, 
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and apart from that, my meetings with him the Embassy were purely 
casual. We had no briefings. 

MI'. SOURWINE. Now, from your knowledge of the inte11igence which 
you saw in your official capacity, were you able to form an opinion 
respecting the position MI'. Wieland took during the briefing of Mr. 
Eisenhower in the airplane in August of 1959? 

Mr. LEDDY. Well, MI'. Sourwine, as fuI' as opinion goes I had cer­
tainly an impression at that time based on the statements made by MI'. 
Wieland. 

MI'. SOURWINE. What was this opinion? 
MI'. LEDDY. In the first place, that he was not fully informed of a11 

the facts bearing upon the Communist penetration of the Cuban Gov­
ernment, and secondly, that he was not willing to accept the inter­
pret?-tion of those facts which were offered in the course of the dis­
CUSSlOn. 

MI'. SOURWINE. What information did you have that was not avail­
able to him 01' would not have been available to him in his position? 

MI'. LEDDY. I knew of no information which came to me in any 
special way. It was all official information. 

MI'. SClURWINE. You say he was poorly informed. He had access 
to all the information you had access to and more; didn't he? 

MI'. LEDDY. In the course of the conversation, he made a point oí 
the fact that he saw all of the reports whereas \\"e could only see part 
oí them in Mexico. 

MI'. SOURWINE. Did this point seem valid to you? 
MI'. LEDDY. I felt that the totality of reports would have in no way 

changed the facts ,yhich ,yere preÚY solid about the Communists in 
Cuba. 

MI'. SOURWINE. As a matter of fact it was well known in Mexico 
that Castro's group had been nnder Communist inflnence and in Com­
munist association when they were organizing and training in Mexico; 
isn't that true ? 

MI'. LEDDY. The history there showed that the Government had 
taken action against CastI'o's group anel that they had Communist 
nffiliations. 

MI'. SOURWINE. Dic1 you takc issue \yith :Mr. ,Vieland during this 
briefing when he interrupted you to chaIlenge what you had said? 

MI'. LEDDY. To take issue in the sense of expressing my disagree­
ment with his viewpoints certainly. 

MI'. SOURWINE. You clidn't enter into any argllment with him that 
\VouId involve personalities? 

MI'. LEDDY. None whatsoever. 
MI'. SOlffiWINE. You simply stuck to your points? 
MI'. LEDDY. Exactly. 
MI'. SOURWI~F.. Is there anything about this briefing that you have 

not be en askec1 abont that yon think the committee should lrnow? 
MI'. LEDDY. My recollection of the incident is very clear, MI'. Sour­

\Vine, and 1 feIt the concel'll \\"hich 1 tllink wa" common to the Am­
bassador and Colonel GIa \Ve. ,Ve had bC'en ,nltclling developments 
in Cuba fl'Om the Embassy in }\{exico for many 1'0;\SOnS, among the 
first of which was 0111' 1'espollsibility fOl' 1'epol'ting on Communist de­
velopments in Mexico. Tlle nffiliatiolls \\-hich Castro had in ~Iexico 
were known. ,Vhen the Batist:t govemment fell, a great number of 
refugees from Cuba visiteel ou\' Emuassy and many of them were 
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lrnown to officers in the Embassv who had served in Ravana, and many 
of them made their way to the> Embassy to inform us about develop­
ments in Cuba. We listened to and reported their information and it 
indicated to us a growing pattern of Communist takeover and we ex­
pected to see this reflected in the reports from the State Department. 
It was not, however, until midsummer of 1959 that in our reviews of 
incoming material \Ve could discern an acceptance of the reality that 
Castro was communistic and that the people around him were 
Communists. 

Mr. SOURWINE. You say you could discern an acceptance of this 
fact? 

Mr. LEOOY. Yes. 
Mr. SOURWINE. That Castro was a Communist and the people were 

Communist around him in midsummer of 1959 in the State Depart­
ment summaries of reports? 

Mr. LEODY. In the State Department and intelligence community 
digests. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Coming down from Washington? 
Mr. LEDOY. Yeso 
Mr. SOURWINE. 'Vhen \Vas the Castro visit to the United States? 
Mr. LEDDY. If 1 recall correctly it was approximately April 1959. 
Mr. SOURWINE. This was after he had come to the United States 

and had gone? 
Mr. LEDDY. Yeso 
Mr. SOURWINE. Before that time you saw no evidence of State 

Department recognition of his Communist affiliations and connections? 
Mr. LEDOY. Thnt is correcto 1 recall particularly that there was a 

summary prepared as of the end of June under the auspices of the 
intelligence community. It summarized the characteristics of the 
Castro government and its tendencies after 6 months in power. 

Consequently, when we had this discussion late in August \Ve felt 
real concerned that the fa,cts as they had now been developed and 
summarized and digested \Vere still not fully accepted by the State 
Department officer. 

Mr. SOURWINE. You say this estimate was prepared after Gmonths? 
MI'. LEDDY. Yeso 
Mr. SOURWINE. After the end of J une? 
Mr. LEDDY. It bore a date of J une 30, 1959. 
Mr. SOURWINF.. 'Vilo prepared this estimate? 
Mr. LEDDY. The intelligence commllnity under the chairmanship 

of the CIA. 
Mr. SOUIlWINE. And this \Vas a final paper in the sen se that it was 

disseminated to the full list that gets such estimates ? 
MI'. LEDDY. Yeso 
Mr. SOURWINE. It was a top-Ievel paper and purportedly definitive 

with regard to its subject as of its date? 
MI'. LEDDY. It \yas a comprehcnsive report of the situation as of the 

first Gll10nths of Castro. 
MI'. SOGH\VI~E. You sa w this estimate? 
lIfr. LEDDY. Yes ; \\"e l'ccci\'ed it at the Embassy as we do an such. 
MI'. SOUHWIKE. And did this estímate indicate that Castro was pro-

Communist? 
Mr. LEDDY. It did. 
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Mr. SOURWINE. Did it indicate that he was also a Communist him­
self? 

Mr. LEDDY. No, sir. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Did it indicate that he was surrounded by Com­

munists? 
MI'. LEDDY. It characterized his immediate advisers as either Com­

munist 01' pro-Communist. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Did it refer to Che Guevara as a Communist? 
Mr. LEDDY. The exact words 1 don't recall but 1 do remember that 

it placed Che Guevara in the Communist camp without saying that he 
\Vas a Communist. 

MI'. SOURWINE. Did it make reference to Gen. Alberto Bayo? 
Mr. LEDDY. 1 don't remember the name of Gen. Alberto Bayo. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Did this estimate reach conclusions with regard to 

the Communist 01' non-Communist nature of the Castro regime? 
Mr. LEDDY. Its conclusions \Vere in the sense that unless the trend 

'were checked, the Communist plan to further infiltrate and control the 
Government would go on rapidly. 

MI'. SOURWINEl. The position which "as taken by Mr. Wielancl dur­
ing the airplane ride to Mazatlan was contrary to this estimate; was it 
not? 

Mr. LEDDY. Yes, sir; MI'. vVieland said there was no conclusive 
evidence whatsoever that Fidel Castro 01' any of the people in the 
government were Communists. 

Senator KEATING. Again, what was the date of that ride? 
Mr. LEDDY. Late August of 1959. , 
MI'. SOURWINE. Do you know whether MI'. 'Vieland had access to 

this national intelligence report? 
Mr. LEDDY. 1 would feel certain that such an estimate circulated to 

the Embassy \\'ould be fully circulated to the responsible officers of the 
State Department inasmuch as they are primarily concerned, and the 
State Department is one of the agencies of the Government which 
participates in preparing the estimates. 

MI'. SOURWINE. NOW, as a matter of fact you kllOW that he not only 
had access to it, it was his duty to see it and read it and understand iti 
wasn't it? 

Mr. LEDDY. 1 would think so. 
Mr. SOURWINE. This was in his special field. vVas the existence of 

this estimate called to his attention in connection \Vith the discussion 
in the airplane? 

MI'. LEDDY. Yes, sir; 1 cited it as one of the bases for the statements 
1 had made concerning individuals in the Government and the plans of 
the Government. Re said he had access to a11 of the material, but did 
not recaJI this particular reporto 

Mr. SOURWINE. 1 have no more questions, MI'. Chairman. 
Senator KEATINO. No questions. 
Senator DODD. 1 don't have any. 
Mr. SOURWINE. We are grateful to you for coming up here today, 

Mr. Leddy. We regret that \Ve didn't get to hear you last week. 
Senator DODD. Thank you very much, Mr. Leddy. 
(Whereupon, at 11 :30 a.m., the subcommittee recessed.) 

2I ,0920-63- pt. 13 - 4 

Stolen from the Archive of Dr. Antonio R. de la Cova 
http://www.latinamericanstudies.org/cuba-books.htm



co~nIUNIST THREAT TO THE UNITED STATES 
THROUGH THE CARIBBEAN 

THURSDAY, JUNE 1, 1961 

UNITEO STATES SENATE, 
SUBCOl\fMITTEE To INVESTIGATE TIIE Ao~nNISTRATION 

OF THE INTERNAL SECURITY ACT ANO OTIIER INTERNAL 
SECURITY LAWS OF THE C01l0UTTEE ON TRE JeDICIARY, 

Washington, D.O. 
The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 2 p.m., in room 2300, 

New Senate Office Building, Senator Kenneth B. Keating presiding. 
Present: Senator Keating. 
Also present: J. G. Sourwine, chieí counsel; Benjamin Mandel, 

l'esearch director; and Frank Schroeder, chieí investigator. 
Senator KEATING. The subcommittee will come to order. 
General Garcia, mise your right hand and be swom. 
Do you solemnly swear that the evidence which you give in this 

proceeding will be the truth, the whole truth and nothmg but the 
truth, so help you God? 

General GARCIA. Ido. 
Senator KEATING. General, during the recess, certain questions have 

been put to you to which you have made certain answers. These 
have been transcribed in English and I have them in my hand. In 
arder to save time, I will ask you, with the aid oí your interpreter, to 
rEad these questions and answers; and ií your answers have been 
correctly transcribed, we wiU then ask you to sign this with your 
name at the end oí it. Then it will be made a part oí the record. 

Now, Mr. Ravelo, will you stand and mise your right hand? 
Do you solemnly swear that the evidence which you give in this 

proceeding will be the truth, the whole truth and nothmg but the 
truth, so help you God? 

Mr. RAVELO. Ido. 
Senator KEATING. vVould the interpreter please stand and raise 

your right hand ? 
Do you soIemnly swear that you will truly and correctly interpret 

in this proceeding? 
Mr. RoMERO. Ido. 
My name is Mario S. Romero. I am an interpreter, in room 519, 

:\fills Building, Washington, D.C. 
Senator KEATING. Mr. Ravelo, you heard what I said to General 

Garcia-Tunon. 
Mr. RAvELo. Yes, sir. 
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Senator KEATING. And 1 will ask you to do the same as the general 
and to sign this at the end. 

MI'. RAVELO. Yes,I wiIl. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Ask if he has any corrections he wants to make be­

fore he signs it. 
Senator KEATING. 1 want to explain to both of you that you may 

make any change or correction before signing it. 
Now Counsel, do you have further questions? 
Mr. SOURWlNE. 1 have just one ortwo, Mr. Chairman. 
General Garcia, the statement here mentions a document, which 

is a copy of an original which you gave to Mr. William Wieland. 
You have just handed me a document which is a carbon copy of seven 
pages. This is the documer.t you referred to? 

TESTIMONY OF JORGE GARCIA-TUNON AND RICARDO ARTIGAS­
RAVELO AS GIVEN THROUGH MARIO S. ROMERO, THE INTER­
PRETER 

The INTERPRETER. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Mr. Chairman, may this be ordered in the record 

at the appropriate place~ 
Senator KEATING. Yes, and that is the document in Spanish which 

he gave to Mr. Wieland ~ 
Mr. SOURWINE. Yes, and if the Chair would wish to order that this 

be translated by the interpreter, and the English translation be printed 
in the record rather than the Spanish, that would be desirable. 

Senator KEATING. So ordered. 
(The document referred to reads as follows:) 

[Translation trom the Spanlsh language. January 19:181 

OBSEBVATIONS REOABDINO FIDEL CASTBO'S LETTEB TO THE JUNTA FOB THE 
LmEBATION OF CUBA 

(1) This document establishes a new correlation ot torces, as the document 
itself affirms. It contains a true immediate program of the "fidelismo." It is 
directed mainly to public opinion; Jumping over aU moral barriers and re­
nouncing any possibIe belp from tbe factions represented in the Junta of Libera­
tion, Fidel Castro tbrows bimseIf aIone to tbe attalnment ot bis revolutionary 
objectives. Observe-and it is probably not a mere coincidence-tbat tbe rest 
of tbe opposition is condemned in the document, wblle at no time is a pronounce­
ment made against communism. 

(2) Tbe letter sbould not be interpreted as tbe simple act of breaking tbe 
unity oí the opposition. What it does ls to concentrate the entire opposition 
around the 26tb oí July movement. It sweeps away all tbe polítical hierarchies. 
"1 am tbe oppositlon," it says, and because of tbe dramatic overtone and tbe 
circumstances in wbich the letter is produced, it is possible to assert that tbis 
stroke gives considerable advantage to the "fidelismo" and places it rigbt at the 
top ot tbe political situation. With just one bold gesture Fidel Castro has 
become tbe anti-Batista. 

(3) In tbe face of Fulgencio Batista's absolutism, Fidel establisbes his own 
absolutism and liquidates tbe very little prestige left to Carlos Prio Socarras. 
Now there is only one rebel cbief and bis name is Fidel Castro. It would not 
be farfetcbed to prognosticate tbat 80 percent oí tbe Junta of Liberation will 
incorporate itself into tbe "fidelismo." 

(4) Until now tbe opposition to Batista's regime, wbich opposition is headed 
by Prio and tbe "ortodoxos," was planning within the country to substitute 
Batista and his team. As a matter of fact, they were insurrectional plans of a 
political type, more or les s gangster-like, but never witb revolutionary objectives 
aimed at creating a real social agitation. This Is substantiated by the scanty 
partlclpatlon of tbe workers in the insurrectlonal movements. It was a dis­
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passessed palltlcal minorlty, partially discredited, asplring to regain control al 
tbe State. 

(5) Fidel Castro has launched, íor the first time, revolutionary aims directed 
toward wider sections of the population. Reassured by his beroic gesture, he 
tries to gather behind him tbe entire Cuban population. It sbould be noted tbat 
Fidel Castro, in tbis program, proclaims himself the source of law and promises : 

(a) Deslgnates the executive power. 
(11) Abolishes the legislative power. 
(e) Creates new workers leadersbip, sweeping out the present ones, which 

means, simply, that the new workers movement which he promises will have 
revolutionary overtones. In the next few days he will have to launch ex­
tremely radical objectives in order to mobilize the satisfted Cuban working 
class. 

(d) Dismisses wholly the judicial pawer. 
(e) Liquidates the armed forces of the Republic, traditionaIly bureau­

cratic and free írom political partisanship, and promises to substitute them 
with elements of revolutionary extraction, which means simply that tbe 
armed forces he promises will consist of the armed peasants who second 
him in his struggle and who have already been equipped witb a revolutionary 
conscience. 

(1) Abolishes the system of polítical parties, the bulwark of any demo­
cratlc government, since he stresses tbat the political parties will have no 
right to participate in the provisional government. Only tbe 26th of July 
Party, his own, will have access to the new structure of the revolutionary 
regime he pro poses. 

(g) It should be noted that aIl the aims which come forth from the revo­
lutionary program of E'idel Castro are directed toward the creation of a 
totalitarian regime. Compare: "AIl the power to the Soviets," said Lenin 
in 1917. "AIl tbe power to the 26th of .July," says Fidel Castro in 1958. 

(h) Proclaims harsh penalties for aIl those committed to the Batista 
regime and hints at the possibility of extending tbose penalties to those com­
mitted to prior regimes, which makes obvious his intention of satiating tbe 
revolutionary appetite of the masses. 

(6) In summary, if the program briefly disclosed by Fidel Castro in his letter 
to the Junta of Liberation is analyzed thoroughly, one arrives at the conclusion 
oí it being an integral revolution made by workers, soldiers, and peasants, be­
cause it tends to mobilize aIl three components; the workers' revolutionary 
movement, in the hands of revolutionary leadership oi the 26th oi July; revo­
lutionary soldiers, at the service of the 26th of July; peasants mobilization with 
agrarian reform and distribution of land, something which has often been 
proclaimed previously. At no time, either now or before, does Fidel make a clear 
anti-Communist declaration; however, he does not besitate to condemn the tra­
ditional polítics; his allies of yesterday and the most traditional institutions of 
the country. He takes a radical attitude against e\"erybody, with tbe exception 
of communism. Tbe revolution which he proclaims, and to which he is giving 
impetus with weapons in his hands. is mainly a social type revolution. Future 
development will bring him to coincide with the 'Communist tactics. What Fidel 
Castro promises at this time does not differ greatly from wbat was promised by 
Arevalo and Jacobo Arbenz, in Guatemala, in their time. It also shows points 
of coincidence with the "peronista" teachings. It must be noted that this is the 
first time in tbe history of Cuba iu which one man is successful in creating a 
disciplined army of peasants and students, and proclaims total conquest of power, 
dlsplacing the existing regime and aIl the traditional political leaderships in the 
country. This is particularly grave taking into consideration that tbe romantic 
aura Fidel Castro pos ses ses gathers behind him the great majorities. 

CONCLUSIONS 

If witbin tbe next few days Batista's regime were to collapse, or Batista 
himself were slain in any of the assassination plots being planned against him, 
without tbe previous existence of a plan oi military strengthening which would 
be useful in keeping order and channeling tile political activities of the country, 
the revollltionary thesis of Fidel Castro is the one wilich woulcl arouse the 
country from one end to the otiler. At the sudden collapse of Batista's die­
tatorship, notbing could prevent "fidelismo," with its radical objectives, from 
controlling aIl the power. Tbe army, dismembered and leaderless, would not 
have the fortitude to stop the sweeping advance of tbe masses agitated by the 
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"fidelismo" and would end by joining the "lldelista" movement in order to 
survive. The case of Santiago de Cuba ought to be remembered, when, several 
months ago, an aroused und fervently "fidelísta" fJOPulation practically took 
over the city for several days. It should be noted that the fact of Batista 
remaining in power is no longer dangerous in itself, but only beca use of the 
possibility of provoking social chaos. Any delay in arriving at an adequate 
solution to the Cuban problem is extremely dangerous beca use it allows the 
revolutionary teachings of "fidelislllo" to deepen into the innermost core of the 
the people, and perhaps the time will come when it is no longer restrllinable. 
The new correlation of forces brought about by this sudden breach in the oPposi­
tion unity, compels an emergency treatment. The revolutionary "fidelismo" 
is of no importance militarily at this moment and it will be difficult for it 
to organize the takeover of power, but it is undermining the litUe institu­
tlonalism which is left in the country. It arouses the masses, infiltrates the 
unions, and lately is concentrating al! its etforts toward the physical liquidation 
of the workers' leaders. A few days ago, in Oriente, the "fidelistas" assassi­
nated a prominent workers' leader. J.t ia known, also, that Mujal himself ls 
seriously threatened. On the other hand, Fidel Castro's document admits that 
tbe labor section of tbe 26 of July is organizing the st¡'ike committees in every 
working place and sector of industry, together \Vith the oppositionist elements 
of ALL MILITANCIES willing to jOin a work s toppage. Here is, clearly defined, 
the Uve and pulsing presence of the collaboration with tbe Communist agitators 
in the "fidelista" movement. Fidel Castro, so elear in his attitudes, so courageous 
in his declarations, does not exclude tbe support of the Communists, and he does 
it in a deliberatemanner. Such support suits him \Vell and he proclaims his 
wIlUngness to accept it. Tbis aim of a general strike makes e"ident the 
defini.te direction tbe ''fidelismo'' bas taken in this phase of othe struggle against 
Batista's regime, wbich is none other than the inftltration of the unions in order 
to accomplish its revolutionary objectives. In les s than one year the "fidelismo" 
bas made the insurrectional leadersbip of Carlos Prio critical and has put 
aside the two major political parties in Cuba; that is the "autenticos" and the 
"ortodoxos," whicb belp to explain tbe swiftness of bis "action and the delibera te­
nesa of his plans. Ir he is allowed to advance further, if a plan is not executed 
rapidly in order to stop the "fidelista" agitation, he will succeed in bringing 
about a catastrophic social convulsion. The order to burn the sugar fields 
emanating from the Sierra Maestra, seems to be direC'ted against Ba tista, and 
perhaps many have been fooled by this appearance, but the truth is that the 
intention is to hurt the United States, and it would not be difficult to uncover 
in tbis order some hidden Communist instigation. 

Only tbe immediate liquidation of Batista's regime, and its substitution by 
a strong military power, unobjectionable to the country and to tlle polítical 
parties, could contribute to the equilibrium of the forces whi ch make up the 
organization of the Cuban Nation. Only swift and etfective action could de prive 
this rising revolution dT the elements which form the basis of its sustenance. 
The "fidelismo" teachings, now openly revolutionary, radical and very agreeable 
to the oppressed Cuba n people, feeds itself and grows by Batista's presence in 
power. Replace Batista's regime with a strong military power, c10sed to any 
revolutionary infiltration, and those teachings lose all their emotional value 
and are reduced to their just limits. The only remedy will be for the 1lI0vement 
to incorporate itself into the civil struggle and to abandon the revolutionary
tactics. 

CERTIFICATE OF TRANSLATOR 

This ls to certify that the foregoing doculllent is a true and correct transla­
tion from the Spanish language to the best of my knowledge and ability. 

MARIO S. RO~{ERO, 
"104 1"Ith Sto NW., Washington 6, D.C. Telephone DI-"I-2090. 

DISTRICT OF COI.UMBIA, 88 : 

Sworn and subscrlbed before me a notary public in and for the District of 
Columbia on tbis 7th day of June of 1961. 

[SEAL] H. DOUGLAS FRISBIE, 
Notal'Y Publico 

My commission expires June 14,1962. 

MI'. SOURWINE. 1 am addressing myself to General Garcia now. 
Do you have any knowledge oí the number oí Czechs, Chinese, and 
Russians in Cuba today ~ 
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The INTERPRETER. No; 1 don't have a correct number because at 
this time they are big. There are different sources of information, 
and it is hard to determine which of the sources is correcto 

MI'. SOURWINE. The same question of MI'. Artigas-Ravelo. 
The INTERPRETER. The number is very, very hard to put, but to 

give you a general idea, 1 believe that they exceed 15,000 persons. 
Senator KEATING. Where did you get that iníormation ~ 
The INTERPRETER. The agents that are in Cuba and they come trom 

Cuba and that are organized with uso AIso by the number oí houses, 
apartment houses and residences which have been taken over where 
Czechs, Russians, and Chinese 1ive in those apartments. 

Senator KEATING. And they live mostly by themselves ~ 
The INTERPRETER. They live with their families. 
Senator KEATING. But 1 mean are they in a certain part oí Ravana 

by themselves 01' in certain parts of the country ~ 
The INTERPRETER. They are contained in certain sections and in 

country clubs. 
Senator KEATING. And they have taken ayer houses and apartments 

belonging to Cubans? 
The INTERPRETER. The whole houses and apartments, not the whole 

building, but the apartments, that is correcto Just in the Russian 
personnel now, there are registered 275. 

MI'. SOUHWINE. General Artigas, in your questioning which is in­
cluded in this statement that you are to read and sign, there was men­
tion of communication by letter between you and MI'. William Wie­
land. Do you have a copy oí the letter you wrote Mr. Wieland írom 
Atlanta, Ga., in J anuary 1958? 

The INTERPRETER. No; it was in May oí 1959, not .Tanuary, from 
Atlanta. 

MI'. SOUHWINE. 1 understand that General Artigas-Ravelo stated 
that. he wrote MI'. \Vieland a letter írom Atlanta, Ga.:, in J anuary 
1958. 

The INTERPRETER. From Miami. 
~1r. SOURWINE. This is 1958 telling him oí the two top men in the 

Cuban Communist Party. 
Do you have a copy of that letter ~ 
The INTERPRETER. No. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Now, while we "'ere waiting for this hearing to 

begin you told us of kno",ledge you had respecting Communist sup­
port for Castro while his forces \Vere assembling in Mexico. Would 
you tel! us that briefiy for the record, please, and so the Senator may 
hear it? 

The INTERPRETER. Well, I did not say that. It was General Garcia. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Tlle question \vas addressed to General Garcia. My 

apologies. 
The INTERPRETER. The time that 1 was in Mexico, is that your 

question? 
Mli. SOUInvINE. Yeso You told us what the Cuban Ambassador told 

you. 
Tlle INTERPRETER. Dr. Osear ele la Torre, Ambassador oí Cuba in 

Mexico, a íriend oí mine, when I visited him he told me that the Com­
munists \\'ere backing the polítical activities oí Castro inclusive in 
those days und they had attacked the Cuban Embassy in Mexico with 
Molotov cocktails. The Ambassador showed me the damage that was 
caused. 
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Mr. SOURWINE. Did you have knowledge that the Mexican poliee 
had taken action against the Castro group? 

The INTERPRETER. Yes. 
Mr. SOURWINE. And that the police when they raided the head­

quarters of the Castro group had found Cornmunist documents? 
The INTERPRETER. Yes; they found Communist literatura in the 

Castro headquarters. 
Mr. SOURWINE. This was made public at the time, was it not ~ 
The INTERPRETER. The arrests and the raid were publico But a 

friend that 1 know, a Cuban, showed me a copy of the police record 
and he promised to give me a copy of that poliee record but 1 have 
not recelved it. 

Mr. SOURWINE. What did that poliee record show, as you remember 
it? 

The INTERPRETER. Well, other than the Communist literature, which 
was the matter of interest to us, 1 remember that he mentioned the 
name of the brother of Castro as a person who participated in almost 
every activity. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Is that Ra.ul? 
The INTERPRETER. Yes. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Do you remember anything more about this police 

report? 
The INTERPRETER. 1 remember, but the purpose of the arrest was 

not because of political activities but because of gangster activitíes. 
Senator KEATING. Were these activities made known by you to Mr. 

Wieland ~ 
The INTERPRETER. 1 don't remember, but if 1 díd mention it to him, 

it was just orally. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Do you have any information about the situation in 

Cuba, 01' Castro's intentions, which you want to give this committee 
for this record? 

The INTERPRETER. Well, 1 have already given information at the 
end of 1959 that the Communist ¡ropaganda of Castro was going 
to be intensified among the colore ¡..~ple in the United States and 
now in this province, racial problems are coming up to surface which 
I believe are a consequence of the activity of the Castro agents in this 
territor;r. 

Mr. SOURWINE. General Artigas, you told us of your belief that 
Castro intends to move against Santo Domingo. 

The INTERPRETER. I am sure he will do it because that is his plan. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Do you have any advice for the United States under 

these circumstances ~ 
The INTERPRETER. I have been trying for the past 5 years to help, 

but all my help has been sterile. 
Mr. SOURWINE. 1 was giving you an opportunity on this record to 

make any recommendations that you wanted to make. 
The INTERPRETER. What we were talking about previously about 

Trujillo. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Off the record. 
(Discussion off the record.) 
The INTERPRETER. I believe sincerely that the actual situation is 

highly dangerous, without this meaning that we are going to the 
panic situation. But I believe at this time we are sitting on top of a 
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vol cano and millions of TNT, just sitting on them. Under no circum­
stances do I believe the United States should allow in Santo Domingo 
the same situation which now is happening in my country. Castro's 
plan is not Castro's--Castro is really the mstrument of the Soviets, 
and his plan is greater penetration into Latin American countries. 

The principal objective at this moment in Castro's plan is to occupy 
Guatemala, and in effect, Mr. Arbenz is now in Cuba with this subject 
in mind; also in Bolivia and Colombia and the other places in Amenca 
they have named. We know through sources which are to be believed 
that they have this plan now in Cuba, that there is now in Cuba one 
of the chiefs of the Spanish revolution-Lister-he was the one that di­
rected the battle in Spain. Another object of the Castro government 
is, if the situation in Santo Domingo turns worse, they will try to 
turn that situation into a revolution and take it over. If that happens, 
then the situation will turn into the worst one of today. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Do you have information respecting the threat 
of Communist aggression in British Guiana? 

The INTERPRETER. No; I have no knowledge about that. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Do you, General Garcia ? 
The INTERPRETER. No. 
Mr. SOURWINE. I have no other questions, Mr. Chairman. 
Senator KEATING. AH right, thank you very much, gentlemen. 
Now you look at that testlmony and, with the help of the interpreter, 

make any changes or corrections you might want. 
Mr. SOURWINE. You understand that, do you? Read it through. 

Al!y changes that you want to make in your answers shouJd be made. 
Senator KEATING. And, when that is done, we will place it in the 

record. \ 
(The prepared testimony of Gen. Jorge Garcia-Tunon and Mr. 

Ricardo Artigas-Ravelo, as signed by both, is as follows:) 

GENERAL JORGE GABelA-TuNON 

Blrth: July 22,1913, France. Cuban citlzen, Retired Army General (Inf.) 1952. 
Education: Military Academy, Havana, Cuba. 
Resldence: Miami slnce 1956. Penslon stopped by Batista Government in 

1957. 
Question. When was the first time that you saw Mr. Wieland? 
Answer. 1 was introduced to Mr. Wieland by Mr. Piad in June 1957. 1 saw 

Mr. Wieland alter tbis approximately 15 times. 
Questlon. When was tbe second time tbat you saw Mr. Wieland? 
Answer. November 1957. But, the first time tbat 1 saw Mr. Wieland, we 

spoke about tbe Cuban problem, about doing something to get rid of Batista as 
the situation was very bad in Cuba with Batista and we wanted to do somethlng 
about it. AIso present at tbis meeting was Mr. Stewart, an assistant to Mr. 
Wieland, and Mr. Hardin. Mr. Stewart was not against Batista and favored 
leaving the sitnation as it was. 

Question. At the time ol yonr second meeting, November 1957, did you ask 
Mr. Wieland about the document? 

Answer. 1 had not given the docnment to anyone at this time. 1 gave it to Mr. 
Wieland in January 1958. He said he wonld advise me, bllt 1 never heard from 
him about it. 

Questlon. What did you discuss at the second meeting? 
Answer. Mr. Wleland asked me for aH information that 1 had about the Gov­

ernment, the mllitary, and everything tllat 1 knew. 
Questlon. Wben did you see Mr. Wieland again? 
Answer. 1 went to see him around December 1957, but 1 sa~ Mr. Stewart in· 

stead. 1 went to discuss this same Cuban problem and to .t€'ll hun of an organiza­
tlon, Junta de Liberacion, which had been created in Mlami. Mr. Stewart was 
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annoyed with me beca use of the way that I insisted upon discussing this prob­
Iem about Batista. 

Questlon. When did you see Mr. WieIand again? 
Answer. January 1958. At this time, 1 submitted the document to Mr. 

Wieland. 
Questlon. Would you describe thia document? 
Answer. Well, Fidel Castro had written a letter from the mountains in the 

Sierra Maestra, which was public knowledge, in whlch he dissolved the Junta 
de Liberaclon, which was an organization against Batista and which comprised 
all such organizations against Batista. In dissolving fuis organization, Fidel 
Castro took cbarge of tbe organized efforts against Batista. 

This Ietter was addressed to aH the beads of the different factioDs organized 
in Miami against Batista. 

On tbe basis of thia Ietter, we prepared a document which was an analysis 
of the contents of this letter and a comparsion of its tboughts and ideas with tbe 
tenets of Marxism. We compared tbe 26th of July Movement witb Lenin's 
slogan, "AH Power to the Soviets." 

While Castro does not mention Communism by name, aH of his pIans are the 
same, his methods are tbe same: he is going to dissolve the Army and al'm the 
workers. 

AH this we advised Mr. Wieland. MI'. Wieland was alone, but 1 was accom­
panied by Mr. Artigas, in Washington. 

Question. Wbat did Mr. Wieland say? 
A. Mr. Wieland said that he'd look it over and advlse me. 1 never heard from 

him about it. We also suggested in that document tbat Batista should be sub­
stituted by a military junta. 1.'0 this suggestion Mr. Wieland gave me the 
distinct impression 'without actually saying it, tbat this was very probable, that 
it could be done. We even discussed the names of military men who could form 
a military junta. 

Question. Did be ask you to tell bim who could do this? 
Answer. Yeso 1 told him: General Cantillo, Colonel Barquin. who was in 

prison at tbe time, General Diaz Tamayo, General Sosa, and rnyself, General 
Garcia-Tunon. 

Question. Were any of those mentioned as possibilities for tbe Junta takeover? 
Answer. Yes, General Cantillos, we later lcarned, had been meeting secretly 

with Castro in the mountains. 
Question. Did you ever ask hirn about the document? 
Answer. Yes; but MI'. Wieland said that there was nothing that be could do 

but report tbis information to his superiors. 
Question. When was the next time that you contacted Mr. Wieland? 
Answer. 1 saw hiro several times after January 1958. 1 was residing in 

Washington then. 
Question. Did you ever discuss tbis document again? 
Answer. Yeso 1 insisted tbat there should be found a solution to the Cuban 

problem, aad he toId me that thel'e was nothing we could do. AH be could do 
was to gather inforrnation and report it to his superiors. 

Question. Did Wieland ever mention Castro? 
Answer. 1 saw MI'. Wieland several times and 1 do not recall exactly when he 

spoke about Castro, but generally speaking 1 tole! him that Castro seems to be 
working for the COllllllUnists. He told me that anyone who was against the 
Batista Governlllent \Va:; always accused of being a Communist. 

1 want to make clear, tbat in those days, Castro was nevar tbe center of the 
conversation. It was Batista. 

Question. Do you recall any of your visits after January 1958? 
Answer. After .January 1958, 1 spoke to him several times always about this 

same Cuban problern. 
Question. Did he tell you thut he had stopped shipment of arms to Batista? 
Answer. On one occasion, we talked about that, but he did not tell me that 

he had stopped shipments of al'ms to Batista but that the Governroent did in 
order to avoid any more bloodshed in Cuba. 

Question. Did you ever lell MI'. Wieland that, in your opinion, Castro was a 
Comrnunist? 

Answer. 1 do not recaH exactly that, but 1 discussed this in the document and 
1 told him about Castro Communists and their activities in Mexico. 

Question. Row did you know ubout this'! 
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Answer. It was said that wben Castro was detained by tbe Mexican Poli ce 
in Mexico, they acquired quite a few books and documents of Castro's on 
Comrnunism. 

Question. When was the last time that you saw MI'. Wieland? 
Answer. It was in 1959-twice, in May and July or August. When 1 left 

Cuba in April through the Ecuador Ernhassy, 1 went to live in Atlanta and 
tben 1 wrote from there to him, telling him everything tbat bad bappened in 
Cuba, all.that was happening at that moment, ano everything that would bappen. 

Question. Did he reply? 
Answer. No. I told him about the dangers to the United States of the Cuban 

situation and asked him if good offices of tbe United States could be used to 
solve tbis problem. Re never replied. 

Question. What happened when you carne to Washington in May? 
Answer. 1 suw him and told him that Castro was a Communist and tbat he 

sbould be stopped. 
Question. What did he say? 
Answer. He told me that Castro was not a Communist. We did not discuss 

the documento 
RICARDO ABTIGAB RAVELO 

Question. Wbat was your rank in the army? 
Answer. 1 beld tbe rank of Commander in the Poliee Force; 1 was cblef of 

investigations in Ravana for 4 years. 1 am now retired. 
Question. Did you serve under the Prio government? 
Answer. Yes; 1 was director of the nationallottery under Prio. 
Question. When did you arrive in the U.S.? 
Answer. 1 arrived here on March 13, 1952, in Miami. 
Questlon. Would you describe yourself as being anti-Batista 01' anU·Castro? 
Answer. I am bofu anti-Batista and anti-Castro. 
Question. Did you ever meet wifu Wmiam Wieland? 
Answer. Yes; 1 bave met with him so me 25 or 30 times. 
Question. Wben did you first see him ? 
Answer. I first saw him in June 1957 in the company of General Garcia, at tbe 

State Department bere in Washington. 
Question. Was General Garcia witb you on any subsequent visits to MI'. Wie­

laud? 
Answer. Yes; 1 believe be was witb me on two otber occasions. 
Question. What was the purpose of your visits to Mr. Wieland? 
Answer. I wanted to give him information on tbe very bad situation in Cuba 

and let him know the serious nature of Communist infiitration thel·e. 
Question. When did your second visit witb Mr. Wieland take place? 
Answer. 1 saw him again in August 1958. 1 mlght add tbat 1 was in constant 

toucb with bim by telepbone. 
Question. In your visits witb MI'. Wieland, did he ever mention to you any­

thlng about tbe stopping of arms shipments to Batista? 
Answer. Yes; MI'. Wieland told me that fue State Department would no longer 

allow the shipment of arms to Cuba. 
Question. Did you ever suggest a solution >to Mr. Wieland regarding the prob-

Iems existlng in Cuba at that time? . 
Answer. Yes, prior to the faH of Batista and the takeover by Castro, I sug­

gested to Mr. Wieland tbat a military junta be formed to prevent Castro from1 assuming power. 
Question. Why did you feel a junta wouId be a good thing? 
Answer. 1 knew of Castro's previous activities and of his Communist attitude. 

I cited several instances of tbis attitude such as tbe Bogotá uprising, etc. 
Question. What did MI'. Wieland say when you told him of Castro being a 

Cororuunist? 
Answer. His answer was that Castro was not a Communist. 
Question. Did you warn him of Cast~o being a Communist on any otber oc­

casion? . 
Answer. 1 constantly warned him about tbls and his answer was aIways tbe 

same, that Castro was not a Communist. 
Question. Prior to the Castro takeover, did you ever tell Mr. Wieland of 

Communist Party members joining tbe Castro forces in the Sierra Maestras? 
Answer. Yeso 
Questlon. Wben was tbis? 
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Answer. 1 wrote Mr. Wieland a letter from Miami, FIa., in January 1958. 1 told 
him that the two top men in the Cuban Communist Party had gone to the Sierra 
Maestras to jOin Castro. They are Carlos Rafael Rodriguez and Ladislao Gon­
zalez Carvajal. 1 even told Wieland the day on which they went. 

Question. Did Mr. Wieland ever reply to your letter? 
Answer. No, nevero 
Question. After you wrote this letter you saw Mr. Wieland again, did you 

not? 
Answer. Yes, 1 saw him after that. 
Question. Did you again mention to him the episode about the two Commu­

nist Party leaders joining Castro in the Sierra Maestras'! 
Ans",er. Yes, 1 asked hlm what the United States could do about the Cuban 

situation. 
Question. Did you ask him why he did not reply to your letter in which you 

told him of the Communist Ieaders joining Castro? 
Answer. Yeso 
Question. What dld he say? 
Answer. He replied that the United States couId do nothiug about the Cuban 

situatlon. 
Question. When did you Iast see Mr. Wieland? 
Answer. 1 saw him for the last time in March 19'39 at the State Department 

here in Washington. 
Question. What was the purpose of your visit at that time? 
Answer. 1 came to \Vashington with a Cuban Army colonel named Corzo. 

He went with me to see Wieland, and we submitted a military plan to over­
throw Castro. 

Question. To whom did you submit tbis plan? 
Answer. We gave it to Mr. Wieland. 
Question. What did Mr. Wieland have to say about the plan. 
Answer. He again said that Castro was not a Communist and defended him 

as he had done on every occasion in the past when 1 had brought up Castro's 
name. 

Question. Did you say you saw Wieland 25 01' 30 times in all? 
Answer. Between 1957 and 1959 1 made about 17 trips to Washington to see 

him. 

(Whereupon, at 3: 15 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned.) 

COMMUNIST THREAT TO THE UNITED STATES 
THROUGH THE CARIBBEAN 

THURSDAY, JULY 27, 1962 

UNITED STATES SENATE, 
SUBCOMMITTEE To INVESTIGATE THE ADMINISTRATION 

OF TlIE INTERNAL SECURlTY ACT AND OTHER INTERNAL 
SECURITY LAWS, OF THE CoMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY, 

Washington, D.C. 
The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 1 :25 p.m., in room 2300, 

New Senate Office Building, Senator Thomas J. Dodd presiding. 
Present: J. G. Sourwine, chief counsel; Benjamin Mandel, research 

director; Frank Schroeder, chief investigator. 
Senator DODD. On the record. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Do you wish to be sworn, Mr. Ambassadod 
Ur. VVILLAUER. I would like to be sworn. 
Senator DODD. Do you solemnly swear to tell the truth, the whole 

truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God ~ 
Mr. WILLAUER. Ido. 

TESTIMONY OF WmTING WILLAUER 

Mr. SOURWINE. 1Vould you give the rcporter your full name? 

Mr. WILLAUER. Whiting Willauer. 

Mr. SOURWINE. And your present address? 

Mr. 1VILLA"GER. My present address, which is a temporary address, 


summer address, is W estcIiff~ Nantucket, Mass. 
My home is Antigua, Guatemala. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Are you presentJ:; employed by the U.S. Govem­

ment? 
Mr. VVILLAUER. No, sir. 
Mr. SOURWINE. You have been U.S. Ambnssador to Costa Rica ~ 
~Ir. 1VILLAUER. Yes, sir. 

, Mr. SOURWINE. You have been specinl assistant to the Secretary of• 
State? 

Mr. WILLAUER. Yes, sir.
I Mr. SOlmwINE. You were educated at Exeter and Princeton, where 
~ yon received your B.S., cum laude, in lü28? 

Mr. WILLAUER. Correcto 
Mr. SOURWlNE. You then attended Harvard Law School, from 

"'j¡irh vou secured an L.L.B. in 1931 ~ 
Mr. 1VILLAUER. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Graduating in t.he top 10 percent of your cbss? 
Mr.1Vru.AuER. Yes, sir. .. 
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MI'. SOURWINE. At Princeton you played varsity football and la­
crosse, among various other extracurricular activities? 

MI'. WILLAUER. I did, sir. 
MI'. SOURWINE. y ou holda pilot's license for multiengine aircraft 

with more t,han 3,000 hours in the air ? 
MI'. WILLAUER. Foreign pilot's license, not from the United States. 
MI'. SOURWINE. You are an expert scuba diver? 
MI'. WILLAUER. Yes jI have done a great deal of it. 
MI'. SOURWINE. y ou got a commendation for reseue work performed 

in 1957 while you were Ambassador to Honduras? 
MI'. WILLAUER. Yesj here in the Senate and loeally by the au­

thorities. 
Mr. SOURWINE. y ou recovered several bodies in a very difficult 

operation which involved the risk of your own life? 
MI'. WILLAUER. Thatistrue. 
MI'. SOURWINE. y ou speak Spanish, French, Chinese, and German, 

as well as English ? 
MI'. 1VILLAUER. 1Vell t I am on the professional level 01' very close 

to it in Spanish. I used to be pretty good in French, but that is aone. 
I used to have sorne Chinesej that is gone. And the others are child­
hood languages, I wonld only really claim Spanish today. 

MI'. SOURWINE. You are very modest, MI'. Ambassador. 
You are a practicing attorney and have had a substantial private 

practice? 
MI'. WILLAUER. Yes,sir. 
MI'. SOURWINE. With general experience in labor, banking and in­

surance matters, and with admiraJty law as a specialty? 
MI'. WILLAUER. Yes,sir. 
MI'. SOURWINE. You were legal coordinator of Admiral Byrd's sec­

ond Antarctie expedition? 
MI'. ""VILLAUER. I was. 
MI'. SOURWINE. You have been attorney for the Civil Aeronautics 

Board, and were coordinator OI legal m.atters in eonnection with the 
construction OI the ",rashington National Airport? 

MI'. ""VILLAUER. That is correcto 
MI'. SotmwINE. Yon have been a speeial assistant to the Attorney 

General OI the United Sta tes ? 
MI'. VVILLAUER. Yeso 
MI'. SOURWINE. Handling first cases of judicial and polítical cor­

ruption, and you had all such eases under your charge rOl' a time? 
MI'. WILLAUER. I did. •MI'. SOURWIKE. And later handling Communist ane! Na;¡;i matters? 
MI'. ""Vn,LAuER. I did. 
MI'. SOURWINE. You were special counsel for the Federal Power 

Commission? 
MI'. vVn,L.\ UER. Yes, sir. 
MI'. SOURWINE. And yon ,\'ere assistant to the President and ex­

ecntive secretary of Chin.a Derense Supplies, 1941-44? 
}\fr. 'VILLAtTER. Yes. slI'. 
~fr. SOPRWJNE. T pll ns ,,·hat. \Vas China Defense Snpplies. 
~h. 1VILT,\FER. China D efense Supplies was an organization-in 

fa et, it "'as a nrla"'al'(> corporution-Sf>.t up in thi s rOllntry, tl1l' mrcl.inm 
thl'Ol1gh whjeh the Chillese Government. operated to obtain its lend-
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lease supplies during World War n, and was the principal back­
stopping agency for General Chennault's Flying Tiger operation dur­
ina the war. 

~:Ir. SOURWINE. y ou were assigned to the Chinese Government first 
to assist in the rormation of the Flying Tigers and later in aH phases 
of the Chinese war effort ~ 

MI'. WILLAUER. That ·is true. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Did you assist in pioneering the so-called hump 

air route from India to China? 
MI'. WILLAUER. I had a great deal to do with that. 
MI'. SOURWINE. And with its operations after it got underway? 
Mr.1VILLAUER. Yes,sir. 
MI'. SOURWINE. About half your time between 1941 and 1944 was 

spent in China and India? 
MI'. WILLAUER. That is right. 
Mr. SOURWINE. y ou were commended by General Chennault, among 

others, for your work there. 
MI'. WILLAUER. That ,ís correcto He wrote me a very nice letter. 
Mr. SOURWINE. In 1944 and 1945 you were Director of the Foreign 

Economics Administration, Far Eastern and Special Territories 
Branch? 

MI'. WILLAUER. That is right. 
Mr. SOURWINE. This included operations in the fields of foreign aid 

and economic intelligence, procurement of strategic material, economic 
warfare, and postwar planning~ 

Mr. WILLAUER. That is right. 
MI'. SOURWINE. You had responsibilit.ies in all those areas ~ 
Mr. WILLAUER. Yeso 
MI'. SOURWINE. From Auaust of 1945 until V-J Day you were spe­

cial representative of the President of the United States in the 
Philíppines? 

Mr. WILLAUER. Thatis right. 
Mr. SOURWINE. What was your assignment there, sid 
MI'. WILLAUER. To try and reconstitute the civilian economy. Con­

currently at that time 1 served also, or continued to serve as Director 
of the Far Eastern Branch of the FEA. 

Mr. SOURWINE. You also had an assignment to arrange wit.h Gen­
eral MacArthur for transition from military to civilian control? 

Mr. WILLAUER. Well, that was the Philippine assignment to which 
we referred. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Yes, sir. 
Now, in 1946 you established residence in China as foreign counsel 

for various organizations ? 
Mr. WILLAUER. Yeso 
MI'. SOURWlNE. Including International Correspondence Schools, 

Time, and others? 
Mr. WILLAUER. And others, yeso 
MI'. SOURWINE. Did you also form a partnership with General Ohen­

nault? 
Mr. WILLAUER. 1 did. 
MI'. SOURWINE. For what purpóse ~ 
MI'. WILLAUER. For the purpose of forming an airline. We par­

ticularly wanted to have an airline there to help in the rehabilitat.ion 
and reconstruction of China. 
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MI'. SOURWINE. And did you form such an airline? 
MI'. WILLAUER. We did. 
MI'. SOURWINE. That v,ras the CAT Airline? 
MI'. WILLAUER. That is correcto 
MI'. SOURWINE. You were its general manaO'er and executive vice 

president, and later became president and vice ~airman of the board? 
MI'. WILLAUER. That is right. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Did you act as adviser to the director of operations .. 

of UNRRA? 
MI'. WILLAUER. 1 did. Informally. 
MI'. SOURWINE. In what area ~ 
MI'. VVILLAUBR. In China, informally. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Who was the director of operations of UNRRA at 

that time? 
MI'. WILLAUER. Ralph Olmstead. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Did you also act as adviser to the Premier of China 

on reconstruction problems ? 
MI'. WILLAUER. Yes;butinformally. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Did you also serve in Shanghai as a member of 

the Committee on Western J urisdiction? 
MI'. WILLAUER. Jurisprudence. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Western J urisprudence ? 
MI'. WILLAUER. Yeso 
MI'. SOURWINE. What was the objective of this committee? 
Mr. VVILLAUER.. We hoped, through influencing "\Vestern-trained 

Chine-se Iawyers, to get a ground swell in favor of a constitutional 
g0vernment in China. 

Mr. SOURWINF.. You were also adviser to various American concerns 
doing business in China? 

MI'. VVILLAUER. Ycs; 1 was. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Now. in connection with the CA\.T airline, that was 

the alr transport faciJity for both UNRRA and EOA, wasn't it? 
MI'. "\VILLAUBR. That is correcto That is the way it started. 
MI'. SounwINE. That is the way U.S. aid got into China? 
MI'. "\VILLAeER. That is how we redistribnted it throngh China. 
MI'. SounwINE. At one time, specifical1y in 1948, CAT airline was 

the largest aircargo carrier in the world, wasn't it? 
MI'. VVULAUER. According to the best statisties ,,-e could tinel. 
MI'. SOURWINE. It had a very high rating by intelligence sources as 

a deterrent to early Red Chinese Communist victory. 
MI'. 'VILL,\lJER. Yes_ That was after the reconstruction phase. 

vVhen the war, the hot war, broke out, after the failure of the Mar­
shal1 mission, and \Ve had real1y hot \Val' between Chiang Kai-shek's 
Torces and the Commie forces, \Ve became more and more carriers of 
military supplies for the Chiang Kai-shek forces; ,ye used tú drop, air­
drop, 01' Ianel under fire all over China in belcaguered cities. 

MI'. SO"CR\VINE. y 011 were the major medium for evacuation of anti­
Commnnist refugees to Hong Kong and Formosa, were you not? 

MI'. WILLAUER. 1 think so. 
Mr. SOlJRWINE. And a very important transport hcility for the 

U-~. Command dmingthe Korean war. 
MI'. VVILLAUER. Yes, indeed-two-thirds of our f1eet was there. 

And we, 1 think, \Vere rated rather highly by that command. 

MI'. SOURWINE. y ou were also an important air transport iacility 
during the struggle in horthern Vietnam? 

MI'. "\VILLAUER. Yeso 
MI'. SOUUWINE. CAT is still operatin~ as an airline, is it not? 
MI'. VVILLAUER. Yes, and it is a fairly large one. 
MI'. SOURWINE. It is operating pretty ,yeH all along the periphery 

of communism in the Orient ~ 
MI'. 'VILLAUER. That is what we do. From Korea down to Bangkok. 
MI'. SOURWINE. After the Chinese Communist victory on the main­

land in 1940, other Chinese airlines defectcil tú the Communists, did 
they not? 

Mr. WILLAUER. They did; two oi them. 
MI'. SOURWINE. And so did the Chinese merchant marine. 
Mr. VVILLAUER. That is correcto 
MI'. SOURWINE. Most of the airline equipment was in Hong Kong 

at the time? 
Mr. WILLAUER. That is riO'ht. 
MI'. SOURWINE. And CAT fought quite a legal battle to get its 

equipment out? 
MI'. WILLAUER. That is right. 'Ve won it after losing it about eight 

or nine times. 'Ve won it in privy council, which is the supreme court 
for colonial matters. 

MI'. SOURWINE. How long did you remain in the Orient and COll­

nected with the CAT Airlines? 
MI'. WILLAUER. Until 1953, the early summer of 1953, when one oi 

my children was killed in an accident, and 1 returned home, in con­
nection with that accident, and at the same time 1 was being ap­
proached by Gen. Bec1ell Smith, who was then the Under Secretary 
of State, as to whether 1 would take on the job of Ambassador to 
Honduras, which 1 later did. 

MI'. SOURWINE. You were appointed to that position in 1054? 
MI'. vVILLAUER. Yes, 1 was. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Now, were yo~ at that time familÍar with the situa­

tion in Guatemala? 
MI'. WILLAUER. 1 had a very extensive briefing on that situation. 
MI'. SOURWINE. By 1054, Guatemala had become controlled by in­

ternational communism, had it not? 
MI'. "\VILLAUER. There was no doubt about it. 
MI'. SOURWINE. There was then in existen ce an anti-Communist 

revolutionary movement? 
MI'. VVILLAUER. Yes, and it was largely basec1 in Honduras. 
Mr. SOURWINE. And ,"I'as it part of your job to assist that movement? 
MI'. "\VILLAUER. Yes; it was. In fact, after the revolution was suc­

cessful, 1 received a telegram from Allen Dulles in which he stated 
in effect that the revolution could not have succeeded but for what 
1 did. 1 am very proud of that telegram. 

1 also received a telegram from Secretary Dulles, which was in more 
generallanguage, complimenting me on my "Work. 

MI'. SOURWINE. y ou seryed 4 years as Ambassador to Honduras? 
MI'. IVILLAUER. Approximately ; yes. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Is it your juelgment, sir-as the committee has been 

infol'med-that you were appointed Ambassador to Honduras mainly 
because of your 15 years of 1r ; ·tical experience in tighting interna­
tional communislll·/ 
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Mr. WILLAUER. This is what 1 was toldo 
Mr. SOURWINE. At the time you were employed ? 
Mr. 'VILLAUER. At the time I was appointed. Actnally, the period

is even longer than that. 
I got my first indoetrinat.ion in eomn1llnism way baek in-from 

Mr. Mandel, aetually, when he \Vas on tite Dies committee, and I was 
in the Criminal DivIsion of t.he Department of Just.iee. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Now, during your 4 years as Ambassador to Hon­
dura.s, there were a series of Crlses, were there not? ~ 

Mr. WILLAUER. Yes; they were terrific. 
:MI'. SOURWINE. Four different governments? 
Mr. WILLAUER. Yeso . 
Mr. SOURWINE. And tú eapsnle this, this period ended with the first 

ireely elecíed government in Honduran history in power? 
Mr. WILLAUER. That is right. 
Mr. SOURWINE. And throughout all of these erises, you were active 

in combating eommunism, and tl'ying to help esta.blish a stable gov­
f'Tnment in Guatemala? 

Mr. 'VILLAUER. No, in Honduras. Tllat was my major work. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Now, after your 4 years as Ambassador to Hon­

duras, were you then appointed Arnbassador to Costa Rica? 
Mr. WILLAUER. 1 was. 
Mr. SOURWINE. And Itow long did you serve there? 
Mr. 'VILLArER. 1 believe 1 actualIy took over the Embassy in May 

of 1958, and I was terminated as of April 30, 1961. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Mr. Ambassaclor, \Vas there something of a team in 

\\'orking to overthrow the Arbenz government in Guatemala, 01' were 
you alone in that operation? 

Mr. 'VILLAUER. There " 'as a team. 
.Mr. SOURWINE.•Jack Puerifoy was clown there? 
Mi'. ,rlLrJAUEH. Yes, Ja.ck \Vas on tlle team over in Guatemala; that 

is the principal mn.n, and "'e IIRd Bob Hill, Amba5sador Robert Hill, 
in Costa Rica., whem there was certain side efl'ects. And \Ve had Am­
bassador Tom Whelan in Xicaragua, where a lot of t.lte activities were 
going. And, of course, there ,,"ere fI number oi CIA operatives in tlle 
pict.ure. 

Mr. S01.;nWINE. 'Vhat "'as }[r. Dulles~ involvement in that area? 
MI'. WILLAUER. Mr. AlIen Dulles? ,
Mr. SOURWINE. Yeso 
Mr. 'VILJ,AUEH. 'Vell, the eIA "'as helping to equip and train the 

nnti-Communist revolutionary forces. 
Mr. SOURWINE. 'Vollld you say you "'ere tlle man in charge in the 

field in t his general aren. oí al! t hese operations ? 
Mr. 'VILLAuER. 1 certainly "'as calIed upon to perform very impor­

tant duties, particlllarIy to keep the Honduran Govel'llment-which 
was scal'cd to cleath about. tite possibilities of thmlselvcs being over­
thl'own-keep them in linc 50 they ,,"ouId allo\\' this revolutional'Y ac­
(ivitv to contillue, based in Honduras. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Do you know of any other instances of tIle suc­
cessful overthrow of a Communist government in this hemisphere? 

~{r. WILLAUER. No. 
Senator DODD. Or any hemisphere? 
Mr. ,yILLA rER. I have never heard of another one. 
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Mr. SOURWINE. NOW, Costa Rica is pretty generally rated as a very 
good example oí effective democracy, perhaps the 'best example oi 
such in Latm America, isn't that right? 

MI'. WILLAUER. Yes; and 1 believe that rating iscorrect. 
MI'. SOURWINE. It has been for a long time an important focal point 

oí non-Communist liberal movements in the Caribbean area? 
MI'. VYILLAUER. Yeso 
MI'. SOURWINE. As a result, close contact with liberal leaders in 

Costa Rica and a number oí other Latin American countries was es­
tablished? 

MI'. WILLAUER. Yeso It was one oi my major duties to maintain 
such contact~-=----

MI'. SouRwINE. Was it part of your job--did you consider it part oi 
your job--to assist in awakening the lea,ders of the surrouncling coun­
tries to the Communist nature oi the Castro regime? 

Mr. WILLAUER. 1 did-insoiar as 1 could do it through my con­
tacts as t.hey came through Costa Rica, 01' through one oi their more 
important leaclers, ex-President Figueres. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Ex-President of what country? 
MI'. WILLAUER. Ex-President of Costa Rica. 
MI'. SOURWINE. When did you first become convinced that the 

Castro regime was Communist? 
MI'. WILLAUER. 1 was very suspicious oi it fairly-well, 1 should say 

toward the last quarter oi 1958, beiore they took power-when 1 heard 
that "Che" Guevara was in the act in a big way, and having met­
crossed his trail, I should say, in the Guatemalan picture, where I 00­
came very mueh álarmed, and then when 1 began to hear, in the latter 
part oi 1948, about-

MI'. SOURWINE. 1958. 
MI'. WILLAUER. 1958-about agradan reiorm, and a iew things 

like this, be~an to remind me of China a great dea!. And my nose be­
gan to twitCI1, in the last quarter oi 1958. 

MI'. SOURWINE. Did you prepare any communications for the State 
Department with regard to your aroused worries about the Com­
munist nature oí the Castro regime? 

MI'. WILLAUER. 1 did, but not in 1958. On January 26, 1959-1 
wiII have to give you a little background to answer this question, 1 
think, sir, if you will permit me, MI'. Chairman. 

Senator DODD. Oí course, MI'. Ambassador, go right ahead. 
Mr. 'YILLAUER. On January 26, 1959, my suspicions having been 

very, vcry strongly aroused, I had a conierence with ex-President 
Figueres at lunch. 

MI'. SOURWINE. This was 25 days or 26 days after Castro came into 
power? 

MI'. \VILLAUER. That is correcto And 1 said to MI'. Figueres "You 
and your liberal group of Beta.ncomt, Mllnoz Marin, and others, oí 
('ourse, put. this man into oower, 01' at Icast supporled him very 
strongly. And I fce!, ~1r. Figneres, that tlle chances are very strong 
that, he \\'ill be 'dominnted by commnnism, if he is not alreacly a Com­
munist. Anc] how clo you feel n.bont it?" 

He saio, "'Ypll, 1 am worriecl about. this mall, bnt 1 don't think he 
i8 going to go this way." 
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1 then said, "Well, if it does go this way, ii 1 prove to be right, you 
and the liberal movement wi'll be forever discredited unless you do 
something about it, and do it quick." 

And after some discussion along these lines, he said, "WeH, you 
have got me realIy worried." 

And 1 then said, "Well, what are you going to do about it?" 
Re said, "WeIl, in 2 weeks"-actually he said, "On February 13, 

President Betancourt is going to be inaugurated, and 1 and the rest of 
our liberal tearn are going toall be there, and we will discuss this 
matter." 

As later proved-which 1 will go on and tell you about later-this 
" 

'Nas done, and it had certain results. 
On the 27th of January, the day aiter this conversation, 1 reported 

it in iull in a letter to Assistant Secretary Rubottom, with copies to 
the Secretary of State and other interested officers in the Department. 

Mr. SOURWINE. May 1 ask at this point-it may seem to be an ex­
traneous question-is this common practice, to file a report and to send 
copies to others in the Department? 

Mr. VVILLAUER. 1 felt that it was perfectly proper practice. 1 don't 
know how common it is. But 1 have always felt this-that the dis­
tribution machinery in the Department is clumsy, and oue copy of a 
dispatch is inclined to sit on a fellow's desk for a long time. And, 
therefore, when 1 had a matter as hot as this one seemed to me, it 
seemed best to send it to all concerned directly. 

Mr. SOunwINF.. Now, díd you follow up after thi s communication 
with a series of recommendations to the Department? 

Mr. WILLAUER. 1 did. 
MI'. SOUmVINF:. On overall U.S. policy in Latin America, and spe­

cificall,V on the Castro Communist dictatorship problem 1 
MI'. ·WU,LAUEU. 1 certainly did. There is a long series of letters, 

the dates of which 1 will furnish the committf'e. 1 may not include 
all of them, but if you would like t.he dates 1 will give thcm to yon. 

MI'. SOURWINF:. 00 ahead. 
MI'. Wn,LATTER. This letter which 1 mentioned already of tTanuary 

27,195!). Yebruary 3, 1959; March 10, 1n!)!): March 13, 1059: A pril16, 
1959 ; A¡ml 30, 1%9; January 29,1960; March 8, 1960; March 22, 
1960 ; MaTch 30, 1960 ; .Tnly 18, 1960; and a dispatch, No. 14 of our 
Embassy, of .Tuly 11, 1960. 

This was supplemented by a number of trips whi ch 1 took myself, 
sometimes at my o\\'n expense, to try to explain my views. }

MI'. ~orRwI:-¡E. To whom in the Department did you explain your 
\'iews on t,hose tri ps? 

MI'. \Vn,LAJ1ER. On all 0ccasions to Mr. Rnbott.om, On certain 
occasions to Secretary Herter. On one occasion to Deputy Dnder 
Secretary fol' Politi<':11 Affairs Robert l\fllrphy. On all occasions to 
Mr, Allan Stpwart, \\"ho "'as the officer in charge of Central America. 

}\f1', S()TmWINF. , He \Vas t,he rlesk officer? 
)11', \VTLLAUF.R. The desk offirer for Central American countries and 

Panarna. 
Thpre may ha VP been others, bllt those were t he most prominent. 
And a<lc!ilionalJy, of course, 1 had a great dea} of contact over in the 

CTA. principally wit.h Col. J. C. King, who I'l1ns Latin American 
.\ffairs, ,,' ith Richard Dissell, and others. And Allen Dulles himself. 
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Mr. SOURWINE. Now, this was, of course, a developing situation. 
Some changes were rapid. 
But is it flur to say tnat the general tenor of all of these communi­

cations was the same? 
Mr. WILLAUER. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SOURWINE. In what way? Were you sounding an alarm against 

Castro communism in aH instances? 
Mr. WILLAUER. 1 was. 
Might 1 give you a little background? 
Mr. SOURWINE. Yes. And tell us, if you will, in your own words, 

what you were urging the Department to do. 
MI'. WJLLAUER. Well, first, by way of background, following up 

the meeting of Figueres and his liberal group on February 13, at the 
Betancourt inauguration, Figueres returned to-returned on March 
13 01' 14-no; it was a little before that. But 1 saw him after his 
return on March 13, 1959, and he had-he told me that his group 
had appointed him to go to Ravana and to talk sense, 01' to try to 
talk sense, with Castro. That they were worried about it, and that 
Figueres was first to survey the situation, see if it was along the lines 
that 1 had claimed it was, and if he found that things were not all 
right he was to talk sense to him. He was using this--the occasion 
for this trip was an invitation which Castro had issued to Figueres, 
as a great revolutionary figure himself. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Figueres had assisted Castro with certain arms and 
ammunition? 

Mr. WILLAUER. That is right. And there was to be a labor rally, 
and Figueres was to come and make one of the principal speeches. 
And, incidentally, 1 assisted Figueres in some parts of his speech, by 
giving him some ideas. Ris speech, as it ultimately resulted, ~an 
arol1lld this theme: That whatever you may feel about libera}¡sm 
or communism, there is a cold war going on, and Latin America 
must be on the side of the 1'nitecl Shttes ancl a~aiJl st. Russia in a 
showdown between those two si des. Figueres tola me in the process 
that he \Vould have liked to have played up the Communist angle 
more. Hut he felt. he could be more elfective if he dicln't em¡:>llaslze 
that as much as tha necessity of being on the side of the United 
States. 

1 think a11 of you know that he went to Ravana, he was unable to 
consult with Castro, Castro refused to see him. 

'.rhe only words he ever had with Castro were when he, Figueres, 
\Vas mounting the rostrum to make his speech, and they were very 
short ",ords. 

Figueres started to make this speech. A labor leader named David 
Salvador grabbed the microphone away from him. Castro took over~ 
and denounced Figueres in no uncertain terms as a reactionary ana 
called him all sorts of nasty names. Figueres then returned from 
this trip with two or three of his top advisers. 

1 talked to aH of them. And every one of them, from Figueres 
on clown, said, "We have no doubt that this matter is a Communist 
matt.er, 01' if it is not already it is about to be." 

The date of Figueres' return was about March 13,1959. 
In any event, that is when 1 had my talks with him and reported 

this to the Department. in a letter once again distributed to Rubottom 
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Mr. WILLAUER. This is what 1 was toldo 
Mr. SOURWINE. At the time you were employed? 
){r.1VILLAUEH. At the time 1 \\'as appointed. Actnally, the period 

is even longer than that. 
1 got my first indoctrination in comll1lmism way back in-from 

MI'. Mandel, actually, when he \\'as on the Dies committee, and 1 was 
in the Criminal DivIsion of the Department of Justice. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Now, during your 4 years as Ambassador to Hon­
duras, there \Vere a series of cnses, were there not? 

MI'. WILLAUER. Yes; they were terrific. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Four different governments? 
Mr.1VILLAUER. Yeso 
MI'. SOURWINE. And tú capsule this, this period ended with the first 

freely elected government in Honduran history in power? 
MI'. WILLAUER. That is right. 
MI'. SOURWINE. And throughout all of these crises, you \Vere active 

in combating communism, and trying to help establish a stable gov­
p.rnment in Guatemala? 

Mr.1VILLAUER. No, in Honduras. That was my major \Vork. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Now, after your 4 years as Ambassador to Hon-

Juras, \vere you then appointed Ambassador to Costa Rica? 
Mr. WILLAUER. 1 was. 
Mr. SOURWINE. And ho\V long did you serve there? 
Mr. WILLkCER. 1 believe 1 actually took over the Embassy in May 

of 1958, and 1 \Vas terminated as of Arril 30, 1961. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Mr. Ambassaelor, \Vas there something of a team in 

,,'orking to overthro\V the Arbenz govel'llment in Guatemala, 01' ",ere 
you alone in that operation? 

Mr.1VILLAUER. There was a team. 
MI'. SOURWINE.•Jack Puerifoy \Vas down there? 
Me. "YILLAUER. Yes, Jade \Vas on the team over in Guatemala; that 

is the principal man, and \\'e )¡ad Boh Hill, Ambassador Robert Hill, 
in Costa Rica, where there WM cerüLin side etrects. And \Ve had Am­
bassador Tom 1VheIan in Nicaragua, where a lot. of t-he activities ,,'ere 
going. And, of course, there \\'ere l\ number of CrA operatives in the 
picture. 

Mr. SOURWINF:. 1Vhat was }[r. Dulles' involvement in that area? 
Mr. WILLAUER. Mr. Allen Dulles? 

~MI'. SOURWINE. Yes. 
MI'. 1VILLAUEH. 1Vell, the erA \\'as heIping to equip and train the 

nnti-Communist revolutionary forces. 
MI'. SOURWINE. vVollld you say you \\'ere tlle man in charge in the 

field in this general area of all these operations? 
Mr. \VlLLAUER. 1 cel'tainly was called upon to perfol'm very impor­

tant dutios, particularly to keep the Hondul'an Govel'llment-which 
\\'as scal'ed to death abollf. the possibilities of thC'lllseIves being over­
thro\\'n-keep them in line so they would allow Ihis l'evolutionary ac­
livity to continlle, based in Honduras. . 

Mr. SOURWINE. Do you kno\V of any other mstances of the suc­
cessful overthrow of a Communist government in this hemisphel'e? 

MI'. WILLAUER. No. 
Senator DODD. Or any hemisphere ? 
Mr. 'VILLAUER. 1 have nevel' heard of anotherone. 
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MI'. SOURWINE. Now, Costa Rica is pretty generally rated as a very 
good example of effective democracy, perhaps the best example of 
such in Latm America, isn't that right? 

MI'. WILLAUER. Yes; and 1 believe that rating is correcto 
Mr. SOURWINE. It has been for a long time an important focal point 

of non-Communist liberal rnovements in the Caribbean area? 
Mr.1VILLAUER. Yeso 
Mr. SOURWINE. As a result, close contact with liberal leaders in 

Costa Rica and a number of other Latin American countries was es­
tablished? 

Mr. WILLAUER. Yeso It \Vas one of my major duties to maintain 
such con tacto _ 

Mr. SouRwIÑE. Was it part of your job-did you consider it part of 
your job-to assist in awakening the, leaders of the surrounding coun­
tries to the Communist nature of the Castro regime? 

Mr. WILLAUER. r did-insofar as r could do it through my con­
tacts as they carne through Costa Rica, or through one of their more 
important leaders, ex-President Figueres. 

MI'. SOURWINE. Ex-President of what country? 
Mr. WILLAUER. Ex-President of Costa Rica. 
Mr. SOURWINE. men did you first become convinced that the 

Castro regime was Cornmunist? 
Mr. WILLAUER. r was very suspicious of it fairly-well, 1 should say 

toward the last quarter of 1958, before they took power-when 1 heard 
that "Che" Guevara was in the act in a big way, and having met­
crossed his trail, 1 should say, in the Guatemalan picture, where 1 00­
came very much álarmed, and then when 1 OOgan to hear, in the latter 
part of 1948, about-

Mr. SOURWINE. 1958. 
Mr. WILLAUER. 1958-about agrarían reform, and a few things 

like this, be~an to rernind me of China a great deal. And my nose be­
gan to twitch, in the last quarter of 1958. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Did you prepare uny communications for the State 
Departrnent with regard to your aroused worries about the Com­
munist nature of the Castro regime? 

Mr. WILLAUER. 1 did, but not in 1958. On January 26, 1959-1 
will have to give y,0u a little background to answer this question, 1 
think, sir, if you WlIl permit me, Mr. Chairman. 

Senator DODD. Of course, Mr. Ambassador, go right ahead. 
Mr. 1VILLAUER. On January 26, 1959, my suspicions having been 

very, very strongly aroused, r had a conference with ex-President 
Figueres at lunch. 

Mr. SOURWINE. This \Vas 25 days 01' 26 days after Castro came into 
power? 

MI'. \VILLAUER. That, is correcto An(1 1 saicl to Mr. Figueres "Yon 
and yonr liberal group of Betancoul't, Mnnoz Marin, and others, oí 
('ourse. put this man into no\\'er, 01' at least supporh:~d him very 
strongly. ¿"-nel r fee!, Mr. Figueres, that the chancc,.c; are very strong 
fhat. he ",ill be dominated by commllnism, if he is not already a Com­
munist. AmI haw doyou feeI abont it?" 

He said, "'Vel1 , r am \\'orried about this man, lmt 1 don't think he 
is going to go this way." 
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1 then said, "Well, if it doos go this way, if 1 prove to be right, you 
and the liberal movement wi'll be forever discredited unless you do 
something about it, and do it quick." 

And after some discussion along these tines, he said, "We11, you 
have got me really worried." 

And 1 then said, "Well, what are you going to do about it?" 
He said, "Well, in 2 weeks"-actua11y he said, "On February 13, 

President Betancourt is going to be inaugurated, and 1 and the rest of 
our liberal team are going toall be there, and we will discuss this ~ matter." 

As later proved-which 1 will go on and te11 you about later-this 
was done, and it had certain results. ~ 

On the 27th of January, the day after this conversation, 1 reported 
it in fuU in a letter to Assistant Secretary Rubottom, with copies to 
the Secretary of State and other interested officers in the Department. 

Mr. SOURWINE. May I ask at this point-it may seem to be an ex­
traneous question-is this common practice, to file a report and to send 
copies to others in the Department? 

Mr. WILLAUER. 1 felt that it was perfectly proper practice. 1 don't 
know how common it is. But I have always felt this-that the di s­
tribution machinery in the Department is clumsy, and one copy of a 
dispat.ch is inclined to sit on a fellow's desk for a long time. And, 
therefore, when I had a matter as hot as this one seemed to me, it 
seemed best to send it to all concerned directly. 

Mr. SOURWINF.. Now, did you follow up after this communication 
with a series of recommendations to the Department? 

Mr. WILLAUER. 1 did. 
M.r. SOURWINF.. On overall U.S. policy in Latin America, and spe­

cifically on the Castro Communist dictatorship problem? 
MI'. WILLAUER. 1 certainly did. There is a long series of letters, 

the dates of which I will furnish the committee. 1 may not include 
all of them, but if y011 would like the dates 1 will give them to yOll. 

Mr. SOURWJNF.. 00 ahead. 
Mr. ~Tn,LAm;R. This Iett.er which I mentioned alrpady of .hnnary 

27,1959. February 3,1959; March 10, 1D5D: March 13, 1059; April16, 
]959; April 30, 1959; January 29, 1960; March 8, 1960; March 22, 
1960; March 30, 1960; .Tuly 18, 1960; and a dispatch, No. 14 of our 
Rmbassy, of .Tuly 11, 1960. 

This was supplement.ed by a number of trips ",hich 1 took myself, 
sometimes at my o"'n expense, to try to explain my views. 

Mr. SOTTRWINF.. To whom in the Department (lid you explain your ~ 
l'iews on those trips? 

!\{r. ,Vn,LAT'ER. On n11 occasions to MI'. Rnbottom. On certain 
occasions to Secretary Hprter. On one occasion to Deputy Dnder 
Secretary fOI" Politic:1l Affairs nobert Mnrphy. On al! occasions to 
MI'. Allan Stewart, \\"ho \Vas the officer in charge of Centra.} America. 

MI'. SOUHWINE. He was the elesk officC'r? 
Mr. 'VILLAUF.R. The desle officer for Central American countries and 

Panama. 
TllE're m:1y ha VE' heen othE'rs, bllt those 'were t he most prominent. 
And a(loition:111y, of course, 1 had a great deal of contact over in the 

(;IA, principally \vith Col. J. C. King, who nms Latin American 
.\ffairs, \\"ith Richard Bissell, and others. And Allen Dulles himself. 
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Mr. SOURWINE. Now, this was, of course, a developing situation. 
Some changes were rapid. 
But is it falr to say that the general tenor of all of these communi­

cations was the same ~ 
MI'. WILLAUER. Yes, sir. 
Mr. SOURWINE. In what way? Wereyou sounding an alarm against 

Castro communism in all instances? 
Mr. WILLAUER. 1 was. 
Might I gi ve you a little background? 
Mr. SOURWINE. Yeso And ten us, if you will, in your own words, 

what you were urging the Department to do. 
Mr. WILLAUER. We11, first, by way of background, foUowing up 

the meeting of Figueres and his liberal group on February 13, at the 
Betancourt inauguration, Figueres returned to-returned on March 
13 or 14-no; it was a little befo re that. But I saw him after his 
return on March 13, 1959, and he had-he told me that his group 
had appointed him to go to Ravana and to talle sense, or to try to 
talk sen se, with Castro. That they were worried about it, and that 
Figueres was first to survey the situation, see if it was along the lines 
that I had claimed it was, and if he found that things were not an 
right he was to talk sense to him. Re was using this-the occasion 
for this trip was an invitation which Castro had issued to Figueres, 
as a great revolutionary figure himself. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Figueres had assisted Castro with certain arms and 
ammunition? 

Mr. WILLAUER. That is right. And there was to be a labor rally, 
and Figueres was to come and make one of the principal speeches. 
And, incidentally, 1 assisted Figueres in some parts of his speech, by 
giving him some ideas. Ris speech, as it ultimately resulted, ran 
arollnd this theme: That whatever you may feel about liberalism 
or communism, there is a cold war going on, and Latin America 
must be on the side of the Fnited S1ates ano against Russia in a 
showdown between those two sides. Figueres told me in the process 
that he would have lileed to have played up the Communist angle 
more. Hut he feH he couJd be more etfective if he didn't emphaslze 
that as much as the necessity of being on the si de of the United 
States. 

1 think a11 of you know that he went to Ravana, he was unable to 
consult with Castro. Castro refused to see him. 

The only words he ever had with Castro were when he, Figueres, 
was mounting the rostrum to make his speech, and they were very 
short words. 

Figueres started to make this speech. A labor leader named David 
Salvador grabbed the microphone away from him. Castro took over, 
and denounced Figueres in no uncertain terms as a reactionary and 
called him all sorts of uasty names. Figueres then returned from 
this trip with two or three of his top advisers. 

1 talked to aU of them. And every one of them, from Figueres 
on down, said, "We have no doubt that this matter is a Communist 
matter, or if it is not already it is about to be." 

The date of Figueres' return was about March 13, 1959. 
In any event, that is when 1 had my talks with him and reported 

this to the DepartmC'llt in a letter once again distributed to Rubottom 
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a.nd the others. I thought that this was particularly significant 00­
cause it illustrated that even the liberals who would be inclined to 
favor the man that they had put in a power were at that early date 
convinced that they backed the wrong horse, and that this thing ,vas 
headed surely for communism. 

Now, the second part of your question, íf I remember it correctly, 
Mr. Sourwine, was what was the general nature of my recommenda­
tions. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Yes, sir. 
Mr. WILLAUER. The general nature was that we should try to get, 

in the first instance, the Organization of American States more ac­
tively interested by feeding to them all of this type of information 
on a very concerted basis, beca use at this time the general feeling 
around the hemisphere WaS that this Castro thing was nothing more or 
less ihan an overdue social revolution. Simultaneously there was go­
ing on in liberal circles, Latin American liberal circles, a movement 
to have the OAS Charter changed so that dictators could not belong 
to the Organization. 

And I . sugs-estecl, by-by dictators they \Vere talking about dic­
tators of the nght. 

And 1 suggested that if t!lis tendency grew into a real movement, 
that we ought to insist and arrange that the exclusion should incItlcle 
dictators of the left as well as of the right who, of course, are more 
dangerous, since they are backed by Russia. 

In the early stages that was the tactic that I was recommending in 
genera~ and appears in these letters ,vhich you have been tolcl about. 

Mr. ;::;OURWINE. Did you make arrangements for the use of Costa 
Rica as the site for the OAS mcetings of August 1960 on the Domini­
can and Cuban problems? 

Mr. VVILLAUER. Yes, at the request of the Department. 
MI'. SOURWINE. And you asslsted the Costa Rican Government in 

~.he prevention of a major Communist effort to sabotage these meet­
mgs. 

Mr. WILLAUER. Yes, we hacl quite a setup there. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Tel1 us about that Communist effort at sahotage. 
MI'. 1VILLAUER. Well, we had very reliable informn.tion that they 

had sent in almost unlimited funds to try to get riots goin~ and the· 
usual techniques, the Bogotá technique. And what happened 
was t.hat I arranged, and with the assistanee of my staff to alert 
the Costa Rican public and their oflicials to this information, and \Ve 
helped them form voluntary citizens detective-voluntary citizens 
committee, voluntary detectives, and other countermeasures, in addi­
tion to the oflicial measures, to put a stop to this thing. 

And the resuIt of that was that there \Vas practical1y no trouble at 
all. 

I must say I am not taking credit for what the Costa Rican peopIe 
d i<!. I j lIst assistecl t hem in some of the techniques. 

Senatol' DODD. vVell, I think yon are very modest, if I may inter­
rupt. I think you deserve great credit. I want that to appear on the 
record. 

Mr. 'VILLAUER. Thank you, sir. 
MI'. SOURWINF:. You sent all these commullications to the Depart­

mento What reachon, if any, did you get from the Depal'tment, 01' 
ofliciaIs of the Department? 
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Mr. WILLAUER. Well, I think, if I might go back a bit, there is a 
very important first step in this thing, which was the El Salvador 
Conference, because this was the first real reaction. 

In April, if my memory do es not fail me-I made sorne notes of a 
lot of these things, because I thóught it would be important-in 
Apl)I 9 throngh 11 ",e ltad a meeting--

Mr. SOURwlxE. "'hat year? 
Mr. WILLACER. Of 1959-we had a meeting in El Salvador of all 

the a.mbassadot's, .:\.mel':can amba,ssadors, whose countries touched 
upon the CariLbean Basi ll. I think there \Yere 14 of us there. The 
meeting was hended np br Deput-y llnder Secretul'y Loy Renclerson, 
and by Assistant Secre! ¡iry Rnbottom, and ,laS attended by other 
oflicials, besides the amuassadors. 

At that meeting, some very peculiar things happened, or at least 
they seemed peclllia,r to me. 

Before the meeting \\"as cOllvened, I hall a privn.te cOllversation with 
Ambassador Bonsa!. Ambassadol' JoJm Cabot, om current. Ambas­
sador in Brazil, \ras \\'ith me at the time. I don't know whether I 
usked this qllestion 01' Cabot asked the question, but. olle of us asked 
BonsaI w]¡¡1.t he thought of Castro. And much to my amazement, in 
view of what I have told yon before, of what I had thought abont 
him, and what Figueres thought about him, anc1 the rest of the il,teJ­
ligence, he said that he wasn't abad fellow, that he was, of comse, 
eccentric, that he-Jet me just refer to a fe'" notes here-he said he 
wasn't such abad fello"" and he thought that he probabIy could be 
handIed, and he, BonsaJ, pl'obably conJd handle him, if he ",as Ieft 
aJone. 

Re said he was in favor of a soft glove appl'oach, of an approach 
of patience-and very serions considern.tion of a possibility of aiding 
Castro, if he got himself into an economic jamo Re saicl that Castro 
\Vas a terrific person, physically and mental1y, he \Vas !al' from crazy, 
that he "'as not living 011 pills, and that he \Vas not a Communist. 

1Vell, part of this occuned in this priyate convel'sation. The rest 
occllrred in the Op<'1I meeting which startec1 thereafter. And 1 have 
difliclllty in separating ill my memory which is which. 

But all of \\'hat 1 said came out in tIle open meeting. 
At this point., Ambassndor Rill and I, ",ho felt very stl'ongly that 

this ",as developing into n Communist situation, if it alreadv was not 
one, and \Ye al'guecl as sLl'Ongly as \\'e could fol' a posit.ion oE the Con­
ferenee to the e{fect thnt this "'as a c1angerous potentinlly Communist 
situation, and thnt. om communiqlle 01' report to the Secretary of State 
should inelnde recommenclations fol' :1. more extensive conccntration 
011 the proulem, t.hl'ough the O~\S, and any other media that \Ye COlild 
ascertain. 

And there \\"as a. very, very I¡cated dispute in t.his Conferenee. 
The only support Hill ancl I got at all, except from Rubottom OIl 

occnsiol1-I mllst. sny thn.t Rubottom seemed I'athel' skeptical of Bon­
sal's view, but-he ,,"as chail'ing the meeting, it wasn't realIy his 
place, 1 sllppose, to arglle with him. 

But he sho\\'ed some skepticism. 
The only SllppOl't \\'e, got \\'as from OllI' Ambassador lVheIan. He 

\\':1.S, llntiIl'ecentJy, out' Ambnssador to Nicaragua. 
Senator DODD. And a very good one, I might add. 
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Mr. WILLAUER. Now, not to give you aH the details of this very in­
volved meeting, an impasse arose about this communique, in which 
Ambassador Hill said that he could not sign a soft communique, and 
he would ha ve to file a sepnrate report to the Secretary, or protest this 
thing, unless it could be modified. 

And I supported him in that position. 
Finally, the impasse got so bad that Mr. Henderson and Mr. Rubot­

tom took Mr. Hill into a private room, and asked me to come along. I 
was able to suggest certain language which, while it wasn't as strong 
as either Hill or I wanted, at least to t,hose who knew the background, 
it would point up what we thought \Vas required to ~e done. 

But I must say on the whole, even, that compromlse language was 
pretty weak, and, in my opinion, inadequate to the situation. 

I don't know, at this point, whether I have fuUy answered your 
question. 

Iwonder--
Mr. SOURWINE. The question was "What reaction, if any, you got 

from the State Department or officials of the Department to this series 
of communications and recornmendations that you had been sending 
up?" 

Mr. WILLAUER. Yeso 
"\Vell, that is wh:y this meeting is really the first real reaction I got. 

I mean I got certam letters back. N one of them that I received back 
accepted my point of view. Most of them argued against it. 

MI'. SOURWINE. Well, did you hear from Allan Stewart about this 
series of recommendations? 

MI'. WALLAUER. I didn't hear anything directly, other than in con­
versations, excepting one very important thing which carne to me 
indirectly. 

On one oecasion, my deputy clúef of mission, the man ",ho is the 
No. 2 in the Embassy, Mr. Roy l. Kimmel, a career Foreign Service 
officer, who was just retired, was in vVashington on leave or consulta­
tion, and had a conversation ",ith Mr. Stewart which Mr. Kimmel 
reported to me on his return. According to Mr. Kimmel, Mr. Stewart 
saId the foIlowing: He said, "First, \Villauer is going to get nowhere 
with these recommendations. They are not going to do any good. 
And, second, we are going to put a stop to his frequent visits to 
Washington, trying to seU these ideas." 

Mr. SOURWINE. y ou were never told, by Mr. Stewart OI" anyone 
else, to desist from making sueh recommendaJions? 

Mr. WILLAUER. Indeed not. And, in fact, from Secretary Herter 
himself I received severaJ letters, commending me on the reporting 
and the ideas that I ,,·as adv<1ncing. . 

Mr. SOURWINE. You know, then, that Secretary Herter got vour 
letters and your recommendations? • 

Mr. WILLAUER. Yeso 
Mr. SOURWINE. The copies you sent to him were recei"ed by him ~ 
Mr. Wn,LAUF.R. Certain of them "ere. 1 particlllarly remember 

that he commended me for my report OH tlle Figlleres sitnation, for 
one. As to the others, I cannot be sure, because I don't ha ve the files; 
they are all secret, and 1 don't have access to t,hem. 

MI'. SOURWIl'm. "\Vere you familiar with the material of an intelli­
gence nature about Cuba and Castro which was coming out of the 
State Department during this pel'iod? ~ 
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Mr. VVILLAUER. No, not alI of it. 
Mr. SOURWINE. You saw someof it? 
Mr. "\iVILLAUER. 1 saw sorne of it. 
Mr. SOURWINE. vVell, what was the nature of that wruch you saw? 
Mr. "\iVILLAUER. vVeIl, 1 " -as far from impressed that the general 

tenor of what I saw--
Mr. SOURWINE. ""Vhat " ,as that. general tenor? 
Mr. "\Vn,LAuER. Well, the general tenor is: We are not sure what 

this thing is, it may be just an agrarian social reform, the Cornmies 
are gaining in some fields, but, generaJly speaking, Castro is a strong 
and dedicated persono That is the general tenor of what 1 saw. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Now, you have a sItuation, do you not? You were 
sending inteBigence in--

Mr. WILLAUER. Yeso 
Mr. SornwINE (continuing). Which clearly portrayed the Castro 

regime as Communist 01' Communist controlled ? 
Mr. WILLAUER. That is right. 
Mr. SOURWINE. You saw other intelligence of this nature going to 

the Department? 
Mr. VVILLAUER. Yeso 
Mr. SOURWINE. y ou did not see any intelligence of this nature 

coming from the Department for dissemination to the field? 
Mr. \VILLAUER. Precious little in my area. 
Mr. SOURWfNE. The evalunted intelligence, which 1 t.hink is the 

proper na me for it, which you SU\V coming out of the Department, 
had a different tenor? 

Mr. Wn,LAUER. ,Vell, such as 1 saw. But, remember, the way the 
thing is institutionalized, do,,·n in my' area it was just the acciclent of 
my contacts with Figueres and the lIberal movement and my general 
knowJedge of commullism thnt got me into the Cub:ll1 act at al!. And, 
therefore, 1 was not on the l'eceiving 1ine of the direct illtelligence, 
that is, the whole voJume of tIJe intelligence. 

Mr. SOUHWINE. Yeso Anc1 you do not know what that was? 
Mi". "\~TlI,LAUER. And 1 do no·t know what that ,vas. 1 mean \Ve would 

get monthly swnmaries and things of that sort. But not the day-to­
day {iow. 

Mr. SOURWINE. -xo,v, in October 1960 you were appointed delegate 
to the U.N. General AssembJy, as a member of Secretar)' Herter's 
personal staff, were you not? 

MI'. WILLAUER. 1 \Vas. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Your job included liaison with all Latin American 

delegations? 
Mr. 'VILLAUER. That is correcto 
Mr. SOURWINE. You were subsequently, in December 10, 1960, ap­

pointed Assistant Secretary of State? 
Mr. ""VILLAUlm. Special Assistant to the Secretary. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Special Assistant to the Secretary of State. 
And when did you leave that post? 
Mr. WILLAUER. OfficialIy as of April 30 of this yenr. 
MI'. SOURWINE. Now, dicl you have functions as Special A"sistant 

to Secretary Herter which involved dealing wit,h the ClA and with 
the anti-Castro Cuban factions? 

Mr. WILLAUER. Yes, l did. But ii 1 might-if you will permit me, 
there is sorne necessary background before 1 can get into that. 
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Senator DODD. Go right ahead. 
Mr. SOURWINE. l am jESt trying to open this up, not to steer it, Mr. 

Chairman. 
Mr. WILLAUER. l approoiate that. 
On April 30, 1959, l wrote a letter, which is mentioned in this list 

oí letters, to MI'. Rubottom), reviewing the situation again, sinee we 
had our conÍerenee in El ;:;alvador, and concluded the leHer by a 
strong recommendation sayin~ that the intelligenee conununity should 
be convened, and that they shOuld be askcd the spooific question oí 
whether Cuba and Castro, and Castro's government, was dominated 
by communism, was not dominated, 01' to what degree it was domi­
nated. 

What l was talking about, although l didn't use this phrase, is what 
we call a national intelligence estimate which, as you gentlemen know, 
is a very Íormal document, can only be gotten in the usual conrse by 
the request oí the Secretary oí State 01' some other high official, such 
as the President, 01' Sooretary oí Defense, under the orders of the 
Security Council, l believe the procedures aTe, and requires the intelli­
genee community to sit down and fish, cut bait, 01' go ashore, on the 
question that they are asked. 

What I wanted to do was to make sure that the President got 
himself such a document, because had it been prepared it would have 
been inevitable that he would see it. In other words, Írom my con­
versations and the reactions that I was getting, that there was at least 
enough confusion in the lower echelons of the State Department as to 
just what this was, that the aIarm bells were not being rung high 
enough up in the chain oí command. And l was sure that iÍ l couId 
get an NlE, national intelligence estima te, that the alarm bells would 
be rungo l was particuIarly sure because l later came up to Washing­
ton, in connection with this recommendation, and l talked to the CIA 
people, who would have been preparing this. They were very anxious 
to prepare such an estímate, and told me that they eertainly would 
label this thing communism. 

Now, the reason that. is background is that it got me-my 
difficulties in getting this idea accepted, got me pretty much to the 
attention of a little higher oohelon than Rubottom in the Department, 
on how l felt about this thing, and what l wanted to do about it, and 
I think in part led dirootly to this final assignment of mine. 

l might say, parenthetically, that, in my opmion, if a national intel­
ligenee estimate had been prepared at that time, and it had come out 
the way the ClA toId me that it wouId come out, this invasion effort 
wouId have been commenced at 1east 9 months earlier, and thereby 
would have had at least a 50-percent better chance of success than it 
did. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Now, returning to the question oí your functions as 
sJ>ecial assistant to Secretary Herter, which involved dealing with the 
ClA and with the antí-Castro Cuban Íactions, what were your ÍUnc­
tions there ~ 

MI'. WILLAUER. Mr. Herter called me into his offiee on December 10, 
]960. He said, "President Eisenhower and l have a very special job 
which we have chosen you to do iÍ you are prepared to accept it." He 
then said "what we want you to do is this: There has been going on 
sinee March 17, 1960, the preparations oí an invasion, backed by the 
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crA, but run by Cubans. There is quite a lot of doubts about whether 
this ,Plan is correct, what the timing should be, various problems about 
pullmg the thing together. l want you to be the senior partner of a 
partnership of two people. Your junior partner will be a top erA 
mano And you will report to"-and he switched legal terminology 
here to "a board of directors"- of Dnder Secretary level, who were 
set up under the Eisenhower administration to deal with this type of 
&ituation. "yOH are to have access to every piece of information, you 
are not to do anything in writing that you can avoid putting down on 
paper. But get in there and take a good hard look at this thing. 
Give us your real opinion on it." 

And so 1 went to ,vork. r coulcln't go to work that day, because r 
had a previous speaking engagement on the eoast. But 011 the 15th 
of December I went to work on that and continlled, and 1 had a num­
ber of suggestions to m¡l,ke and changes in the plan that r thought 
ought to be done, and one thing 01' another 1ike this. I might say 
parenthetical1y that r felt one oí the great "'eaknesses of t.he ~Ian was 
the Iack of pl'ovision of top air CO \'er for the low-leve1 strafing mis­
sions of B-:-26 bombers which were supposed to carry out the beach­
hGad. And r feIt that th¡tt top level l:over should come from jets. 

Now, r am BOt a military man, bllt 1 lived at the right hand of Gen­
eral Chennault from 1942 until 1953, and 1 hncl absorbed quite a little 
about air stra t.egy, naturnJly, from him. 

W"ell, there \Vere certain problems about how those jets could be 
supplied, and one thing or another like that. There \Vere also prob­
Iems about the Joint Chiefs of Staff not having been cut in until r got 
them in. There was another very imporlant thing which r ,,"ould 
prefer not to go into, because we might have to use it, but a device 
which r think should have been added to this thing. 

MI'. SounwINE. May we go completeIy off the record? 
Mr. \VILLAUER. Yeso 
(Discussion off the record.) 
MI'. SOURWINE. Bacle on the record. 
Mr. 1VILLAUER. 'Vell , continuing with my functions, both Tom 

Mann and 1 felt that, if \Ye were to ulldertake t !lis Íln-H,sion effort­
we were Bot convinced aJ this poillt ,,·hether it shonld be clOIl C 01' 

not-­
MI'. SOURWINE. 'Vho '\'ns TOIn Mann ~ 
MI'. 'VILLAUER. He \Vas titen the Assistant Secretnry of State for 

Latin American Affairs. 
He is now onr Ambnssa.dor to Mexico. H e and 1 "'ere both con­

vineed that this thing ShOllld not be done 01' un<1ertaken unless there 
\Vas practically no chnnce that it ,,"onld fai1, and t hat \Ye shon1d ha ve 
to commit ourselves in a.dva.nce to st>e that it. \\' as bneked up, so that it 
could not fail. 

Now, r continned working, drawing together these strings, formll 
1a.t.in~ my ideas, talkin{!", c ros~-exnmill i ng r~opl('. 

Incidentally, some of my olc1 pilot friends \ \' (' 1'(> in 0 11 the tmining 
oí the Cubans allCI I talked to them flS to tl w alJilitif's of tIle Culmns 
as pilots. 

And various other things that OIle does as a. coordinntor in a thing 
likA this. 

Then the ndministrn t ion changed. Anc! OH Sllnc1ay, the 22d of 
.fanunry, th r l'c \Vas a fu]] dress nwding, chnired by Sec retnry of Stnte 
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Rusk, attended by the Secretary of Defense, and many other high 
official~ including Allen Dulles and the Chief of the Joint Chiefs of 
Staff, lieneral Lemnitzer, m?:self! Mr. Mann, and others. Gordon 
Gray-no, Gordon Gray wasn t there. 

Robert Rendy was there. l don't lrnow whether one of the Bundys 
was there or noto 

Paul Nitze was there. 
This whole operation was reviewed. 
l might say, parenthetically, Allen Dulles told me that, long before 

December 10 when l carne on, he had been to Miami, l beheve, or 
Palm Beach, and had some"hat filled in the incoming President on 
the operation. 

On January 26 l received a telephone call from the Secretary of 
State, asking whether l would continue in the same functions as l had 
been performing, and l said l would be glad to, there was nothing in 
the world l "ouId rather do, because l felt very strongly about this 
situation. 

On February-Iet me just consult a note here, if l might, l want to 
be sure about my dates. 

On February 8, at 11 :30 a.m., l was called to a meeting in the Secre­
tary's Office} attended by Mr. Berle, who had just come aboard as head 
of this specUlI task force for Latin America Mr. Bowles, Mr. Mann, 
Mr. Theodore Achilles, former Ambassador Achilles, who at that time 
was working with Mr. Berle, and myself. l don't believe there was 
anybody else at the meeting. 

This meeting was called preparatory to a conference at which Presi­
dent Kennedy was to have that afternoon at 3 o'clock at the White 
House to review this situation. There was considerable discussion, 
but the discussion mostly revolved around the problems of the Organi­
zation of American States, and whether "e could count on their sup­
port, and how we could get t,heir support. 

And l made a few remarks about the operation, but it wasn't really 
on the operation, but rather on the political aspects, the hemisphere 
political aspects, that they ,,"ere emphasi z; ing. 

Near the enel of the meeting, the Secretary announced that he had 
just gotten "ord fruIn the White House that President Kennedy did 
not want too large a meding, ancl, therefore, that the Secretary was 
going to take-was going himself, with Mr. Berle and Mr. Mann. So 
1 dieln't go. 

l walked out of the office a.nd went-l thought Mr. Berle motioned 
me to follow him. But as l came to his office door, he went in first, 
and Mr. AchilIes un(1 Mr. :Manll wel1t in, and 1 started to follow in, 
and Mr. Rerle said, "YOll are not necded." 

So 1 went away. 
Then on February 1(;, nt 12 o\·,]ock, 1 had a meetinO" with Under 

Secretary Bo,,-Ies, who l had neYer met before, and "~lO, under the 
old system, "ouId have been the man to ,,"hom 1 ,,-ould c1irectly report, 
unless 1 felt. it necessnry to ask for un allrlienec with the President or 
the Secretary of State. 

Mr. Rowles revic\yed my record with me, and was rnth0r laudatory 
ubollt sorne of the things that. he hall hearc1 abont me, and that he knew 
1 had dont>, and snid that "although you are rate(l a Republica,n, you 
nre the kind of a fello\\" 1 think that ,,'e ollght to have around this 
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administratio~ and l would like to t.alk with you la~er, b~t l want to 
talk with Mr. 15erle first.," and one thmg or another hke tlus. 

Mr. BerIe was down south, down in South America, trying to work 
on this OAS problem in Brazil and various other places. 

When he got back, and I finally ascertained that Mr. Bowles and 
Mr. BerIe had met, 1 asked for an appointment with Mr. Bowles to 
sea where I stood. 

Well, one of the reasons l wanted this appointment was the follow­
ing: 

l had come to the conclusion that these ideas of mine had reached 
a point where they had to be put on paper, that 1 had to go firm on 
what I thought should be done. And I needed to talk to the ClA 
about eertain aspects oí the possibilities of setting up this jet cover. 
And so l had arranged an appointment with the appropriate officials 
in the CIA for a few days later, when they could see me. 

Some of them were out of town. And either the day of the ap­
pointment or the day just beíore it-anyhow, just OH the eve of the 
appointment, shall We call it-my opposite number, Mr. Tracy Bames, 
my junior partner in this partnership, called me up and said, "We 
can't talk to you any more. We can only talk to other people." 

And he mentioned Mr. BerIe, and l believe Mr. Mann. 
Now, this is the only official word that 1 ever had that l was cut 

out of the operation. 
Mr. SOURWINE. This was when? 
Mr. WILLAUER. This is on or about February 15. 1t could be as late 

as the 20th. 1 didn't keep a record of this kind oí thing, by orders 
from Secretary Herter. 

And 1 had nothing to do with the operation from there on in. 
The surprising thing, however, to me was-and 1 have no l-eason 

to resent being cut out. I mean I am not running this administra­
tion. It i8 up to President Kennecly and the superiors to decide who 
they want to have do something. But you will recall that having been 
asked by the Secretary oí State to do something, 1 rather thought at 
least l better tell somehody that I wasn't able to do something. 

Mr. SOURWINE. You did not feel you could be pulled off the job 
by a telephone conversation írom your opposite number in ClA? 

Mr. WILLAUER. That is right. 
Now, the Secretary was out of town, l believe, at the SEATO Con­

ferenee, and various other things. And since I knew that Mr. Bowles 
was supposed to be the man, at least under the old setup, 1 kept trying 
to g-et an appointment with him. I tried for 30 days straight. l 
called h1S secretal-y every day, or went up to see her. I saw him once 
in the hall. He said, "1 am awfully busy, 1 will see you later." 

And 1 finally gave up aíter 30 days and started working on certain 
other things that had come to my attention about Honduras and like 
that. And that is the end of that story. 

I did see Mr. BerIe a couple of times. 1 couldn't get anything from 
him about any suggestions that 1 would work on. 1 asked him what 
1 was supposed to do. He said, "1 don't know." 

1 just got a general runaround. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Did you eventually get any official expression to 

the eífect that you were called off of thlS job? 
Mr. WILLAUER. No, I never have to this day, exeepting to be told 

that I was no longer to be continued as a special assistant. 
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Mr. SOURWINF.. When were you told that, and by whom? 
Mr. WIJ,LADER. 1 was told that by a telephone conversation with 

Mr. Findley Burns. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Who is he? 
Mr. 1VILLAUER. He is an assistant to Mr. Jones, who is the head 

oí-who is the Deputy Under Secretary for Administration in the 
State Department, who telephoned me on, 1 believe it was, Tuesday, 
April11. Anyhow-no, it wasn't. It was the da; befo re the invasion 
started, which 1 think would make it the 16th o April, while 1 was 
in San Jose. 

Now, the thing which 1 told General Taylor, and which 1 felt amazed 
him, and certainly amazed me, is that 1 have no quarrel with having 
been pulled off the jobo It is quite natural, 1 think, for a new adminis­
tration to want to have their own people--although 1 am neither 
really a strong-I am a nonpolitical. 1 am ostensibly a Republican, 
but 1 have worked íor the New Deal, and everything else. That is not 
the point. They are entitled to do anything they want too 

But the thing that amazed me most was that 1 was never, as they 
say, debriefed, and, therefore, never had an opportunity to express 
these ideas, which 1 think might have been oí sorne value in the chances 
of success of the operation. 

Mr. SOURWINF.. Now, you were called on the phone by this gentle­
man you named, who was assistant to Mr. Jones? 

Mr. WILLADER. Yeso 
Mr. SOURWINE. And what did he tell you? 
Mr. WILLAUER. Well, prior to leaving to say goodbye in San Jose-­

:for it is the custom for an Ambassador to make an oflicial goodbye--I 
knew the papers were being processed, to make me a S'pecial Assistant 
to the Secretary oí State under the new administratlOn in a formal 
manner. That is on a payroll. When 1 was a special assistant before 
1 had been {laid as Ambassador, on consnltation. And 1 was told by
Mr. Jones lumselÍ that these papers \Tere going to be decided upon by 
Mr. Bowles. 

Before 1 leit to go down to say g-oodbye in April of 1961, 1 wrote 
a memo with a copy to Mr. Bowles. 1 think it was addressed to 
Mr. Jones. Anyhow, he got a copy-saying that 1 would like very 
much to know as soon as possibl~, preferably while ~ was down there, 
what my future status was gomg to be, beca use 1t would make· a 
difference what 1 would pack up and send where and an that sort of 
thing. And he called me. As he said, "1 am doing this as a courtesy 
by telephone, rat.her than by telegram, because we don't necessarily 
want to spread this all over the Department while you are still down 
there." 

Mr. SOunWINE. And what did he say? 
Mr. WILLAUER. He said, "1 regret to iníorm yon that you will n01:; 

be continued on, and that your services will be terminated as of 
April30." 

Mr. SOURWINE. 'Vhen you ended as Ambassadod 
Mr. W ILLA DER. 1Vhen 1 ended as Ambassador. And 1 was accorded, 

at my request, the courtesy of 30 days more occupancy of my office 
because this had come as a rather sudden thing, and 1 had to clean up 
my files and all that. So 1 actual1y leít the Department, although 1 
wasn't paid, as of the end oí May. 
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Mr. SOURWINF.. And you never were called in for a debriefing or 
final consultation? 

Mr. 1VILLAUER. No; excepting after General Taylor \Vas called in 
to look into the failure--I spent approximately an hour telling him 
just what 1 have told you gentlemen. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Now, do you know who it was that terminated you, 
orby whose orded 

Mr. WILLAUER. No; 1 haven't, the vaguest idea .. Nor have 1 made 
any attempt to find out. 1 ha ve been told by the CIA., by high officials 
in the CIA, that they were extremely dissatisfied by the fact that they 
could not continuo to " 'ork with me, because they had worked with me 
for years and years and years, and, they said, very sUCCesSflllly. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Had tIle date for tho invasion been set in February 
at the time they cut you out of the operation? 

Mr. WILLAUER. No. 
Mr. SOURWINE. So that you did not know about this, and it actu­

ally carne as much of a surprise to you as any person on t he outside. ? 
Mr. WILLAUER. In a sense; yeso Although 1 knew we '''ere " 'orking 

against certain probable deadlines. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Did you lrnow Mr. William Wieland? 
Mr. WILLAUER. 1 knew him, but not ,vello 
Mr. SOURWINE. Do you have any information respecting MI'. 

Wieland's views at any particular period of time about Castro, and 
the Castro government in Cuba? 

MI'.1VILLAUER. 'fhe only conversation 011 this subject that r can re­
call with Mr. Wieland-and 1 think it probably was the only conversa­
tion-certainly the only one of any importance-was sorne time in 
the latter part of 1958, when 1 happened to drop in to see him, just as 
a matter of courtesy, while 1 was in 1Vashington on a consultation trip. 
1 said, "How about this Castro business?" 

And he said, ""Vell, we are worrie.d a.bout Castro, and we are tl'ying 
to get sorne sort oí an flrrangement between Castro and Batista, sorne 
sort of a coalition, to live and let live, or other kind of government. 
The church is trying to help uso But \Ve are not getting very fal' with 
it, because Ca.-c;tro 15 very stubborn on it, ¡;,nd claims he wants the 
personal privilege oí shooting Batista." 

Mr. SOURWINE. 1Vas this the first you had heard that the State 
Department was working fol' a coulition government in Cuba? 

Mr. WILLAUER. Yeso 
Mr. SOURWINE. You had had experience with the State Depa timent 

seeking a coalition government in China, had you not ? 
Mr. "VIl,LAUER. r sure did, under the Marshall mission. 1 was there 

and watched that one. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Do you have any firm impression about the possi­

bilities of the success oí a coalition govemment that involves a 
Communist íaction? 

Mr.1VILLAUER. Yes; it 1S going to be very successful for the Com­
munists inevitably. It always has been. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Have you any information that has not been elicited 
from you with respect to either the position of the State Department 
or anyone in the State Department, 01' which otherwise would shed 
light on the CJ.ue5tion of why the United States took the action or 
course of inactlOn which it did with respect to Castro? 
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Mr. WILLAUER. Not that I can recal!. If anything comes to mind; 
I will be glad to contact the committee and appear again, if you so 
desire. 
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former Assistant Secretary of State for Inter-American Afl'airs, concerning the 
report of the chiefs of missions meeting at San Salvador, April 9 to 11, 1959. 

As you know, reports such as the report of the chiefs of missions meeting at 
San Salvador and related correspondence are as a rule not made available out­
si de of the executive branch. The free and frank exploration of pollcy by high 

Mr. SOURWINE. Have you read the public testimony before this 
committee of former Ambassador Robert Hill? 

Mr. WILLAUER. Yesi I read it last night. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Do you have any comments on his testimony that 

you think might be helpful to the committee? 
Mr. 'VILLAUER. Insofar as the matters contained therein are of my 

personal knowledge, and a great deal of it is of my personal knowl­
edge, it seems to me a hundred perccnt correcto Certain opinions that ') 

he may hold I don't necessarily fully share as strongly as he does­
things like what Mr. Wieland said and did and aH that. I don't know 
anything about it other than by hearsay. But the general tenor of 
his test.imony-and certainly the part about what happened at Sal­
vador, where I was a witness, is absolutely correcto 

Mr. SOURWINE. Do you remember Mr. Hill's recommendations about 
the necessity ·for changing both procedure and motivation in the 
State Department in order to put this country in a position to cope 
with the Castros and the other Communists? 

Mr. WILLAUER. I cel'tainly do. I helped him in the formulation of 
that part of his testimony. 

Mr. SOURWINE. y ou would concur in this completely? 
Mr. ,yILLA UER. 1 do. 1 am sort of coauthor of that end of it. 
MI'. SOURWI~E. Mr. Chairman, 1 have no other direct questions of 

this witness. I have covered the situation, as far as I know, where he 
has any information. 

Senator DODD. Yeso Well, I must say it is a very interesting and 
helpfuI piece of testimony. 

Mr. SOURWINE. MI'. Chairman, I have one piece to offer for the 
record. It does not concern this witness. I think this is a good place, 
however, to put it in. It is theearliest chance we have hado 

This is a Ietter addressed to the chairman, dated July 26, and signed 
by Mr. Brooks Hays, Assistant Secretary of State, and it is in response 
to the chairman's request for certain correspondence between Am­
bassador Hill and Mr. Rubottom1 which MI'. Hill told us about. The 
Chair might wish to order that thlS go in the record at this point. 

Mr. Wn,LAUER. Might I ask for one more thing in the record? 
1 don't know whether it is in-that lam here in response to a sub­

pena which was served on me in Nantucket by a U.S. marshaIlast 
Tuesda,y. 

Mr. SOURWINE. That is correcto You are not a volunteer. 
Senator DODD. Yes, of course, Mr. Ambassador, you were subpenaed 

to appear here as a witness under subpena, and the record wiII show 
this, as counsel has indicated, and as 1 have. 

And the Ietter of J uly 26, addressed to the chairman of this subcom­
mittee, signed by Brooks Hays, is included as requested by counseI, and 
made a part of the record. 

(The letter referred to is as follows:) 
DEPARTMENT OF STATE, 
Wa8hington, July 26, 1961. 

DEAR MR. CHAIRMAN: On behalf of the Subcommittee on Internal Security, 
your chief counsel, Mr. Sourwine, has asked tbat we furnish certain correspon­
dence between former Ambassador Robert O. Hill and Mr. Roy R. Rubottom, 

level officers would be impeded if remarks made while the pollcy was in the 
process of development and formulation were to become available to outsiders. 
In order to assist the subcommittee in its inquiry in this case, however, I am 
very glad to summarize below the background and substance oi the exchange of 
letters from Ambassador Hill to Mr. Rubottom dated June 1, 1959, and from Mr. 
Rubottom to Ambassador Hill dated July 2, 1959. 

The Hill-Rubottom exchange concerned a report of the San Salvador Con­
ference circulated by the Department to aH the participants. In brief, Ambas­
sador Hill wrote that the report as prepared in Washington did not coincide 
with his recoHections of what had been said in some of the discussions in San 
Salvador, and in particular did not record in sufficient detall some of his own 
comments. He attached a memorandum of suggested corrections. Mr. Rubot­
tom replied that in his view the report did portray "with a broad brush" what 
took place at the meeting. 

Ambassador Hill's letter itself acknowledged receipt of the reporto confirmed 
a telegraphic objection to the report on the grounds of inaccuracies and omis­
sions, aod stated tbat the attached memorandum of comments on the report was 
based "00 my own recollection." The letter went on to express the bellef that 
the suggested corrections could be made without great difficulty, aod Ambassador 
Hill offered to help "io aoy way I can toward this end." Ambassador Hill stated 
that Mr. Rubottom's direction of tlle discussion was "unfailingly fair and con­
structive," aod that the good results achieved at the Conference were very largely 
due to his efforts. 

Mr. Rubottom, in reply, stated his view that the report was substantially ac­
curate, and expressed regrets that it did not satisfy Ambassador Hill. He said 
no tape recording or stenographic transcript of the proceedings had been made, 
but that the report had be en prepared from ootes kept at the meeting. Mr. Rubot­
tom stated his conclusion that the best thing to do was to circulate the Confer­
ence report, leaving to each chief of mission the opportunity to write in such 
comments as he desired. Mr. Rubottom said he would file Ambassador Hill's 
comments with the record unless Ambassador Hill desired otherwise, and the 
comments were so filed. 

I trust that this will be of assistance to you in completing your investigation. 
If we in the Department can be of further help, please do not hesitate to call on Ul. 

Sincerely yours, 
(S) BROOKS HAYS, 

A88i8tant Secretary 
(For the Secretary of State). 

Mr. SOURWINE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. WILLAUER. Mr. Chairman, I have one more request, 01' sug­

gestiono 
Sorne time ago 1 prepared a. paper called "The Crisis in United 

States Interests in the Caribbean," m which 1 go into this problem of 
the State Department and aH of this same materlaI as Ambassador Hill 
went into. 1 have prepared this in the summer of 1958, while on a 
short home Ieave. 

And 1 did submit it to the State Department at at later date, in 
connection with a Ietter that 1 wrote to Secretary Herter. 1 think it 
might be of interest in connection ,yith my test.imony as to how 1 ieel 
about Ambassador Hi11's views, if you would be interested in receiv­
ing it. 

Mr. SOURWINE. :May this be printed in the record, Mr. Chairman ~ 
Senator DODD. Surely. 
Mr. WILLAUER. 1 have a copy of this, which 1 would be gIad to 

furnish. 
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(The paper referred to is as follows:) 

THE CRISIS IN U.S. IXTEIIESTS IN THE CARIBBEAN 

America's most important interests in the Caribbean are facing ultimate extinc­
tion at the hands of the international Communist conspiracy and its running 
mate, ignorant supernationalism.

The tbreat today is vastly more serious than in previous times when similar 
threats were faced; and in tiJe current world political clima te, the means of 
protection are infinitely harder to find and mobilize. 

In the past, American interests in tiJe Caribbean have be en threatened by 
pira tes, by hostile nationa l actions from abroad, or by greedy dictators. Direct 
action to fight these menaces was acceptable and accepted due to the clearness 
of tbe imlllorality of the tbrea t and public tolerance of the principIe of self-help 
by force. 

Several decades ago few were siJocked when we sent marines into countries 
of the Caribbean to protect our interests from confiscation. Tbe dilIerence today 
is tha t international communism opera tes so subtly that only the initiated 
recogni7.e the drift of evellts until it is too late. Even when communism .is 
entrenciJed in command of a government-as was the case in Guatemala in 
1954-many wil! be found to disbelieve tbis to be so. Furthermore, tbe horror 
of the use of force by tbe "colossus of the north" is so great that practically 
no offense of a Latin country is big enough to justify force in the eyes of many 
of our own citizens, and practically all Latin Americans ahhor and condemn it. 
This in turn has caused the United States to tie its policy to the twin concepts 
of "nonintervention" and the Organization of American Sta tes. 

The OAS is in substance a junior or regional United Nations witbout a "secu­
rity council" and the veto power. It acts sOlely through a "general assembly" 
type of organ where every natíon of the 21 in the bemisphere votes equally. 
Although the character of the OAS' preserves the right of individual self­
protection, in practice, in Latin American affairs, the United States has watered 
this down greatly in comparison with its attitude and actions in other pa rts of 
the wond; and in practice sinc€' the charler of tbe OAS was adopted \Ve have 
never acted unilaterally in Latin America. 

In contrast elsewhere, with but slight hesitation, \Ve come to the rescue of 
"dictator" Chiang at Quemoy, needing only the fac t that we ha ve a treaty to 
protect our moraJity. But it is argued that in the"Orient the Communist nature 
of tbe aggression is open and clear, as if that should make a difference as to 
whether or not we live up to a treaty. 

Or if tIJe o\'el'tness of the ComlUllnist threat is .still felt to make a cOlltrolJing 
dilIerence, what about our entrance into Lebanon at the request of the Lel.la nese 
Governlllent? Here there ",as a threat of comll1unism, but it was subtler and 
masked behind nationalisll1. Also there were indeed "Iegitimate revolutionary" 
forces at work in the area at the time--a factor which, in Latín America, we use 
to inhibit a<: ti\'l\tion of our trea ty obligations to protect all recognized govern­
ments in Latín America, evell tbough tbeir regimes are accused of being 
dictatorial. 

Accordingly, \Vhen Somoza or Trujillo asks for aid, we seuttle to the OAS 
where we know that the aid wiJI not be effectively given. This \Ve do, in part, 
as a n instinctive reaction becau~e of our abborrellce of dictators, but we also 
are respollding to our fear tbat, if we live up to our treaty obligations, we will 
I.le charged witb protecting rightwing dictators, even though our treaty obliga­
tions require us to protect them as wel! as leftwing di<:tntors. 

Worse, still, \Ve at least subconsciously recognize tbat we are ducking our 
obligations so we lull our consciences by playing up every shred of fa ctual 
doubt as to whether there is a reason to act under treaty obligations. Tbus we 
halfway welcollle e"idence that there is no outside intervention, that tbe 
matter is an interna l one, and tbat we cannot proye international COlllmunist 
control or parti cipation . 

Why such a fundamental lIifference in our firmness in acting? Is it because 
of real abhorrence of dictators? If so, ho\\' differentiate our pOlicy tOlVard 
China, l'nkis tan, Indones ia , Burma, Thnilnnd , and Korea, in aH of which we 
are openly supporting dicta torial regimes. Do \Ve feel diffel'ently then al.lout 
(]jeta tOI'S in the Western Hemisphere than in other parts of the world? Ap­
parcntly so; I.lut do \Ve rea lly? 
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The answer is difficult to llnd untiJ we break down the problem into an 
analysls of whose feelings we are talking about when we say "our." There 
is pretty clear renson to believe that "our" means two tbings when we refer 
to Latin America: on the one band, the American people as a whole; on the 
otber hand, the officials of the Latin American Division of tbe Department of 
Stnte as the spokesman and poJicymaker of the executive branch of tbe U.S. 
Government. Tbe opinion of the American people, as a whole, is clearly against 
dictators everywhere, but, at tbe same tíme, it recognizes tbat the international 
Communist conspiracy is the most. rutbless dictatorsbip of tbem all. So, when 
thinking as Ámericans, we have Httle trouble in choosing in favor of Chiang 
over Mao. Had our press and our Government properly informed our popular 
opinion as to tbe true -nature of what is going on in Latin America, we would 
be in a much bett~r position to decide where our best interests líe. Unfortu­
nately, as to Latin America, both of tbese molders of opinion (the press and 
tbe Government) seem to be repeating for us their sorry performance of the 
previous decade whicb lead to the capture of Cbina by international com­
munism. 

The Edgar Snows of Chinese communism are replaced today by the Herbert 
Mattbews of Caribbean Communists. Neitber the Snows nor the Matthews are 
Communists, and both can be fairly credited with abhorring it-if and wben 
they recognize it. The trouble with this type of journalism is that it is carrying 
a banner for a cause, ond, in its bate of the dietators, it is bJind to the nature 
of the forces of communisDl wbicb are infiltrating tbe legitimate revolutionary 
rorees. Today, as yesterday, tbey fail to see through tbe agrarian reform; 
through the rent-control measures aimed against the wicked landlords. Tbey 
do not recognize the familiar Communist plot to liquidate the middle class and 
other opposition elements. How is this possible with tbe history of Red Cbina 
so clearly and recently written? Truly, it seems that even among our highly 
educated modern press there are many in bigh places of wbom it must be said 
that "none are so blind as tbose who will not see." 

But what of our Government? The Eisenhower supporters campaigned in 
]952, in large part, on the disgrace of tbe loss of Cbina. Treason in tbe State 
Department was alleged. Are we beading for a similar campaign issue in 1960? 
This time with the Democrats on tbe olIensive and Latin America (01' at least 
t.he Caribbean) substituted for China? How is it that our President is briefed 
by the State Department to say that cOlllmunism in Cuba has not been proved, 
and to say it in a context tIJat migbt easily be interpreted (and unbappily was 
by the New York Times and Walter Lippmann) as proving that the threat of 
Cuban communism is very minor? ­

Clearly, sucb briefing of the President could only come from one place--tbe 
Latin American division of tbe State Departmellt. Wbat indeed does trus divi­
sion think about tbe current Caribbean situation? What are tbe cOllditioning 
factors and whot, if any, program does it really have? 

Tbe Latin American division of the State Department sulIers from weaknesses 
which are awesomely similar to those whicb existed in tbe Cbina division at 
the time of the loss of China. The keynote in-botb situations, personnelwise, is 
mediocrity. Just as tbe problelDs of Cbina, a few decades back, received a low 
priority of higb-Ievel attention, so, in recent history, have those of Latin Amer­
ica. It is a fact that witb the notable exception of a brief fiurry in the time of 
Cordell Hull, with Adolph Berle and Sumner Welles stimulating bis interest., no 
Secretary of State, since tbe beginning ol World War 11, has paid real attention 
to policymaking in this hemispbere. This has naturaHy meant that the smarter 
officers of the Department were cbosen for, or maneuvered tbemselves into, other 
branches of the service. This, added to tbe greater attroctiveness of life in tbe 
continental capitals, largely left the field of Latin America free for tbe second 
run of our diplomats. There have been sorne notable exceptions, but tbese were 
largely accidental. Tbus the three top career policyrnakers in tbe Department 
today, Henderson, Murphy, and Mercbant, have had no Latin American experi­
ence. Anyone naming our 10 most pl'orninent career diplornats would have a 
hard time finding more tban 1 01' 2 who could be, in any way, considered Latín 
American experts. 

With this large field of approximately 25 percent of aH foreign posts left open 
in Latin America, tbe second run of our diploma tic service has proreeded to 
entrench itself very murh in the pattern of tbe old Cbina service. They have 
cultivated a "mystique" about tbe area . 'l'he empIJasis is on speaking Spanisb 
or Portuguese, on being "simpatico," and aH the other little skills tbat add up 
to a false substitute for deep thinking and sound policymnking. 
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Most convenient of aH for the second·raters came the sacrosanct policy of 
nonintervention. When so desired, this is truly a sword and a buckler for those 
who want to continue to do nothing, because they are incapable of tlguring 
out what to do. As a companion piece to that kind of nonintenention, the 
second·raters have forgotten the adage of our first and greatest diplomat, 
Benjamin Franklin, who felt that to represent your country \Yel! in another 
country you had to be a lIttle unpopulnr there. The renson is obvious. You 
must represent your country's interest ahead of the interest of the country 
where you serve. This is, however, not the way to win a popularity contest, 
and to be rated as "simpatico."

The foregoing weaknesses did not beco me too damaging or too glaring so 
long as our diplomat;; in Latin America did not ha.\"e to face up to very serious 
problems or meet foreign competition by experts in their o",n tleld. So without 
the exposure of our weakness, things drifted along the lush postwar years 
when the Latin American economies were thriving and Russia was working 
only covertly and so quietly that she did not attract much public attention. 
When finally faced with disagreeable proof of the steady growth of Communist 
influence south of the border, most of our diplolllats were as inexperienced 
with the techniques of the international Communist conspiracy as their Latin 
American friends. 

Practically none of our men had served face to face with the raw facts of 
Communist technique and so, despite "midcareer" aud other formal depart­
mental schooling, they secretly shared the Latin American view that the Com­
munists were patriots first, or that being Catholics, local Communists were no 
more than members of another political party. Various devices and catch 
phrases were used to explain away or soft·pedal tlle menace of communism. A 
favorite one was to talk about pure Marxism, as if that somehow was innocuous. 

Thus tragically today we find ourselves with the international Communist 
consplracy firmly entrenched in Cuba and ready to spread throughout the 
Caribbean. Its strength in Mexico, Venezuela, and Coloml>ia and most of 
Central America is great. In all countries of the Latin American area it is a 
vital factor, and beca use of ignorance of the Latin American masses and the 
naivete among the educa ted, there is Iittle chance that the seriousness oi 
the menace wil! be recognized indigenously and the necessary local measures 
to check it taken spontaneously. Unfortullately, at the same time, much of our 
press and of our State Department cannot be counted on for effectiye help with 
the problem. 

Before proceeding to discussion of cOllrses of action it is necessary to clear 
away some areas of possible misunderstauding ",hich may have arisen in some 
of the previous statements. 

First, what about Latin American "dictatorships"? Despite what has been 
pOinted out abo ve concerning our treaty obligations to protect them, on balance 
"dictatorships", even though benevolent, are bad in the Latin American scene. 
'.rhat, however, does not mean that we can lightiy embrace a policy of overthrow­
ing thero by force, or of turning our backs to revolutionary movements. It is 
a favorite thesis of ex·President uf Costa Rica Figueres that dictators cause 
communism. Figueres does not mean exactly this but he does mean that be­
cause there are dictators and the Communists have hypocritically managed to 
convince a "ast majority of those who oppose dictators that they (the Como 
munists) are enemies of dictators, tlle existence of dictatorships encourages the 
acceptance of communism as a means to o\'erthrow them. 

Those who thus accept the Communists give little heed to the problem of 
tile price which wil! be collected by the Communists when the dictator falls. 
Figueres fuUy recognizes this problem anel says he prefers to oppose any 
Communi:¡¡t aid in antidictator movements. But Figueres really has no practical 
answer to the problem of how to preyent communism from filling the vacuum 
after a dictator is overthrown. 

~ext, what is the correct evaluation of the so-caUed non-CoDlmunist anti­
dictator Latin American Iiberals: Figueres, Muñoz l\Iarin, Betancourt, and so 
forth: Many feel they are Communists (or just as bad) and certainly Betancourt 
by his own admission \Vas once a party member. Since no one has ever produced 
a shred of direct evidence that any of them are COIDmunists now, or even fellow 
travelers, the case both for and Ilgainst them must rest on circumstantial 
evidence with the footnote that the degree of knowledge of the Communist 
machine available to our inteUigence sen' ices is sufficiently direct so that it is 
an odds on bet that if they were Communists we would know it. As for the 
circumstantial evidence, it is in favor of their being foes of communism. Their 
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pubUc utterances and actions have done so much harm to the Communist cause 
that the only possible argument that they are Communists is that they are 
under the deepest of possible cover and are being reserved for some long-range 
use, the nature of which it is difficult to discern. 

Finally, reference has been made to knowledge of languages and other trap­
pings of the "mystlque" of our "Latin American diplomats." This does not 
mean that knowledge of the language and of customs is to be looked down upon 
as a qualification for a diplomat anywhere. What we need is a set of prioritielil. 
Brains and ability first. To aman with these, the language and customs 
wil! come easily and rapidly as has often been proved. Thls ls particularly true 
in Latin America beca use a working knowledge of Spanish or Portuguese is one 
of the easiest linguistic accomplishments to achieve rapidly. 

Incidentally, for obvious reasons it has never seriously been suggested that 
aIl of our top diplomats everywhere silould have a working knowledge ofthe 
language of the post in which they are about to serve before they are apPointed. 
Ir anyone were so bold as to seriously advocate such a requirement l am sure 
that th, Foreign Service career officers would be in the vangu'ard of the 
opposition to such a suggestion. Clearly, if knowledge of the language of the 
people were a requirement for top diplomatic apPointments, this would limit 
such appointments in approximately one·third of our embassies to veterans of 
private enterprise in the countries where the basic language of the poople is 
not one of the half dozen major languages of the world. Knowledge of the 
major languages of the Western World, such as English, French, Spanish, Ger­
man, and so forth, wil! serve a diplomat well. However, it wil! only serve him 
well in his contacts with the educated upper crust of the ex-colonies. It is a 
provo~ative thought that a knowledge of English alone wil! assure the diplomat 
of contact with the upper crust. 

1 am a great believer in and personally practice the study of foreign lan­
guages with so me measure of success. But l submit that given ordinary linguis­
tic ability, our modern technique of language teaching, a working knowledge 
of any language sufficient to serve as a basis of contact with the people of 
any country can be achieved in 90 days. l also believe that a superficial knowl­
edge of an "exotic" language may well tempt our diplomats into the trap of 
trying to do business in that language when he ought not to do so. 

l attach for comment a partial list of countries where the language of the 
people is clearly outside the scope of what we should expect from our top dip­
lomatic officers.· 

Much has been said of the Latin American Division as a whole, but what 
about the men who ha"e hended 'it in recent years. As to those who have been 
other than out and out career men, there is a considerable body of opinion, 
especially in the U.S. Sena te, that the policies they pursued and their tactics 
with the Latin leaders were better designed to further their future intended pri­
vate careers than to face up to the hard and unpleasant decisions which would 
possibly have altered events but which undoubtedly would have harmed their 
personal popularity. 

As for the career incumbents, they have been of the group which specialized 
in Latin American affail's and which have been thoroughly discussed aboye. 

What is to be done at this late date to make a beginning at extricating our­
selves from the mess in which we find ourselves? Among the steps which should 
be taken are at least the following : 

1. An alliance of the forces Yitally interested in tlnding a solution is an obvious 
first step. In some articulate form, and as unobstrusively as possible at flrst, 
liaison for exchange of ideas, for formulation of plans, and for taking action 
must be established. Until our Government policy radically improves, this 
mechanism must be created outside of Government. Indeed, one of its major 
objectives must be to radically reform our Government policy and mechanisms 
for the area. 

While this alliance probably must start with U.S. private interests in the 
area, it should as rapidly as possible ally itself with like·minded Latin American 
interests. It is extraordinary ho\\' much can be accomplished by partnerships 
of this kind in handling international problems. It is equally extraordinary to 
those who have practical experience that so little has really been done along 

·Afghnnl~tnn. Burmn, Cnmbodia, Ceylon, Denmnrk. Egypt, Etblopla. Flnland, Holland, 
Iceland. India, Indonesin , Iran, Irnq, Is rnel. Jnpan. Jordnn. Korea, Laos. Lebanon, Llbya,
Malaya. Morocco, Norway, Paklstun, Salldl Arabia. Sweden, Syrln, Thalland, Turkey,
VletIlum·. 
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these liues. Indeed, an observer who comes to the Latln American area trom 
óther areas ot the world Is struck by the lack ot real policy thinking and 1m­
plementatlon by large interests in the area. One explanatlon tor this persistently 
suggests itselt; in the formative era of the establishment and growth ot these 
interests it was easy to capture the local torces that counted. All-powerful 
dictators could be had tor a price. National awakening, social aspiratlons for 
a better life, and the urge to greater human dignity had not then been aroused 
in the area. 

Wherever possible liaison with sympathetic elements in our own and foreigu 
government should be created. Fruitful help in the United States can be hoped 
for from our Department of Defense, from the intelligence community and from 
the legislative branch. There are many officials in the State Department high 
command and some few even in the Latin American Division who, if made aware 
of the true nature of the problem, might be prepared for action. At the very 
least tbey can be softened up so as not to oppose a positive programo 

2. Perhaps the most important is bow and whom to enlist as allies from among 
the Latin Americans. A flrst obvious group in view ol the immediate problem 
in the Caribbean is that of Figueres, Munoz Marin, Betancourt, etc. Tbis, how­
ever, requires much more careful exploration and at tbe very least a great deal 
more mutual understanding on the part of tbe original backers ol tbe suggested 
new movement on tbe one band and the Figueres group on the other. Business­
men with good reason mis trust tbe bigb degree of socialism inberent in tbe 
Figueres tbinking wbereas Figueres and bis friends are suspicious of t be metbods 
and objeetives of private foreign and local interests. 

3. Tbe ideal solution is to form a partnership of local and foreign interests. 
At flrst tbis seems an objective unlikely of accomplishment. But is it so h ard 
really? And in any event, by working toward it would not mucb be accom­
pli sbed? 

Ir tbe advisability of forming a partnership with local interests were sug­
gested to a sound American enterprise doing a profltable business and witb 
no nationalistic tbreat of a takeover, mucb persuasion would be needed. Re­
sistance would be bolstered witb tbe "swapping in midstream" argumento 

But bow about tbose who are today facing expropriation in Cuba? And 
those wbo are fearing similar action elsewbere? Clearly tbey must take some 
action. What action is better than to join in partnersbip with local interests, 
even if tbe latter bave to be lent tbe money to acquire their share? 

It may be tbat tbe partnersbip suggestion goes too far but, in exploring it, 
some variations acceptable all around may be hit upon. 

One factor must always be borne in mind. It is basic in the legal philosophy 
of aH nations that enterprises essential to tbe survival of a state have to be 
in some manner put under effective control of the sta te. The means of this 
control vary from state ownersbip to state regulation, down to majority (01' 
substantial) ownersbip by c itizens of the state. Thus in tbe United Sta tes 
we deem our airlines and ships essentia l to our survival because of tbeir essen­
tiality in the economy and tbe national defense. "'e, therefore, require them 
to be 75 percent owned by our citizens for domestic operation. 

It must be recognized that whereycr in Latin America \Ve flnd a one 0 1' two 
commodity economy the essen tiality of that commodity can be made by skillful 
pOliticians (and there are now sucb trained by Moscow all over the world) 
to appear to tbe eitizens of that eountry as more important tban al! our own 
public utilities put together are to USo Therefore, even if tbere is no indigenous 
communism or socialism in the picture, we must expeet tbat tbe local people 
will be made apprehensive whenever tbe eommodity is under foreign control. 
Under sucb circumstanees in the long run notbing sbort of at least some ap­
pearanee of a partnersbip type of interests will satisfy local opinion; and 
business simply cannot be done without consciously assuming tbe cost and risk 
of paying that price. U.S. ca pital which does not bave tbe nerves to stand 
tbe fluidity of such a rel ation~hip neither should stay in nor get into foreign 
business as it has nolV in reality beeome in tbe \\'orld. The sooner we get 011 

with the meehanics of realistie steps to bring ahout tbe appropriate ne\\' relation­
sbips the happier the solut ion will be. 

Indeed, as proven in l\fexico and China, and now widely tbreatened elsewhere 
de faeto expropriation under tbe guise of land reform 01' greatly inereased 
taxation 01' labor costs is the alternative that al! of our interests may lihortly 
have to face. Tbe longer we delay the greater the chance that tbe international 
Communist conspiracy will persuade local governments to make tbe neeessary 
moves lo wipe out U.S. interests. Although this will also do infinite harm lo 
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local interests by drying up elIective production, the local people will not under­
stand this until the barm to them and to our source of supply has been aecom­
plished. The only other recourse for us is to use force, which in today's world 
and our own internal climate we will not face. 

4. There is, however, an intermediate kind of force, economic in nature, whlch 
involves the deliberate control of the access of the Latin raw materials lo 
AmerIcan markets. This, if skillfuUy manipulated, could be used to deter 
economic aggression against the American interests in the suggested new partner­
shlp relationsbips. 

5. In tbe present state of Latin A.merican managerial kDow-how a considerable 
foreign management ls and will for some time be essential to assure produc­
tion. Thus for anything in Latin America now owned by Americans where we 
consldered that continued production is essential to our future national interest, 
a U.S. official policy must be contrived to preserve tbis production. Since the 
partnership by local interests ls by far the best all-around solution, our Govern­
ment should institute an addltion to our foreigu investment guarantee procedure 
to make easy the tlnancing of these local partnerships and to obtain for them 
tbe adequate recoguition and protection needed from local governments. 

As lo the vital problem of who sball be tbe major partnership and in control 
of management, tbis sbould be solved by an evaluation process. Obvlously, 
here as in every other relationship the caliber of the management provided 
for oversea service will control the resulto One of a number of possible tecb­
niques ls to provlde for U.S. managerlal control until the debt for acquiring 
tbe partnership interest ls paid down to the polnt wbere an arbitrator would 
state the remaining U.S. interest in the investment is safe, at whicb time the 
control would pass. 

6. Many will <:riticize thls approach to the fundamental problem of Latin 
American relations because Its primary approaeb ls economic and in the private 
enterprlse sector. Nothlng ls further from the trutb. Full recoguition i8 given 
lo the problems of cultural relations and to tbe desirabillty of person-to-person 
understanding brought about through face-to-face dealings. However, it ls sub­
mitted that none of tbese other things can really tbrive until the bread-and-butter 
part of tbe problem Is brought into better condltion, and tbat the business part­
nershlp In some variatlon of its possible forms is the most hopeful basis of a 
sonnd and lastlng 801ution. 

There are otber pallUcal Ideas whlch I do not wIsh lo put in writing at the 
presento 

Mr. SOURWINE. 1 have nothing more, sir. 
Senator DODD. All right. 1 want to thank you very much for your 

helpful testimony. We are trying to find out just what went on here, 
mostly so we can prevent a recurrence of it. It is shocking to me, 1 am 
frank to say, on the record, that aman of your background, who has 
been engaged in the preparations for this affair, was treated so 
shabbily. 

Mr. WILLAUER. Well, of course, 1 don't mind how 1 was treated, 
Mr. Chairman. 

Senator DODD. 1 know. That is not the point. 
Besides that, when 1 say treated so shabbily, 1 mean the welfare 

of the country was treated shabbily. It is just unthinkable to me that 
thissort of thing can happen. 1 don't care whether they liked you 
ornot. 

y ou understand my saying that. But obviously it seems to me you 
were aman who simply had to be consulted, and certain1y should have 
been given an opportunity to wind up your affairs in an orderly 
fashion, at least. 

Mr. WILLAUER. Well, that is the way 1 felt about it, if 1 might 
be ~rmitted. to make a remark. The only thing 1 think that was 
terrlbly:, 1 mIght say, unorthodox, or bad for the country, was that 
my brams were not picked when they decided to shift the authority. 

Mr. SOURWINE. Mr. Chairman, there is one minor matter 1 might 
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bring up. It is a little bit OI a loose end. You told us OI several per­
sons to whom you carried your story about the situation in Cuba. 
And one OI them whom you mentioned was Mr. Murphy. 

.Mr. VVILLADER. Yes. 
Mr. SOURWINE. Did you actuaUy have an opportunity to complete 

your presentation to Mr. Murphy? 
Mr. "'¡LLAUER. No. This ,,"as on the nttempt to get nn NIE, national 

intelligence estimate. And he ,,·as called out of Ihe room to see the 
Secretary, and he never really got t he whole tllin o·. 

Incidental1y, 1 forgot to ten you gentlemen tllat ,,·hen 1 went into 
this job on Deeember 10, 1 was put in toueh with an offiee in the 
State Department which has control OI all those NIE's, 1 found 
that the only NIE on this subject in existenee "as one which was still 
in the process of preparation on December 10, 1960. 

N ow, whether or 1l0t tltere has been other special reports to the 
President or not, 1 do not know. 

But 1 was assured by the ChieI OI that oflice, Mr. J oseph Scott, that 
this NIE that 1 su,," in December, in an uncompletecl form, \Vas the 
only one in this situation. 

Senutor DOPD. 1 ,,:as p:oing to ask a question that had to do with 
your description of the financial backing at the time OI the meeting 
In Costa Rica, the OAS meeting. 

You used the language, "aJmost unlimitec1 Iunds." 
Mr. "WILL,\UER. 'Ve had ,,"hat we thought fairly solid intelligence 

that the Central Bank oI Cuba, or whatever it is called, the one that 
"Che" Gueva'ra is in charge of, had allocnted $500,000, which would 
be the equivalent OI $5 million in the United States or more, $50 
million, perhaps, to the sabotaging OI this confcrence. This intelli­
gence ca me to us through w hat we deemed to be pretty reliable sources 
out OI El Salvador. 

Senutor DODD. 'Vell, this matter oI these moneys, these unlimited 
Iunds,I think, as you accurately describe them, has intcrested me Ior 
a long time. 1 think it is something that ""e rea.lly should take a ]ook 
ato 

(Whereupon, at 2 :50 p.m., the subcommittee recessed, subject to 
the call DI the Chair.) 

AI'PENDIX 1 

The Iollowing text OI an address on the Cuban situation by Secre­
tary OI State Dean Rusk Oll J anuary 25, 1962, \Vas ordered printed as 
an appendix to this record: 

[Dcpnrtment of State, press relense January 25, 1962] 

ADDRESS BY HON. DEAN RUSK, SECRETARY OF STATE, AT THE EIGHTH MEETING 
OF CONSULTATION OF MINISTERS OF FOREIGN AFFAIRS OF THE AMERICAN STATES, 
PuNTA DEL ESTE, URUGUAY, JANUARY 25, 1902 

Mr. Cbairman, fellow Foreign Ministers, it is a very great personal pleasure 
for me to be bere for my first meeting with my colleagues of tbe Americas. 
The fact tbat 1 fiud among tbem a number of old friends enhances that pleasure. 

1 jOin my colleagues in expressing our deep appreciation to tbe Governmeut 
of Uruguay for tbe warm hospitality wbicb we are eUjoying in this lovely 
place, and for all the arrangements wbich were made on relatively short notice 
to malte this meeting possible. Seeretary of State Stettiuius once said that 
there migbt not bave been a Charter of the United Nations had it not been for 
tbe weatber and charm of San Francisco. 1 am eonfident tbat Punta del Este is 
making its own speeial eontribution to tbe unity, streugtb, and progress of the 
inter-American system. 

For tbe second time in G months, tile nations of tbe Amerieas met bere in 
pursuit of their common goal-social progress and economie growth witbin a 
eommuoity of free and independeot nations. But this time we come to make 
measures to safegl.lard that freedom and independence-so tbat in tbe future 
we may devote aH our efforts to social progress and economie growtb. 

We are assembled again on tbe eastern sbore of a vast continent. Across 
this continent millions of our people are struggling to tbrow off tbe bonds 
of bunger, poverty, and ignorance-to affirm tbe hope of a better life for 
tbemselves and tbeir cbildren. Last August we jOined in an blstorie document­
tbe Cbarter of Punta del Este-setting forth the goals, tbe machinery, and 
tbe commitments necessary to tmnsform that bope into reality. Last August 
we .ioined hauds in a grea t a lliance-tlH' Alianza Para gl Progreso. 

Since that time, in every part of tbe hemispbere we bave moved forward 
witb fresh energy in fulfillment of tile pIedges we solemuly undertook to tbe 
peopIes of tile Alllericas. 'file task nhend is vasto E'·eryone in this' hall lmows 
tbe migbty effort which will be required to break tbe ancient eyele of stagnation 
and despair. But the need for aetion is urgent. Across tbe world tile winds 
of ebange are blowing; awakening peoples are demaoding to be admitted to 
the promise of the 20th century. For Americans, nortb and south, this is a 
bistorical challenge. As the 10tb eentury saw the Western Hemisphere enter 
tbe epocil of polítical independence, so tbe 20tb centllry-if those of us in this 
room, and the Governments we represent, haye boldness and faitb-will see 
tbis hemispbere en ter the epocb of economic abundanee. 

'l'he rñeans by which \Ye seek our ends are the illtelligence. decision, and will 
of the governments a 0(1 people of the hemisphere. We cannot hope to make 
progress unless the governments of onr nations fnithfn\ly mret the needs of their 
peoples for edueation and opportnnity-nnless \Ye llre~s steadily forward with 
tbe measures of self-help ano sodal refonn whic-h Illake (Ievelopment possilJle and 
spread its bencfits <lmong all the people. This \York has already begun. Let me 
say tilat it is unfinisbed business in the IJniterl Sta tes itself. ~Iany Latin 
American nations are eng¡1ged in national plan!> nnd programs, internal reforms 
and aetioll to bniltl hon~es, ~chool~, and factories. ro;¡ds a11(1 dams. l\1y own 
country has already lIIa(\e Inrge COtlllllitments for this fiscal year and will haye 
no difficulty in meeting the more than $1 billioll plt>dged to the first year of the 
Alliance for Progress. We llave together estalJlished international machinery 
to stimulate and reYiew national plaus. 
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This is a notable beginning. Tbere is, of course, much more to be done. Our 
task is to be measured, not in the months of tbis year, but in the years of tbis 
decade. I wish there were some way in which we could transmit to you the 
depth ol our afl'ectionate interest in tbe economic and social prospects of thls 
hemisphere. Perbaps you would forgive me for a personal recollection, Like 
millions of present-day North Americans, I spent my earliest years in what 
people would now call underdeveloped circumstances, We .were prescientific and 
pretechnical; we were without public health 01' medical care; typhoid, pellagra, 
hookworm, and malaria were a part oí the environment in which providence had 
placed uso Our schools were primitive, Our fathers and mothers earned a 
meager living with backbreaking toil. 

But the great adventure .- tbrough wbich many oí us have lived bas seen tbe 
transformation of our lives in a short períod-a transformation brought about 
by the magícal combination of education, health, and illcreasing productivity. 
On our farms we felt the impad of the indispensable pa rtnership among educa­
tion, scientific research, and the extension of kllowledge to those who cOllld put 
it to practical use. Neighbor helped neighbor to build a house, a bam, 01' to 
pass along news about new prospects and new methods. They joined together 
to build roads until public funds could take over the burden, They pooled their 
limited resources to hire a schoolteacher 01' a doctor, Bits of capital began to 
accumulate and this was reillvested in growth and development. More and more 
yonng people managed to get to the university and more and more of these 
brought their learning back to the benefit of their own people. 

These changes did not take place without struggle, Years of thought and 
work and debate Vl'ere required to prepare America for the necessary steps of 
self-help and social reform, I remember welJ the bitter l'esistance before 1<'rank­
lin Roosevelt was able to win support for the Tennessee Valley Authority, that 
immense network of dams and pOIVer stations and fertilizer factories and agri­
cultural extension oftices which has wrought such miraculous changes in our 
South. But a succession of progressive leaders, determined to bring about social 
change within a framework of political consent, carried through an alliance for 
progress within the United States, 

Otber parts of tbe hemisphere have experienced similar improvements. What 
has been done for some must now be done for all. It sball be our common 
purpose to labor without cease to advance tbe cause of economic progress and 
social justice within the hemispbere-to advance tbe autonomous and peaceful 
l'evolution of the Americans, 

Tbere are those in evel'y land who resis t change-who see thc society they 
know as tbe climax of history, who identify their own status and privilege with 
the welfare of tbeir people, and who oppose the vital land and tax reforms 
necessary for the completion of our .\Vorle But their resistance is doomed to 
failore, The 19th century is over; ancl, in lhe 20th, people across the earth are 
awakening from centuries of poverty and oppression to claim the right to live 
in the modern wo1'ld, "Tbe veil has been torn asuncler," wrote Bolívar, "We have 
seen the ligbt; :md \Ve will not be tbrust back into the darkness," No one can 
hope to prolong the past in a revolutionary age, Tbe only question is wbicb 
road we mean to take into the future, 

This is not a qnestion alone for this hemisphere, It is a question faced every­
where in the \\'ol'lcl , On the one hand are those ",ho believe in change through 
persuas ion amI consent-through means which respect the individual. On the 
other are those who aclvocate change through the subjugation of the individual 
and wbo see in the turbulence of change the opportunity for power. 

1 do not believe tbat I hu ve to a1'gue the moral superiority of free society 
anywhere in the Americas, 1 do not think, other things being equal, that any 
rational person would prefer t,yranny to tolerance or dictatorship to democracy, 
But there are sorne who doubt the capacity of freedom to do the job, And 
turn in resentment and rlespe1'ation to totalitarian sOlutions, They are wrong. 
Histol'Y shows that freerl orn is the most reliable means to economic development 
and social justice, and that comrnunism hetrays in performance the ends wbich 
it proclaims in Ilropaganda, The humane and pragmatic methods of freemen 
are not merel,v the l'ight \\'ay, mOl'ally, to de\'elop an underdel'eloped country; 
they are tcrhllirally the efficient way, 

We mect 1l('1'(' at Puntn riel Este lo con"idel' t he tl'n ,l!edy of Cnba, Tbere 
hal'e been lIlany ('Iement" iu thnt tl'agedy, 0111" \\'af< th!' failure of Ihe dictator­
!'hip whidl preecrled Castro to concern itself with tlle elementary needs of a 
people who hall n rigM to be free, Another was the disillusionment of the 
hopes which l'ode with Castro at the beginning of his resistance movement, And 
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now we see the Cuban people sUbjected to a regime which has committed itself 
to Marxist-Leninist doctrines at the very time wben tbis answer to economic 
and social problems has proYE'd itself to be brutal, reactionary, and sterile, 
If tbere is one lesson which we in the Americas can learn frolll observing 
what is happening from Ea8t Gel'luany to !\'ortb Vietnam, it is that Castroism 
is not the answer to economic and social del'elopment, If tbere is tension in 
Berlin today, it is beca use of tbe failure of the regillle in East Germany and 
the tligbt of tens of thousands of its people toward freedoUl and expanding 
opportunity. It is 1I'0rth notillg that I'ast areas of the 1I'0rld \\'ith remarkable 
natural re80urces ha I'e failed lo prol'ide even the elementary needs of food, 
contrasted Il'ith the SUl'pluses II'hif'h abollnd throughout much of the free world. 
'fbe needs of the indil'idual hal'e been rllthlessly subjected to the l'equirelllents 
of tbe po\\'er-hungl'y apparatus of the state. 'Yhat \Ve knolV in the free \\'orld 
as the conSlllner is bl'ushed asirle and men a re callerl upon to submit themselves 
to the requil'ements of ambition and appetite, 

Wherel'er communism goes, huuger folloll'8 , COllllllunist China todas is in the 
grip of a vast alld terrible famine, wbich, in tUl'll, ha s led lo stagnation and 
decline of industry, 'l'bere is hl1nger in J\'ortb Vietnam, whatel'er contribution 
communism has appeared to make to industrial del'elopment comes only beca use 
it does what Marx charged 19th century capitalism with doillg: That is, it grinds 
down the faces of tlle pOOl' and forces fl'om their postpolled consllluption the 
capital necessary for arms and indl1stry. Comlllunism-once in power-has 
turned out to be the most effectiye and brutal means knoll'n to histol'y for ex­
ploiting tbe working class. 

Recognizing its failure in the underdeveloped worl<l, recognizillg that its great­
est enemy is tbe process of IleacE'ful and delllOCl'atic del'elollllwnt, comlllunism in 
recent years has concentrated-in Asia, in Africa, in the Middle Rast, now in 
our own hemisphere-{)n uSing- the troubles of transition to install ComnlUnist 
minorities in permanE'nt pOll'er, The techniques by "hich COnlltlUIÜ81ll seeks to 
subvert tbe development process are neithel' mystel'iolls nOl' magi<"al. Khru­
shche\', l\{ao Tse-tung, and Che Guel'ara haye outlined them in frankness and 
detail. 'l'hey seek tirst to lay the political basis for tbe seizure of pOlVer by 
w!nning conl'erts in sections of the popnlations whose hopes and ambitions 
are thwarted by the existing order, They then try to capture control of broarlly 
based popular movements aimed ostensibly at redressing social and economic in­
justice. In sorne cases, tbey resort to guerrilla warfare, as a means of intimi­
dating opposition and disrupting orderly social progress, At every point, the 
Communists are prepared to illl'oke all the resource of propaganda and subver­
sion, of manipulation and violence, to maximize confusion, destroy faith in tbe 
democratic instrumentalities of change and open up the way for a Communist 
takeol'er, 

As for its claim to social justice, Chnirman Khl'ushchel' himself has gil'en the 
most eloquent testimony of the inevitability of monstrous injl1stice in a system 
of totalital'ian rlictatorship. 'l.'he crimes of Stalin-crimes fully acknowledged 
by his successor-are tbe inescapablE' resnlt of a política l order founded on the 
supposed infallibility of a single creed, a single pal'ty and a single lea del', Duder 
tbe banner of the cIassless society, communism has become the menns of establish­
ing what tbe Yugoslavia Comlllunist Milo\'an DjiJas has terme!1 the "new cla¡¡s"­
an elite as I'uthless in its deterlllination to Illaintaiu it prel'ogatil'es as ally
oligarchy knowll to history. 

Nothing sho\\'s more clearly the failure of cOllllnnnhm to hl'illg' ahollt economic 
development and social justice than the present condition of Europe, Tbe 
bankruptcy of cornmunism is etched in the contrast between the thril'ing econo­
mies of Western Europe and the drnb stagnation of Easterll Europe-nnd it is 
symbolized in the wall of Berlin, el'ected to ;,:top the mass flight of ol'dinary
people from communislll to freedom, 

Tbe proponents of free society need ha ve no apologies. 'Ye ha ve moved far 
beyond the rigid laissez-faire capitalism oí the 19th century, The open society 
of the mid-20th century can offer tlle reality of what tbe Communists promise 
but do not and cannot produce-because the means they are using, tlle tech­
niques of hatred and violence, can never produce anything but more violence 
and more hatred, Communism is not the wave of tbe future. Communists 
are only the exploiters of people's aspirations-and theil' (]espair, They are tlle 
scavengers of the tl'ansition frolll stagnation into the Illo(]ern \Vorld, 'l'he wal'e of 
the future is the peaceful, demoe; ratic revolution symbOlizecl for the Allleric:as in 
the Alliance for Progress-the revolution II'hich \\'ill bring change without ('baos,
development without dictatorsbip, and hope without hatred. 
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This is our faith, because we have pledged ourselves to this road into the 
future, we ha ve no more urgent obligation than to guarantee and prptect the 
independence of the democratic revolution. Because communism has its own 
ambitions, communism everywhere directs its most intense elfort to making 
democratic change impossible. It is in this setting that 1 ask you to consider 
the question of the purposes and metbods of cOlllmunism in our bemispbere. 

Ir tbe one striking development of the last years in our hemisphere has been 
tbe rise of tbe Alliance for Progress, the otber striking development has been 
the defection of Cuba from the in ter-American system. 

Let us be clear about the character of the problem presented by Castro and 
his government. 

We have no quarrel with the people of Cuba. As tbis week we have welcomed 
a free Dominican Republic back into the inter·American community, so we 
looked forward to tbe day when a free and progressive government wil! fiourish 
in Havana, and the Cuban people can Join with us in tbe common undertakings 
of tbe bemispbere. 

Many of us in this hemispbere had no quarrel witb tbe avowed purposes of 
tbe revolution of 1959. Many rejoiced in the aspiratlons of the Cuban people 
for polítical líberty and social progress. Nor would we ha ve any quarrel with 
changes in the economic organization of Cuba instituted witb tbe consent of 
tbe Cuban people. Our bemisphere has room for a diversity of economic sys­
tems. But we do condemn the interna l excesses of the Castro regime---the viola­
tions of civil justice, tbe drumbead executions, the suppression of political, 
intellectual, and religious freedom. But even tbese tIlings, repellent as they are, 
bave been known to our continent. lf kept within the confines oi one unhappy 
country, tbey would not constitute a direct tbrea t to the peace and the inde· 
pendence of otber American sta tes. 'Vhat we cannot accept-and will ne,·er 
accept-is the use of Cuba as tbe means througb which extracontinental powers 
seek to break up tbe inter·American system, to overthrow the governments of 
other countries and to destroy tbe autonomous demacratic evolution of the 
hemispbere. 

Tbe Castro regime bas extended tbe global battle to Latin America. It bas 
supplied communism witb a bridgebead in tbe Americas, and it has tbereby 
brougbt the entire hemispbere into tbe front !ine of tbe struggle between com­
munism and democracy. It bas turned itself into an arsenal for arms and 
ammunition froIn the Communist world. 'Vitb Communist help Dr. Castro 
has built up the largest military establishment in Latin America. 

Within the United Nations, the Cuban delegation bas abandoned its brethren 
of tbe hemispbere to play the smil'king sycopbant for tbe Communist bloc. 
Out of tbe 37 rollcall votes tal,en on the most important issues in tbe last session 
of tbe General Assembly, a majority of the members of the Organization of 
American States voted together 35 times. But, of these 37 votes, Cuba voted 33 
times with the Soviet bloc-and only 5 times with the OAS majority. Cuba 
opposed the resolution appealing to the Soyiet Un ion not to explode the 50·mega­
ton bomb; it was the only delegation in the United Nations, besides tbe 10 avowed 
members of tbe Soviet bloc, to do so. In the same mauner, Cuba alone joined 
the Communist bloc to oppose the resolution calling for a nuclear test ban treaty 
with international controls. On several occasions, Cuban representatives fol­
lowed other members of the Communist bloc in walldng out of the General As­
sembly when delegates of sta tes 110t approyed by the Soviet Union dared take 
the floor. 

At the seventh meeting of Foreign Ministers at San Jase in August 1960, our 
governments together rejected any attempt on the part of the Communist powers 
to exploit the political, economic, 01' social troubles of any American sta te. Since 
San Jose, the Cuban Government has alined itself more fiagrantly than ever with 
those dedicated to the overthro\V of the in ter-American system and the destruc­
tion ol inter·American freedom. The Soviet-Cuban communique of September 
20, 1961, and tbe Chinese-Cuban communique of October 2, 1961, both signed by 
President Dorticos, proclaim an identity of vie\Vs on foreign pOlicy between the 
Cuba n and tbe Soviet and Chinese Cornmunist regimes. Only a few weeks ago, 
Dr. Roa, the Cuba n IIIinister of FOl'eign Alfa irs, made clear once aga in that the 
primary allegiance of the Ca~tro Government is not to its brethreu in tbe Ameri­
cas but to its comrades beyond the Irou Curtain. "The Socialis t camp, led by 
the in\·incibl", Soviet Un ion, is \Vith the Cuban reyolution," Dr. Roa said. "We 
are neither alone nor helpless. The world is with the Cuban revolution, and the 
future belongs entirely to the universal Socialist sOciety that is coming, and of 
which, forever, Cuba already forms part." 
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When Dr. Castro himself said on December 2, "1 am a Marxist-Leninist and 
1 shall be n Marxist-Leninist until the last day of my life," he could have sur­
prised only those who have paid no attention to the evolution of tbe Castro 
reglme. This public oath of fealty to Marxism·Leninism underlines Dr. Castro's 
commitment to the Leninist use of deception and violen ce, to the Leninist con­
tempt for free institutions, and to the Leninist injunction tbat obedience to 
tbe international Communist movement is the bighest duty. 

Driven by this Marxlst·Leninist faith, the Castro regime has dedicated itseIf, 
not to the struggle for democracy within the hemisphere or even within Cuba, 
but to the perversion and corruption of this struggle in the interests of world 
communism. Part In ol the report of tbe Inter-American Peace Committee 
sets fortb the tíes of the Government of Cuba wlth the Sino-Soviet bloc, its 
subversive activities within the hemisphere, its violations oi human rlghts, 
and the incompatibility of its behavior with the Charter of tbe Organization 
of American States. 

Fourteen years ago at Bogotá, the Ninth International Conference of Ameri­
can States in its Resolution XXXII on "The Preservation and Defense of 
Democracy in America" declared that "By its antidemocratic nature and 
its interventionist tendency, the polítical activity of international communism 
or any other totalítarian doctrine is incompatible with tbe concept of American 
freedom. This resolution condemned "interference by nny foreign power, or 
by any polítical organization serving the interests of a foreign power, in the 
public life of tbe nations of the American continent." The American Republics 
solemnly resolved "to adopt, within their respective territories and in accordance 
with their respective constitutional provisions, tbe measures necessary to erad!­
cate and prevent activities directed, assisted, 01' instigated by foreign govern­
ments, organizations, 01' individuals tending to overtbrow their !nstitutions by 
violence, to foment disorder in their domestic political life, 01' to disturb, by 
means of pressure, subversive propaganda, tbreats, or by any other means, the 
free and sovereign right of their peoples to govern themselves in accordance 
wlth their democratic aspirations." 

Three yearsago at Santiago, the Foreign Ministers of tbe American Re­
publics reaffirmed the Bogotá Resolution in the Declaration of Santiago, con­
demning "the methods of every system tending to suppress political and civil 
rights and liberties, and in particular the ·action of international communism 
or any other totalltarian doctrine." 

No one can doubt, on the basis of bard evidence compiled by committees of 
tbe OAS and known to every observer in our hemisphere, that the Castro 
regime has placed itself in a position of systematic and contemptuous hostility 
to these principIes of our inter-American system. Beyond the evidence, every 
delegate in this hall knows in his mind and heart that those behind Castro bope 
to overthrow his Government and every other Government in Latln America. 
Tbe Castro regime, by repudiating the principIes and pbilosopby of tbe inter­
American system and making itself the American agent of world communism, 
has created a clear and present dangel' to the prospects of free and democratic 
change in every country in Latin America. The time has come for the American 
Republics to unite against Communist intervention in tbis hemisphere. We 
believe in tbe inter·American system. We stand on the principIes of the Charter 
of tbe Organization of American States. We are faithful to the ancient hope of 
a hemisphere of free democracies, bound together in independence and common 
purpose. EIse we would reject that bope, forsake our faith itself, exposed in 
its isolation to every gust of political 01' ideological fanaticism. 

The Alliance for Progress is the best way of attacking the longrun sources of 
tbe Communist appeal-poverty, hunger, and ignorance. But the Alliance cannot 
by itself provide a means of warding olf tbe sbortrun Communist tactlcs of dis­
ruption and subversion. Vitamin tablets will not save aman set upon by hood­
lums in an alley. If tbe Alliance is to succeed, we need to protect the Democratic 
processes of change---we need a shield bebind which constructive measures can 
take elfect in steady and secure progression. We have seen the elfect of Commu­
nist disruptive tacUcs in other lands and other continents. Let us take action 
now to guard our own continent and our programs of Democratic reform against 
those who seek to replace democracy by dictatorship--those wbo would trans­
form our fellowship of free states into a bondage of satellites. 

1 am confident that this meeting of foreign ministers will bearten tbe Demo­
cratic forces of this continent by making it clear that we will not stand stilI while 
the enemies of democracyconspire to make Democratlc change lmposslble. 
Against Dr. Castro's Communist allies, let us reaffirm our faltb in our own good 
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neighbors; let us commit our minds and our hearts to the success of our free 
Alliance for Progress. 

What is our working task here at this meeting? l suggest we must move in 
four major directlons : 

First, we must recognize that the alinement oí the Government oí Cuba with 
the countrles of the Sino-Soviet bloc, and its commltment to extend Communlst 
power in this hemlslJhere, are Incompatible with the purposes and principIes oí 
the Inter-American system and that its current activities are an ever-present and 
common danger ro the peace and security oí the continent. 

Second, we must now make the policy decision to exclude the Castro regime 
frvm participation in the organs and bodies of the inter-American system; and 
to direct the Council of the Organization ro determine how best to give rapid 
implementation to thls decision. Within OUl" own competence, since the lnter­
American Deíense Board was created by a meeting oí consultation, we can and 
should now exclude the Government oí Cuba from membership in the lnter­
American Deíense Board. This step would correct at once the most obvious in­
congruity arising from the participation of a regime alíned with the Sino-Soviet 
bloc in a body planning the defense of the hemisphere against the aggressive 
designs of international communism. 

Third, we must interrupt the lImited but signifieant flow oí trade between Cuba 
and the rest oí the hemisphere, especially the traffie in arms. 

Fourth, we must set in motion a series oí individual and communal acts oí 
deíense against the various forms of polítical and indireet aggression mounted 
against the hemisphere. The acts of polítical aggression which the Castro 
regime is committing have an immediate and direct impaet in the general Carib­
bean area near the foeus oí infection. Yet with one exception there is not a 
íoreign minister present whose eountry has not felt the impac-t oí the interven­
tionist ac-tivities which constitute essential elements oí the international Com­
munist designo "Ve must find adequate means to strengthen our capacity to 
anticipate and overeome this constant gnawing at the security oí our peoples. In 
particular, we should direct the lnter-American Deíense Board to establish a 
special security committee ro recommend individual and collective measures ro 
the Governments of the American States for their gl"eater protection against any 
acts or threats of aggression, direct or indirect, resulting from the continued 
intervention of Sino-Soviet powers or others associated with them. 

As we confront these decisions let us face, as old friends and neighbors, a íew 
basle facts in OUl" situation. The weight oí Communist aggressive techniques 
is felt unequally among us; the nature oí tbe Communist threat is undersrood 
in ditrerent ways among our peoples; and the OAS itself is confronted, as a body, 
with a íorm of aggressive action relatively new in its history. 

\Ve have heard references to the intrusion of the cold war into this heml­
sphere. There may be some who wonder whether the Americas are being 
caught up, as innocent bystanders, in a struggle among the giants. 

But let us tbink clearly about wbat tbe cold war is and what It is noto The 
Communist world has dedicated itself to the indetinite expansion oí what it calls 
its his torieally inevitable world revolution. The eold war is simply the effort 
oí communism to extend its power beyond the confines oí the Communist bloc 
and the effort of free men to defend themselves against this systematic aggres­
sion. The cold war would have bee"h unknown to us had the Soviet Union deter­
mined, at the end of World War n, to live in peaee with other nations in aecord­
ance with its comrnitments under the Charter of the United Nations. The cold 
war would end tomorrow if those who control the Communist movement would 
cease their aggressive acta, In all their many forms. Nothing would be more 
gratit'ying ro the citlzens of my country than to have the Soviet Unlon bring 
about tbe revolution of peace by a simple deaision to leave the rest of the world 
alone. 

But the cold war is not a con test between the Soviet Union and the United 
States which the United States is pursuing for national ends. It Is a struggle 
in the long srory of freedom, between those who would destroy it and those who 
are determined to preserve it. If every nation were genulnely independent, and 
left alone to work out its relations wlth its neighbors by common agreement, the 
tensions between Washington and Moscow would vanish overnight. 

Speaking last Oetober, before the 22d Communist Party Congress, Mr. 
Khrushchev sald : 

"We firmly believe that the time will come when the children and grandchil­
dren of those who do not understand and do not accept c-ommunism wiil Uve 
under communism." 
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This is his belief. Were it only his belief we need not care; but it Is also the 
program oí action of the Communlst powers-and about that we care a very 
great dea!. 

We know that the Communist effort to impose their system on othel" nations 
and peoples will faíl and that the next generation will dwell in· a community of 
independent nations, each freely pursuing the welfare of ita people. We know 
this is so because history confirms that freedom must \Vin because it is rooted 
in the nature of man and in his relations with God. 

Our problem today is to combine a sense of the necessities of the harsh real­
ities with the dreams upon which civilized man has steadily built. A shining 
future is waiting for us in this hemisphere--a future in which every child will 
have a decent chance for life, for edueation, for medieal eare, for eonstruetive 
labor, and creative contribution : in whieh every republie on this continent will 
cooperate to improve lagging standards, ro elevate culture, and to raise man ro 
his full dignity in freedom. 

We have the talents, the resources, and the aspirations. \Ve need not retreat 
into the murky shadows of a eonspiratorial sOciety developed on the steppes of 
central Asia beca use we can move ahead in the great tradition of a civilization 
whieh was born in the free discourse of the early Mediterranean world more 
than 2,000 years ago, was nourished in ,"Vestern Europe, and came to this hemi­
sphere to be extended by Bolivar and San Martin, by Marti, Jefferson, and Lin­
coln. 

Our task roday is not to let a petty tyrant who has appeared among us divert 
us from these great tasks but to put hlm in his place while we proceed with the 
great adventure upon which we are embarked together. 
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ApPENDIX II 

The following chronology of events in Cuba was prepared by the 
Department of State at the request of Senator Morse and was ordered 
printed as an appendix to these hearings: 

CHBONOLOGY OF IMPORTANT EVENT8 IN UNITED STATES-CUDAN RELATION8, 1957--{12 

8UMMARY 

The attached ehronology for the period 1957-62 records, on the one hand, 
U.S. Government attempts to get along with the Castro regime in Cuba, and on 
the otber, tbat regime's bostility toward the United States and betrayal of tbe 
Cuban revolution to international communism. 

As early as 1957 the U.S. Government expressed its concern over political 
unrest in Cuba. In 1958 we suspended arms shipments to tbe Batista govern­
ment which, in disregard of an agreement witb the United States, had used them 
to combat tbe revolutionary movement beaded by ]'idel Castro. Wben the Castro 
regime came to power in 1959, the United States looked upon it with sympatby, 
recognized it almost immediately, and welcomed its promises oi political freedom 
and social justice for the Cuban people. We made clear our willingness to dis­
cuss Cuba's economic needs. Despite our concern at the Cuba n regime's mount­
ing bostility toward the United Sta tes and its growing Communist tendencies, we 
attempted patiently and consistently from early 1959 untillate 1960 to negotiate 
dilIerences with the regime.

Elements in tbe Castro movement engaged in anti-American activities during 
the revolution against Batista. Soon after it came to power in 1959, the Castro 
government turned away from its previous promises, permitted Communist 
intluence to grow, attacked and persecuted its own supporters in Cuba who 
expressed opposition to communism, arbitrarily seized U.S. properties, and made 
a series of baseless charges against tbe United States. It ignored, rejected, or 
imposed impossible conditions on repeated U.S. overtUl'es to cooperate and 
negotiate. In 1960 Cuba established close polith:al, economic, and military 
relationships with the Sino-Soviet bloc, while increasing the pace and vebemence 
oi measures and attacks against tbe Hnited States. We did not take defensive 
measures until the last bali oi 1960. 

Tbe United Sta tes terminated relations with tbe Cuban Government in January 
1961 beca use of Cuban demands wbich placed crippling limitations on our ability 
to carry out diplomatic and consular fl,1nctions in Cuba. Tbe adoption by tbe 
present Cuban Government oi a totalitarian Communist system and its aUne­
ment with tbe international Communist movement, whicb were already clear at 
tbat time, bave become more complete since tllen. These developments cul­
mlnated in December 1961, when Castro openly espoused Marxlsm-Leninism. 

July 25, 1957: U.S. Ambassador Earl T. Smitb, upon presentation of credentials, 
atates that tbe American people are saddened and concerned over the polítical 
unrest wbicb has led to bloodahed in Cuba. 

March 14, 1958: U.S. suspenda arms deliveries to Cuba. 
June 22, 1958: Raul Castro, rebel commander in northern Oriente Province, 

issues a milltary order for the detention, elIective June 27, oi all U.S. 
male eitizens for the purpose oi "stopping U.S. military shipments to the Batista 
government." Pursuant to tbis order, starting June 26, Cuban rebels kidnap 43 
U.S. citizens, Includlng 30 sailors and marines, from the U.S. Naval Base at 
Guantanamo Bay, Cuba. The last of those kidnaped are released July 18. 

September-October 1958: Cuban rebels set up a system for levying taxes on 
both Cuban and U.S. enterprises operating in rebel-occupied territory in eastern 
Cuba, and harass several U.S. companies In an attempt to eollect funds and ae­
qulre suppl1es and equipment. 

Oetober 20, 1958: Cuban rebels kidnap two Americans employed by the Texas 
OH Oo., and release them 3 days later. 
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January 1,1959: President Batista tlees Cuba. 
January 2, 1959: Fidel Castro proclaims provisional government headed by

Manuel Urrutia as President. 
January 5, 1959: President Urrutia appoiuts Jose Miró Cardona as Prime 

Minister. 
January 7, 1959: The United States recognizes the Cuban Government, noting 

witb satisfaction the assurances given of tbe Cuba n intention to comply with 
international obligations and agreements, and expresses the sincere gooel will of 
the Government and people of the Uuited States toward the new Government and 
the people of Cuba. 

January 7, 1959: TlIe Communist Party daily, Hoy, appears iu Havana for 
the tirst time since 1953. 

January 9, 1059: Ernesto Guevara, commander of La Cabaña fortress in 
Ravana, says tbat many members of the Communist Party lost tlleir lives tigbting 
Batista while the Batista governmeut was receiving wea pons from the U.S. 
Government, and that the Communists bave earned the right to be just anotber 
party in Cuoo. 

January 13, 1959: By tbis date, almost 200 persons have been "tried" by revo­
lutionary tribunals, found guilty, and summarily shot. By tbe elld of 1959, tbA 
count is over 600. 

January 27, 1959: Nine U.S. companies operating in Cuba have made advancp 
payments of $2,560,000 on taxes which are 1I0t due until March 30. 

February 16, 1959: Fidel Castro succeeds Miro Cardona as Prime Minister. 
l\'1arcb 2, 1959: U.S. Ambassador Philip W. Bonsal presents credentials. HP. 

brings cordial greetiogs aod heartfelt good wishes trom President Eisenhower for 
the happioess, prosperity, and pl"Ogress of Cuba. He states to President Urrutia: 
"We wish you every success in your annouocec\ objective of raising the standard 
of living of your country. 1 shall devote particular atteution to all opportu· 
nities of illcreased cooperation in the economic field whi(;h may present tbeJl'l­
selves." 

March 4, 1959: The Cuban Government illtervenes the Cuba u Telephone Co.. 
tbe first intervention of a U.S.-owned firm. 

Marcb 16, 1959: Cuba n Ambassador Ernesto Dihigo presents credentials. 
President Eisenhower expresses hope and desire for ever c10ser relatiousbin 
between Cuba and tbe Unitee! Sta tes. 

l\larcb 22, 1959: Prime Miuister Castro charges that" U.S. authorities were lax 
in keeping track of arms purchases and other activities in the United Sta tes 
directed against CastrO. United Sta tes denies charge on l\farcb 23. 

April13, 1959: Ambassador BOllsal tells Prime Minister Castro that the United 
States considers Castro's forthcomiug visit to the United Sta tes Yery imllortaut, 
and olIers to help in any way required. 

April 16, 1969: Durillg lunch giveu by Secretary of State Christian Herter for 
Prime Minister Castro in Washington, Assistant Secretary of State Hoy R. 
Rubottom, Jr., io conyersation with tbe president of the Cuban Nationul Bank, 
Felipe Pazos, arranges furthe!" conversatiolls for thc fOllowiog day with Cuuan 
otllcials. 

April 17, 1959: Assistant Secretary Hubottom gives Minister of Economy 
Regino Botí, Minister of Tl'easury Rufo Lopez Fresquet, and Pazos friendly 
welcome and invites tbem to imlicate Cuba's neec\s. He says the U.S. Govern­
ment desires to be belpfu!. The Cubans rebuff olIer. 

Later the same day Prime Minister Castro, in a f;peech to the American 
Society of Newspaper Editors, sayE' he has not come to Ihe United States to ask 
for money. 

May 17, 1959: Cuban Government approves agrarian reform law, providing 
for taking of agricultural properties, payment to be in 20-year bonds at 4% per. 
cent Interest. 

May 27, 1959: Assistant Secretary Rubottom tells Ambnssador Dibigo that tbe 
United Sta tes understands that the Cuba n revolution is deep and meaningful for 
the Cuban people, tbat its eventual course is matter for their decision, and tbat 
we understand tbe desire and need for land reformo 

June 1, 1959: Ambassador Bonsal, in informal conversation with Minister of 
State Roberto Agramonte, sta tes tllat the United Sta tes supports sound land 
reform, and recognizes Cuba's right to E'xpropriate private property, provided just 
and prompt compensation is made. He sta tes that it is in the interest of botll 
Cuba and the United Sta tes to \York togetber, to get along amicably, and to afford 
each otller a fuI! Ilearing before taking actions materially alIectíng the other. 
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June 11, 1959: Commenting on Cuban agrarian reform law, United States ex­
presses sympatby for the objecti,es of agrarian reform; recognizes tbe rigbt of 
a state to tal,e property for public purposes, coupled witb an obligation to pay 
prompt, ac1equate, and effective compensation; expresses concern as to tbe ade­
quacy of tbe la""s provisions for <:ompensation to U.S. citizens wbose property 
lllay be expropriated; and expresses hope for further ex<:hanges of views. 

.June 12, 1959: Ambll ssador Bonsal urges on Prime Minis ter Castro the impor­
la nce of elose relations between Cuba a nd the United Sta tes beca use of the inter­
relnted economies and the proxilllity of the two countries. 

June 20, lD59: In Washington, Assis tant Secretary Rubottom offers Cuban 
l\finister of State R<1ul noa fuU cooreration in returning problems of United 
States-Cuban relat iolls to 110rllllll , nonpublic diploJllati<: cba nnels, as advocated 
by Ron. 

June 22. 195D: In Washington, Under Secretllry of Stnte C. Douglas DiIlon tells 
:I[j ni><ter of State Roa of the sinc'ere desire of the l'nited Sta tes tbat Cuba grow 
and prospero an(1 expresses the hope that t.he mutua lly beneficial traditional 
rel ntiollship het\H'en the l'ni ted Sta tes nnd Cuba C"ontinue. 

.Tune 25, 1959: Cuba n GOyemmellt seizes three of U. ~.-owned cattle r anches in 
(' ¡llllngul'~' Pruv inee, first sudl seizures subsequent to the agra rian reform law. 

June 27, 1959: Cuban GO\'el'llll1ent seizes U.S.-owned ca ttle ra nch in Oriente 
l'rovince. 

.l uly 1, 1!);í9: Maj . Pedro Luis Diaz Lanz re¡:;igns as hend of tbe Cuban Air 
Force, charging Cmlllllunist infiltra t ion of the armed forees and Government. 

.luly 12, UJ59: Prillle Mini s ter Castro describes reported appearance of Major 
Dinz Lanz before tll e Senil te lntern:l l Security Snbcommittee in executive session 
¡lS a n unfl'iendly aet a nd as U.S. interference in the interna l affairs of Cuba. 

.Tuly 13, 19G!): President. Urrutia, appea ring on telev isivn, states tbat commu­
nism is not renlly ('oncernecl with the "'elfare of the peorle, and that it con­
s titutes a danger for the Cuban revolu t ion . 

.luly 14, 1(J59: :l1ajor Diaz La n7. testifies publicly before the Senate Internal 
Reeuri ty Subcml1mittee on communism in Cuha. 

,Tuly H, 1!)i'í(): .\d ing :l'linis ter of State Arma ndo Hart clenonnces Dia z Lanz'" 
appea rance before S('nate Interna l Security Subcommittee as blatant interven­
tion in Cuban internal affa irs . 

July 17, 1959: In télev ision appea rance, Fidel Castro resigns as Prime Minister 
ancl accuses President Urrutia of treason beca use of July 13 speecb. Ul'rutia 
resigns. 

J uly 23, 1959: Ambassador Bonsn! expresses to lIfinister of State Roa tbe 
general sympathy of tlle United States for the objectives of tbe Cuban revo!ution 
and our snpport fol' agrarian reform programs of a sound nature. States that 
in connection \Vitll the Diaz Lanz case, U.S. policy has been correct and faitllful 
to Ol1\' highest principIes. Expresses concern over the deterioration in Cuba­
United Sta tes rel at ions as a result of anti-America n sta tements of principal 
Cuba n GO"ernment leaders. Expresses \Vish of U.S. Goyernment to cooperate in 
nny way in obtaining information on va rious incidents. 

.luly 26, 1959: Fidel Castro ann ounces that he \ViII resume position of Pri me 
:\-{inister . 

.luly 31, 1959: 011 at least si x occasions cluring the month, Cuba n Govern­
men t officials ¡:;eize or pIare cat tle on land o\Yned by 11.S. citizens. 

Augus t 15, 1959: Prime Ministel' Castro charges complic ity of P.S. officials 
in permitting planes participating in counterrevolutiona ¡'y activities against 
Cuba to take off from the United Sta tes. 

August 21, 19:)9: Assista nt Secretary Rnbottom emphusi zes to Ambassador 
Dihigo that he beli e"es that tll e United Sta tes ancl Cuba urgently need to sit 
clown 'together and talk over various problems to arriH' nt. an unders ta nding. 

August 31, ]959: 011 at least three occasions dming the month, Cuban Gov­
ernment offidnl s seize or Ilanest lnnd owned by P .S. eitizens. 

Sertembel' 2, 1959 : Depnty Assis tant Secretary of State Willi am P . Snow, in 
conversation with Ambassador Dihigo, expresses regret at the continu ing at­
tacks on the Un ited States hy Cuban Government offieiu ls, concern a t the failure 
of the Cuba n Gonrnlll ent to hear the views of U.S. business interests before 
the passage of la",!:; affecting them, and the hope that the Cnban Government 
might arrh'e at a better undcrstanding of the U.S. position in defense of de­
llJOC l' fi('y ag:l inst the \Vorld Comml1nis t conspiracy.

September 3, 1959: In first interview since ,June 12, Ambnssador Bonsal ex­
presses to Prime 1\l inister Castro our general sympathy \Vitb the objectives of 
the revolution, concern at a nti-American statemen ts made by Cuban officials and 
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al lnsinuations by Cuban officials that our relaUons bave not been straigbt­
torward and correcto at the treatment received by American interests in Cuba, 
and at tbe tailure ol t.be Cuban Government to see the implications of inter­
national communlsm. 

September 10, 1959: Assistant Secretary Rubottom tells Cuban representa­
tive on Inter-American Economic and Social Council, Enrique Perez Cisneros, 
that the United States ls still disposed to carry out a policy of friendsbip and 
fairness toward Cuba despite considerable provocation during tbe past 9 montbs. 

September 21, 1959: Ambassador Dibigo informs Assistant Secretary Rubot­
tom tbat President Osvaldo Dorticos and Minister of State Roa are completely 
receptive to tbe idea tbat Cuba and tbe United States begin lmmediately to 
dlscuss thelr problems and endeavor to arrive at mutually acceptable solutions. 
Re requests tbat the United States compile a list of tbe general and specific 
problems now troubling tbe United States in its relations witb Cuba, and present 
tbe list to tbe Cuban Government. Rubottom indicates bis pleasure at tbis 
request and says tbat we will immediately give consideration as how best to 
meet it. 

September 30, 1959: On at least eight occasions during tbe montb, Cuban 
Government officials seize water system, forest and otber lands, and place cattle 
on land owned by U.S. citizens. 

October 6, 1959: Ambassador Bonsal teIls Minlster of State Roa tbat the 
L'nlted States is generally in sympatby witb tbe stated democratic social ob­
jectives of tbe Cuban revolution, but also Is perplexed and in doubt about 
Cuban attitudes toward the United States and tbe free world. 

October 12, 1959 : United States presents note to Cuban Government reaffirlD­
ing our understanding and sympatby for tbe goals whic.b the Cuban Govern­
ment has declared to be tbe purpose of its agrarian reformo 

October 19, 1959: Maj. Rubert Matos, a rebel army leader during the revolu­
tion, resigns as military cbief of Camaguey Province, cbarging Communlst 
penetration of tbe Government. Matos ls arrested and on December 15 ls 
sentenced 'lo 20 years in prison for conspiracy, sedition, and treason. 

October 21, 1959: Maj. Diaz Lanz makes an illegal fligbt from the United 
States over Ravana. Prime Minister Castro charges that tbe plane bombed and 
strafed Ravana resulting in deatbs and injuries. 

October 26, 1959: Prime Minister Castro Recuses tbe Unites States of tolerat­
ing air incursions against Cuba and of threatening Cuba witb economic strangu­
lation. 

October 26, 1959: Cuban Government passes law imposing confiscatory taxes 
upon tbe Nicaro nickel facilities, owned by tbe U.S. Government, in violation of 
a blnding international agreement. Subsequently tbe Cuban Governmellt lnter­
mittently embargoes tbe export of tbe product and continually barasses the 
operation by delaying or falling to approve tbe exportation of the product and 
tbe importation of critically needed supplies and replacement parts. 

October 27, 1959: Referring to October 21 incident, United States s ta tes tbat 
tbe plane distributcd leaflets over Havana, tbat it was impossible for the plane 
to bomb or strafe, that tbe Cuban pOlice reported no bombing or strafing, and 
that deatbs and injuries from the incident must bave resulted from Cuban anti­
aircraft fire 01' bombs tbrown by terrorists. Rejects implication tbat tbe United 
States approved the flight or was in any way responsible. 

October 27, 1D59: Ambassador Bonsal tells Cuban President Osvaldo Dorticos 
and Minister of State Roa that tbe "United States awaits a resolution by the 
Cuban Government of the issues involved on a basis of friendship and observance 
of inter-naUonallaw which have traditionally cbaracterized negotiations between 
Cuba and tbe United States." Bonsal also expresses the hope that normal 
negotiations wil! not be distorted to obscure tbe deep sympathy ",ith which the 
entire United States views the efforts of tbe Cuban people to achieve tbeir social, 
economic, and political aspirations. 

October 31, 1959: On at least 12 occasions during the months, Cuban Govern­
ment officials seize lands, cattle, and equipment, order cattle moved, deny access 
to pastures, order cutting of tirober, open fences and plow up land, and place 
cattle on land owned by U.S. citizens. 

November 6, 1959: Cuban Ministry of State distributes broC'hure entitled 
"Cuba Denounces Before the 'Vorld." Brochure repeats alIegations about Octo­
ber 21 plnne incident and charges that the United States is providiug politi cal 
asylum to Cuban fugitives from justice. 

November 9, 19¡j9: United States protests Noverober 6 brocbure as disregard­
ing facts on pla ne incident. AIso states that Cuban Government has never re­
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quested extradition of alleged fugitives from justice under extradltlon treaty 
with United Sta tes. 

November 24, 1959: Daniel M. Braddock, Minister-Counselor of American Em­
bassy, Havana, sta tes to Minister of Economy Boti that altbough various indi­
vidual matters have been discussed between Cuba and the United States, Httle 
or no progress has been made on them. Braddock says that so me American 
companles in Cuba fear that the ultimate intention of the Cuban Government 
is to take them overo 

November 30, 1959: On at least nine occasions during the month, Cuban Gov­
ernment officials seize land, catUe, and equipment, and place cattle on land owned 
by U.S. citizens. 

December 4, 1959: Ambassador Bonsal reviews for Minister of Economy Boti 
the principal events in United States-Cuban relations since October 12, noting 
the deterioration that has occurred in the mean time. He refers to the Cuba n 
otl'e¡' of November 13 to continue negotiations on pending questions, and asks 
if Boti is disposed to resume tbese discussions. Boti indica tes assent. 

December 31, 1959 : Cuba and Communist Cbina sign trade agreement under 
wbich Cuba is to seU Peiping 50,000 tons of sugar. 

December 31, 1\:159: On at least seven occasions during the month, Cuban 
Government officials seize land, equipment, property, remove timber, borrow 
equipment (most of which is not retumed), and use repair sbops owned by U.S. 
citizens. 

January 11, 1960: United States protests seizure of U.S. property in recent 
weeks by Cuban officials in yiolation of agrarian reform law. States tbat with­
out court order or any written autborization, lands and buildings have been 
seized and occupied; equipment bas been confiscated and removed; cattle have 
been taken; wood bas been cut and sold; productive pastures have been plowed 
under without tbe consent of tbeir owners; and fences and boundaries have been 
arbitrarily moved. 

January 21, UJ60: Prime Minister Castro says tbat notes froro the U.S. State 
Department and statements by U.S. officials encournge counterrevolutionary 
activities against Cuba and indicate tbat a policy of bostility against Cuba is 
more evident every day. He implies that tbe United States exploited Cuba for 
50 years. 

January 26, 1960: President Eisenbower reaffirms tbe adberence of the United 
Sta tes to tbe pOlicy of nonilltervention in tbe domestic affairs of other countrles, 
including Cuba; explicitly recognizes the rigbt of tbe Cuban Government and 
people to undertake social, economic, and polítical reforms wbich, witb due 
regard for tbeir obligations under international law, tbey may tbink desirable; 
and expresses the sympathy of the American people for the aspirations of the 
Cuban people. 

January 27, 1960 : Answering President Eisenbower's statement of January 
26, President Dorticos states tbat the Cuban Government is fuUy disposed to 
discuss differences between Cuba and the United States through diploma tic 
negotiations, and will hear and consider complaints and claims regarding In­
dividual cases raised by U.S. citizens, in accordance with CuMn and international 
law. 

January 31, 1960: On at least 11 occasions during the month, Cuban Govern­
ment officials seize a marine dredge, land, sto res, cattle and borses, and brand 
cattle owned by ti .S. citizens. 

February 4, 1000: Soviet First Deputy Premier Anastas 1. Mikoyan arrlves 
to open a Soviet exhibition. 

February 4, 19ÜO: Charge d' Affaires Braddock states to Minister of State Roa 
that the United Sta tes is disposed to take President Dorticos' statement at face 
value aMI is prepa red to retllrn to diploma tic norms. Braddock mentions tbe 
desirability of leading officials of botb Cuba and the United States working 
within the traditional spirit of United States-Cuban friendship, maintaining 
an atmosphere free of llUblic rccriminations, and observing standards of inter­
national and ctomestic la IVS applicable to each other's nationals. 

February lO, 1fJ60 : United Sta tes states that it cOlIsiders tlle January 27 state· 
ment of President Dorticos consistent \\"ith a desire for a return to normal 
diplomatic channcls and \\"elcomes the readiness of the Cuban Government to 
negotiate pending problems. 

Fl'brllary 13. 1!l60: l'rime )[ini8ter Castro ane! Depnty Premier l\Iikoyan sign 
joint Soviet-Cuban comllllllliqlle <Iescribing their conversa tions as "carried out 
in an atmospliere of frank cordiality." 
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February 13, 1960: Cuba and Soviet Union slgn trade and economlc aid agree­
ments. Soviet Union to buy 1 mllllon ton s of Cuban sugar in eacb of ensuing 
5 years. Soviet Union extends $100 million credit for purchase of equipment. 

February 15, 1960: Replying to U.S. protest of January 11, Cuba n Government 
states that no property has been confiscated under tbe agrarian reform law; that 
where agrarian reform officials have occupied properties, steps are being taken 
for their fair appraisal; and that if tbe United Statesconsiders that Cuban 
laws have been violated, U.S. natlonals have the right to appeal througb 
appropriate channels. 

February 15, 1960: Commerce Minister Cepero Bonilla sta tes that the United 
States paya a premium price for sugar in order to bolster "inefficient and ex­
penslve" domestlc sugar producers who cannot compete with "etficient and cheap 
producers such as Cuba." 

Februar,y 20, 1960: Cuba signs trade and payments agreement with East 
Germany. 

February 22, 1960: Cuban Government announces that it has decided to name 
a commission to begin negotiations in Washington, under the condition tbat 
the legis,atlve and executive branches of tbe U.S. Government will adopt no 
measure consldered prejudicial to the Cuban economy and people wbile the 
negotlations are in progress. 

February 24, 1960: Armed Forces Minister Raul Castro blames the Unlted 
States for exploitatlon of Cuba since the beginning of tbe century. 

February 29, 1960: United States tells Cllbon Government that it wishes to 
seek a solutlon of outstanding problems through negotiations, but cannot ac­
cept the condition proposed by tbe Cuban Government that no measure of a 
unilateral character be adopted by the legislative or executive branch of the 
U.S. Government, and wishes to explore the subjects to be discussed before 
initiatlng negotlations. 

March 2, 1960: Natlonal Bauk President Ernesto Guevara states that tbe 3 
milllon tons of sugar wbich Cuba sells annuaUy to the United States "at 
supposedly preferential prices" have meant and mean slavery for the people 
of Cuba. 

March 4, 1960: French munitions ship La Coubre explodes in Havana Harbor. 
On March 5 Prime Mlnister Castro identifies the United States as the re­
sponsible agent of the explosiono 

March 7, 1960: The Unlted States categoricaUy and emphatically deniea the 
charge by Prime- Mlnister Castro implying involvement of the U.S. Government 
in the La Coubre disaster. 

March 9, 1960: Secretary of State Herter states at press conference that 
"we have been hopetul throughout that tbe atmosphere of our relatlonship 
with Cuba would allow us to settle through displomatic means such differences 
as we may have with Cuba." 

March 15, 1960: United States expresses shock and dismay at Prime Minister 
Castro attributlng responsibility for La Coubre disaster to United Sta tes ; 
rejects Castro's sug-gestion that the United Sta tes wants to keep Cuba defense­
less in order to oppress Cuba; states that it is prepared to discuss various other 
matters, on which Castro has been critical of the United States through normal 
channels of communicatlon; and contlnues to hope that tbe United States 
and Cuba can settle their ditl'erences through diploma tic means. 

March 20, 1960: Natlonal Banle President Guevara states, "Our war • • • 
la against the great power of the north." 

March 20, 1960: Plane from the United States leaves Fort Lauderdale, and 
ls damaged by Cuban gunfire as it lands on a highway in Cuba the next day. 
U.S. grand jury later lndicts William J. Shergalis, a U.S. citizen, and Hector 
Garcia Soto, both of whom arranged for the t1ight, for acting as agents of the 
Cuban Government without filing the registration statement required by law. 

March 31, 1960: Cuba signs trade and payments agreement \Vitb Poland. 
April 11, 1960: Unlted States asks Cuban Government if the M!1rch 2 views 

of National Bank President Guevara on sugar represent the official Cuban 
posltlon. No reply ever receh'e-d froro Cuban Go,ernment. 

April 19, 1960: Prime Minister Castro states that the U.S. Government 
takes advantage of every opportunity to create confusion with respect to 
United States-Cuban relations. He states tbat the U.S. Government seems 
to have adopted the policy used in the past to encourage fascismo 

Aprll 19, 1960: Tbe t1rst shipment of Soviet crude oH arrives in Cuba on 
the Soviet tanker VilJhimky; 
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May 6, 1960: Cuban Coast Guard patrol vessel ftres without warning upon 
U.S. 	submarine Sea Poacher on the high seas 11 miles froID the Cuban coast. 

May 16, 1960: Cuba and Czechoslovakia establish diplomatic relations. 
May 13, 1960: Prime Minister Castro, referring to Sea Poacher incident of 

May 6, states tbat the Cuban Coast Guard cutter Oriente sighted a U.S. sub­
marine 5 miles off the Cuban coast. In the same speech Castro states that 3 
miles is the limit oí Cuban territorial waters. 

May 14, 1960: United States expresses astonishment and protest to Cuban 
Government over Sea Poacher incident and requests e:x.planation. On June 11 
Prime Minister Castro says that no e:x.plaIlfttion will be given. 

May 16, 1960: Cuba and Czechoslovakia establish displomatic relations. 
May 17, 1960: National Bank of Cuba informs U.S. oil companies in Cuba that 

each of them will be required to purchase 300,000 ions of RlIssian petrolellm dur­
ing the balance of 1960. 

May 17, 1960: Minister-Counselor Braddock reminds Cuban Under Secretary 
of State Fernandez Font that Minister of State Roa told Ambassador Bonsal that 
Roa \Vould be soon getting in touch with Bonsal to resume discussions on the 
possibility of negotiatioDs on pending problems. 

June 4, 1960: United Sta tes revie\Vs the record of the Cuban Government's 
campaign of slander against tbe United Sta tes, and the efforts of the United 
States to maintain its traditionally friendly relations with the people of Cuba. 
The record includes Cuban confiscation and expropriation oí U .S. property, fail­
ure of the Cuban Government to compensate U.S. property owners, payments due 
to American exporters, Cuban attacks on U.S. sugar premium, air incursions, 
and the La Ooubre and Sea Poacher incidents. 

June 7, 1960: United St!lJtes objects to "fallacious" and "offensive" Cuban Gov­
ernment pamphlet containing tbinly veiled charges implying U.S. Government 
involvement in La Ooubre disaster. 

June 8, 1960: Antonio Nuñez Jiminez, Director of tbe Agrarian Reform Instí ­
tute, says in Moscow tbat of all tbe Latín American countries, Cuba is "the 
Soviet Union's greatest and most loyal friend." 

June 9, 1960: Prime Minister Castro, referring to the United States, says tbat 
powerful interests which wanted to destroy the revolution provoked the La 
Ooubre incident. He calls this type of disaster "criminally conceived and 
executed." 

June lO, 1960: Cuban Government seizes four U.S.-owned hotels in Ravana. 
June lO, 1960: Cuba signs a 5-year trade and payment agreements witb Czech()­

slovakia. 
June lO, 1960 : Prime Minister Castro states that U.S. officials participated .in a 

plot to mount an invasion attempt in Cuba against Nicaragua under the leader­
ship of a Nicaraguan exile, for tbe purpose of embarrassing the Cuban Govern­
ment. U.S. [usserts] allegations are falsc. 

June lO, 1960: Cnban Minister of State Roa says in Montevideo that Cuba 
decided "to break the structure of its commercial relations with tbe United 
Sta tes." 

June 15, 1960: Cuba and Poland establisb diplomatic relations. 
June 18, 1960: Joint Cuban-Soviet co:mmunique in Moscow notes the fruitful 

development oí trade, economic, and cultural ties between the Soviet Union and 
Cuba. 

June 18, 1960 : Agrarian Reform Director Nuñez Jiminez states "The Cammu­
nist Party of Cuba is * * * the party whose members are receiving the benefits 
of the revolution." 

June 27, 1960: United States explains the unnsual precantionfl it bas taken 
ftgainst iIlegal air incursions from U.S. territory affecting Cuba. States that the 
Cuban Government has shown no recognition of tbese efforts, has continued to 
picture the United States as permitting and encouraging tbese incursions, and 
has never provided the United States with data whicb would aid.in investigating 
the incnrsions. 

June 27, 1960: United States submits memorandum to tbe Inter-American 
Peace Committee on provocative actions of the Cuban Government. Memoran­
dum mentions La Ooubre incident, Sea Poacher incident, air incursions, and false 
Cuban allegations of U.S. complicit:v in plot to invade Nicaragua. 

June 29, 1960: Cuban Government seizes Texaco and 1<:sso refineries, on grounds 
that tbey had violated Cuban law in refllsin~ to refine Soviet crude oil. As of 
tbis date, the oi! companies had vOluntari!y financed over $50 million worth of 
crude oil imports for wbicb the Cuban Goveruruent had refused to relea se dollars. 
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July 3, 1960: Agrarian Reform Director Nuñez Jiminez states in East Berlin 
that Cuba desires relations not only with the Soviet Un ion but with all Socialist 
countries. 

July 3, 1960: U.S. Congress gives President autbority to reduced import quota 
on Cuban sugar. 

July 3, 1960: Jose Miró Cardona, Ambassador-designate to the United States, 
resigns, stating that tlle "ideological differences betweeu tbe plans of the Goyel"ll­
ment * * * and my conscience \Vere impossible to resolve." He takes asylum 
in the Argentine Elllbassy. 

July 5, 1960: United States protests seizure oí U.S.-owned oi! refineries as 
arbitrary, inequitable, and contrary to Cuban law, and expresses tbe hope tbat 
tbe Cubun Goyernment will rescind these actions. 

July 6, 1960: Cuban Government passes Ilationalization law, autllOrizing na· 
tíonalizatíon of U.S.-owned property through expropriation. Authorizes pay­
ments to be made from fund to be derived from receipts from annual purchases 
of Cubun sugar o\-er 3 million tons, at price of at least 5.75 cents a ponnd. Pay­
ment to be in 30-year bonds at 2-percent interest. 

July 6, 1960: President Eisenhower, "with the most genuine regret," orders a 
cut of 700,000 tons in Cuba's 1960 sugar quota, on grounds that Cuban commit­
ments to pay for Soviet goods with Cuball sugar have raised serious doubts as 
to whether the United States can depend on Cuba as a source of sugar. 

July 7, 1960: Prime 1\1inister Castro says that tbe United Stutes acted in a 
"frellzy of impotence and hatred * * * in u fit of rage" in cntting tbe sugar 
quota, but defies the United States and says that his revolution will triumph. 

July 9, 1960: Soviet Premier Khrushchev states that the U.S.S.R. is "raising 
its voice and extending a helpful hand to the people of Cuba * * *. Speaking 
figuratively, in case of necessity, Soviet artillerymen can support the Cuban 
people with rocket fire." 

July 9, 1960: President Eisenhower says tbat Kbrushchev's statement uuder­
scores the close ties that have de\-eloped bet\Veen the Soviet and Cuban Govern­
ments. 

July lO, 1960: Prime Minister Castro devotes an entire speech to expressing 
satisfactíon at the support offered Cuba by tbe Soviet Union and to attacking 
what he describes as tbe aggressive policies of tbe United States. 

July lO, 1960: National Bank President Guev1l.ra states that Cuba is defended 
by the Soviet Un ion, "the greatest military power in history." 

July lO, 1960: President Dorticos hails "tbe message of sOlidarity spoken by 
tbe Prime Minister of the Soviet Union and coming to us in our most difficult 
hour." 

July 16, 1960: U.S. protests nationulization law of July 6 as discriminatory,
arbitrary, and confiscatory. 

July 21, 1960: Cuban press reports Armed Forces Minister Raul Castro stat ­
ing in Moscow that Cuba "is grateful for political and moral support from the 
Soviet Union." 

July 23, 1960: Cuba signs a 5-year trade and payment agreement with Com­
munist China, calling for Chinese Communist purchase of 500,000 tons of Cuban 
sugar in eacb of the next 5 years. 

July 30, 1960: National Bank President Gueyara states tbat tbe U.S.S.R., Com­
lIIunist China and other Socialist countries are Cuba's friends. 

August 1, 1960: United Sta tes submits document to the lnter-American Peace 
Committee entitled "Responsibility of Cuban Goyernment for Increased lnter­
national Tensions in the Hemisphere." Docnment deals principally with the 
relations betVl'een Cuba and the Sino-Soviet bloc, and the emergence of a dic­
tatorial pattern oí pOlitical control in Cuba. Document states that the Cnban 
Government bas taken discriminatory actions against tbe property of U.S. citi ­
zens in Cuba valued at cver $850 million, and that no effort has been made by 
the Cuban Government to ass'ure tbem anything approaching adequate com­
pensation. 

Augnst 6, 1960: Under authority of the nationalization law, Cuba nationali7.es 
through forced expropriation tbe properties of 26 companies wbolly or partially 
owned by U.S . citizens. 'l'he United Sta tes protests this action on August 8. 

Augnst 6, 1960: Armed Forces Minister Raul Castro says Cllha is gratefnl for 
Soviet support, and that U.S. aid always has strings attached, wbile aiel from 
tbe Soviet Union is disinterested. 

August 7, 1960: Prime Minister Castro justifies the conftscatioll oi the invest­
ments of U.S. citizens in Cnba by accusing the United States of "economic ag­
gression" in reducing Cuba's sugar quota. 
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August 10, 1960: United States issues 23-page document containing evidence of 
the aggressive intent of the Cuban Government in its discriminatory trade and 
financial policies, and its confiscation of the property of U.S. citizens. Estimates 
the value of confiscated U.S. property at about $1 billion. States that the back­
log of payments due to U.S. exporters because of the failure of Cuban authorities 
to make the necessary foreigu exchange available is over $100 million. States 
that about one-half of U.S. investments had been seized befo re any change was 
made in the Cuban sugar quota. 

Document states that property seized under nationalization law of July 6 
covers only the most cecent cases of the arbitrary taking of s'uch property with­
out prompt, adequate, and efl'ective compensation. In prior cases, starting in 
June 1959, the Cuban Government has shown litUe 01' no consideration for the 
rights guaranteed property owners under the laws of Cuba. It has seized and 
occupied lands and buildings of U.S. citizens, confiscated and removed equip­
ment, confiscated and removed cattle from the pastures of owners, seized timber­
land resources, plowed under productive pastures without the consent of owners, 
and arbitrarily moved fences and boundaries. In many cases no inventory was 
taken at the time of seizure nor receipt provided, nor indication given that any 
payment would be made. The value of American owned property affected by 
such acts is estimated at $350 million. 

August 13, 1960: Commerce Minister Cepero Bonilla declares that for the 
coming year "it would be much more advantageous to Cuba if the United States 
did not buy a single grain of sugar." 

August 16, 1960: Cuban press reports on message from Prime Minister Castro 
to Premier Khrushchey, expressing thanks "for the support of the Soviet peopIe, 
which is irrefutable proof that the peoples fighting for their independence are 
not alone in their struggle." 

August 24, 1960 : Prime Minister Castro charges the United States with s'up­
porting counterreyolutionaries and states that Cuba will be friends with the 
Soviets and the Chinese People's Republic. 

August 29, 1960: The Foreign Ministers of the American Republics, meeting 
at San Jose, Costa Rica, approve Declaration of San Jose, stating that the 
acceptance by an American state of extracontinental intervention endangers 
American solidarity and security. They also create an ad hoc good offices 
commlttee to help settle controversies between governments in the Americas. 

August 29, 1960: Prime Minister Castro repeats charges of United States 
aggression against Cuba and says he wil! not renounce Soviet support. 

September 2: In reply to the Declaration of San Jose, Prime Minister Castro 
presents "Declaration of Habana," which bitterly attacks the United States and 
the OAS, denounces United States intervention in Latin America, accepts offer 
of a"Ri~tRn('e from the Soviet Vnion, and denies that the Soviet Vnion 01' Com­
munist China have interventionist intentions in the Western Hemisphere. States 
CuIJa will establish relations with the Chinese People's Republic. 

September 12, 1960: Vnited Sta tes ofl'ers to present Its charges for examina­
tion by the good offices committee created August 29, and express the hope that 
the Cuban Government will coopera te. 

September 15, 1960: Cuba and Hungary sign trade and payments agreements. 
September 17, 1960:· Under authority of the nationalization law, Cuba na­

tionalizes 3 U.S.-owned banks through forced expropriation. United States pro­
tests on September 29. 

September 18, 1960: National Bank President Guevara accuses the Unlted 
States of aggression and genocide. Says that Cuba has received arms from 
Czechoslovakia and is expecting many more from any power that will seU them. 

September 23, 1960: Cuba and North Korea establish diplomatic relaUons. 
September 26, 1960: Prime Minister Castro makes series of untrue and difl­

torted allegations against the United States at the U.N. General Assembly. 
September 30, 1960: Communist Prime Minister Chou En-Iai states that "In 

the event of neeessity the Chinese Government and people will glve all possible 
support and aid to the Cuban people." 

October 7, 1960: Cuba and Bulgaria sigo trade and payments agreements. 
October 12, 1960: United States submits document to the U.N. Secretary Gen­

eral entitled "Faets Con('erning Relations Between Cuba and the United States," 
replying to Prime Minister Castro's allegations of September 26. 

October 13, 1l)GO: Unidentified men raid the Cuban consulate general in Miaml. 
Cuba n Government sta tes that the attaC'k was permitted with the "suspicious 
indifl'erence" and the "manifest collusion of tbe American authorities" and that 
the identities of those responsible are known to the authorities. 
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October 19, 1960: Vnlted States prohibits exports to Cuba except for non­
subsidized foodstuffs, medicines, and medical supplies, to defend the legitimate 
economic interests of the people of tbe Vnlted States agaillst tbe discriminatory, 
aggressive, and injurious eeonomic polieies of the Castro regime. 

October 24, 1960: Vnder authority of the nationalization law, Cuba nationali7.e~ 
through forced expropriation 166 properties wholly 0 1' partially owned by V.S. 
citizens. United States protests on November 19. 

October 26, 1960: Cuba and Rumania establish diplomatic relations and sign 
trade and technical assistance agreements. 

October 27, 1960: Vnited States rejects "emphatieally and categorieally" the 
Cuban protest of Oetober 13. States that the Vnited States does not condone 
the violation of its laws by anyone, that it makes every effort to prevent such 
violations, tbat an investigation into the incident is eontinuing and that the 
United States has told the Miami poliee of the need for special pOlice protection 
for the consulate general. 

October 28, 1960: Vnited States reiterates September 12 ofl'er to coopera te with 
good offices committee and expresses hope that committee will carry out its mis­
sion promptly. 

Noyember 14, 1960 : Cuban Government rejects the Vnited States statements of 
October 27 as "mendaeious and detrimental" and refers to an "alliallce" between 
the executioners of the Cuban people and the Vnited Sta tes Government. 

November 18, 1960 : Vnited Sta tes sta tes that at least 12 Soviet ships have 
delivered arms and ammunition to Cuba sinC'e July 1960 and that Soviet bloc 
arms pl'ovided to Cuba amount to at least 28,000 tons. 

December 2, 1960 : Cuba and North Vietnam establish diploma tic relatioos. 
December 9, H)GO : Cuba and Outer Mongolia establish diploma tic relations. 
December n, 1960: Na tional Bank President Guevara expresses wholehearted 

support for the Dcc'ember 6 statement of the C.ougress of 81 Communist Parties 
which met in Moscow, and states that Cuba "should follo\V the example of 
peaceful development set by the Soviet Vnion." 

December 15, 1960: Cuba and Albania establish diploma tic relations. 
December 16, 1960: President Eisenhower fixes the Cuban sugar quota at zero 

for the first quarter of 1961. 
December 17, 1960: Cuba nnd Hungary establish diplomatic relations. 
December 19, 1960: Cuba and the Soviet Vnion sigu joint communique through 

\\'hich Cuba openly tilines itself ",ith the domestic and foreign pOlicies of the 
Soviet Vnion and indicates its solidarity with the Sino-Soviet bloc. 

January 2, 1961: Cuba holds military parade. IIIany Soviet and bloc arms 
displayed, including tanks, assault guns, and field guns. Prime Minister Castro 
says this represents only a "small part" of the arms which Cuba has l'ecelved 
from the bloc. 

January 2, 1961 : Prime ]\finister Castro demands that the U.S. Embassy in 
Hayana be reduced to 11 officiuls within 48 hours. 

Janunry 3, 1961: Vnited Sta tes terminates diploma tic a nd consular relations 
with Cuba in view of Castro's demand of Janual'y 2, which placed crippling 
limitations on the ability of the Vnlted Sta tes to carry out normal diplomatic 
and consular fUlletions. Cuba turns over its diploma tic and consular affairs 
to tbe Emhassy of Czechosloyakia in Washington. 

February 23, 1961: Armed Forces Minister Raul Castro decla res that the 
Chine!>e People's Republic has sent Cuha hundreds of muchineguns. 

March 31, 1961: President Kennedy fixes the Cuban sugar quota at zero for 
1961. 

April 3, 1961: The Vnlted Stutes issues "Cuba" pamphlet , expres~ing determi­
nati on to support future democratic governments in Cuba to help the Cuban 
people achieye freedom , democracy, and social justice, and calling on the Castro 
regime to seYE'r its links ,,"ith the international Communist Illoyement. 

April 3, ]961: Dellartment states in "Cuba" pamphlet that since mid-1960 
more than 30,000 rons of arIOS, \\"ith an estimated "alue of ~ ;)O million, huye 
arrÍ\'ed in Cuha from beyond th e Tron Curtnin; that the Cuban ul'mecl forces are 
dcpendent 011 the SoYiE't bloc for the maintenance of their arlllecl po\Vel': that 
Soviet and Czech military adyisers and tecbnicians haye aeeompaniE'cl the 
fio\V of arms .thar Cuhans ha\"(~ gone to Czechosloyakiu and the Se)\'iet Gnion for 
training us jet pl1ots, grollnd maintenunce ('re,,"s, and nrtill C' n 'm(,!1 ; anel tilat 
Cuba has, except for the lJnited States, the Inrgest gl'ound forces in thE' helllis­
¡lhere, nI least 10 times as large as those maiotained by previous Cuban Goyern­
ments, including that of Batista. 
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April 16, 1961 : Prime Minister Castro describes his regime as Socialist. 
April 17-19, 1961: Cuban patriots faíl in attempt to redeem the independence 

of their homeland. 
April 20, 1961: President Kennedy states that any unilateral American inter­

,ention would have been contrary to our traditions and to our internationaJ 
obligations, but that we do not intend to abandon Cuba. 

April 21, 1961: Cuba votes with the Soviet bloc on almost every major inter­
national issue during the 15th General Assembly of the United Nations, which 
ran from September 20 to December 20, 1960, and Marcil 7 to April 21, 1961. 

April 30, 1961: Minister of Industries Ernesto Guevara declares that the 
Castro movement was "tile first Socialist revolution in Latin America." 

May 1, 1961: Prime Minister Castro speaks of "our Socialist revolution" and 
says that a new "socialist constitution" \Vill be prepared for Cuba. 

July 26, 1961: Prime Minister Castro announces formation of Integrated Re­
volutionary Organizations (ORI) as the precursor of the United Party of the 
Socialist Revolution to be the only party in Cuba. 

September 20, 1961: Soviet-Cuban communique proclaims "identity of posi­
tions of the Soviet Union and Cuba on all the international questions that were 
discussed." 

October 2, 1961: Chinese·Cuban communique proclaims complete agreement 
bet\Veen tbe Cuban and Chinese Communist regimes on "the clll"rent interna­
tional situation and the question of furtber developing friendship and cooper­
ation." 

December 2, 1961: Prime Minister Castro states: "1 believe absolutely in 
Ma¡'xism * * * I am a Marxist-Leninist and will be a Marxist-Lenillis t until 
the last day of my life." He admits that he hid his true political ideology during 
his revolutionary struggle because he felt that "if we, wilen \Ve began to bave 
strength, bad been known as people of very radieal ideas, unquestionably al! 
the social classes that aré making war on us would have been doing so from that 
time on." 

December 6, 1961: United States submits document to the IrÍter-American 
Peace Committee entitled "The Castro Regime in Cuba" containing information 
on Cuba's ties with tbe Sino-Soviet bloc and her threat to independent govern­
ments in the Western Hemispbere. 

December 20, 1961 : Cuba votes with Soviet bloc on 33 out of 37 major issues in 
16th scssion of U.N. General Assembly.

January 14, 1962: The Inter-American Peace Committee reports tbat Cuba's 
connections with the Sino-Soviet bloc are incompatible witb inter-American 
treaties, principIes, and standards. 

JaDuary 31, 1962: The Foreign Ministers of the American Republics, meeting 

at Punta del Este, declare that as a consequence of its public alinernent with tbe 
international Communist movement, the present Marxist-Leninist governrnent of 
Cuba is excluded from participation in tbe in ter-American system. 

J.\farch 27,1962: United States sta tes that Sino·Soviet bloc has furnished about 
$100 million worth of military equipment and technical sen-ices to Cuba and 
tbat several hundred Cuban military personnel haye r eceived training, including 
pilot trainillg, in the bloc. Arms illclude 5 to 7G :\lig jet fighters; 150 to 250 

tanks; 50 to 100 assault guns; 500 to 1,000 fi eld artillery; ;:;00 to 1,000 antiair· 
eraft artillery; 500 mortars; 200,000 small arms, and some patrol vessels lllld 
torpedo boats. No evidence of missiles, rnissile bases, or bombers. 
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